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CORPORATE PROFILE

Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited (“Samurai 2K” or the “Company”, and together with its

subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a leading aerosol coating specialist which focuses on high

performance coating solutions for the automotive refinishing and refurbishing industry.

We are principally engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and marketing of our
products under our own brands.

Headquartered in Malaysia, our products are manufactured in our production facility

located in Johor and are distributed in countries including Malaysia, Indonesia, Thailand,

Philippines, Vietnam, Cambodia, United Kingdom, United States of America, Singapore
and India.

o]

We Change Aerosol, Aerosol Changes
the World.

Oou

To be the world’s respected
innovative aerosol system provider.

Ol

To offer the most innovative aerosol
systems with the best user enjoyment
and to create more job opportunities for
all sprayers in the world.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDE

(39

THE BIGGEST
PART OF DIGITAL
TRANSFORMATION

IS CHANGING THE
WAY WE THINK.

2  SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

I am honoured to present the Annual Report of Samurai
2K Aerosol Limited (“Samurai 2K” or the “Company”
and its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the financial year
ended 31 March 2022 (“FY2022").

RESULTS HIGHLIGHT

We are proud to announce that we have reported the
highest record of revenue in FY2022. This is another
remarkable year for us, despite the COVID-19 pandemic
which resulted in a significant disruption to our business
development progress. The Group's revenue increased
marginally by RM2.4 million or 2.18% to RM113.0 million
in FY2022 from RM110.6 million in FY2021. Gross profit
margin decreased from 48.7% in FY2021 to 42.7% in
FY2022 mainly due to increase in raw material and
freight costs. The profit after tax decreased by RM4.37
million or 24.9% to RM13.12 million in FY2022 from
RM17.49 million in FY2021 and was mainly due to the
one-off non-cash share-based payment expenses of
RM4.51 million, pursuant to the Group's performance
share plan that aimed to promote higher performance
goals, recognise exceptional achievements, and retain
talents within the Group.

The Group is optimistic about the future growth of
our Group's revenue, taken into consideration of the
economy uncertainty as well as the raw material and
freight cost hike since FY2021.

RESILIENCE

We are currently gathering all the necessary resources
(ie. information technology, manpower, etc) to build a
strong digital platform by integrating online and offline
business transactions, to improve users’ experiences
and to better understand the users’ behaviours, with
an aim to create an omni-channel retail experience to
the users.

Meanwhile, the Board emphasises on the importance of
liquidity and resources to ensure resilience and agility
of the business to adapt to uncertainty, changes and
challenges, and continue to invest in future business
development and transformations. We continue to
maintain a high liquidity financial position, despite an
anticipation of higher capital expenditure in FY2023,
including new corporate office renovation and digital
technology development costs and to reward our loyal
shareholders with dividend payout consistently.

DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION

The Group continuously approaches on new digital
business strategies by changing the way we are doing
business traditionally, to adopt change in new business
models and leverage emerging technology in this new
digital world. Various digital strategic approaches have
been implemented to ensure wide coverage on the
consumers’ needs in terms of their behaviours and
buying patterns, and through various digital marketing
channels to attract consumers including websites,
e-commerce and social media platforms.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

We are targeting to launch the first-ever colour mix
& match system (“Tintatek” technology) of aerosol
spray paint, which allows users (especially automotive
consumers) to custom fill their desired colours into the
aerosol can without the use of a complicated tool or
equipment, and then spray on to a desired surface.
The original factory paint can be perfectly matched with
the prescribed colour ratio from our very own colour
databank, in which million of colours can be generated
by using only 26 basic primary colours.

At the same time, we are building a spray paint service
matching platform which integrates those who need
the spray painting services with those who can render
the said services at their doorsteps. This is incredibly
an economical, convenient, and easy-to-use one-off
solutions to solve most of the consumers’ pain points
including cost savings, repair minor scratches, hassle
free door-to-door service etc.

The incorporation of Tintatek into the spray paint
services is a revolutionary and disruptive innovation
in the aerosol paint industry, and we work towards a
digital ecosystem which eventually brings greater values
and convenience to our consumers.

INVENTIONS AND INNOVATIONS

In order to sustain the competitive advantage and
prevent new competitors from entry, all inventions and
innovations done by our research and development team
are protected and registered with the local intellectual
property registrar as the Group’'s own patents and
trademarks all around the world.

DIVIDEND

The Group intends to declare dividends consistently,
on the Group's profits generated during each financial
period/year, by taking into consideration the expansion
plan and future investments on capital expenditure.

For FY2022, the Board of Directors has paid an interim
dividend (one-tier tax exempt) of SGD0.002 per ordinary
share and special dividend of SGD0.004 per ordinary
share on 7 December 2021 and further recommended
a final dividend (one-tier tax exempt) of SGD0.002 per
ordinary share and special dividend of SGD0.004 per
ordinary share, subject to shareholders’ approval at
the annual general meeting to be held on 27 July 2022.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our
stakeholders, shareholders, bankers, customers, and
suppliers for the unwavering support and trust in
Samurai 2K all these years. Last but not least, thousand
thanks to my dedicated staff for all the sacrifices that
you have made for Samurai 2K and | strongly believe
that together hand-in-hand we can achieve our goals
for another excellent year to come!

ONG YOKE EN

Founder and Chief Executive Officer
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OPERATIONS & FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVIEW OF INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue increased by RM2.4 million or 2.18% from
RM110.6 million in FY2021 to RM113.0 million in FY2022.
The increase was mainly due to increase demand
from Malaysia and other markets such as Thailand,
Philippines, Cambodia and United Kingdom.

Gross profit margin decreased from 48.7% in FY2021
to 42.7% in FY2022. The decrease in the gross profit
margin was mainly due to the increase of raw material
and freight costs.

Other income of RM1.2 million as reported in FY2022
mainly attributed from interest income.

Administrative expenses increased by RM6.8 million
mainly due to performance share-based payment
expenses and increase in other administration expenses.

Marketing and distribution expenses decrease by RM8.5
million mainly due to decrease in offline marketing
activities.

Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
decrease by 25.0% year-on-year to RM13.1 million.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets as at 31 March 2022 rose by
RM4.6 million mainly due to additions in factory
upgrades, renovation works and purchases of plant
and machineries RM1.0 million and increase in trade
and other receivables by RM 3.6 million.

Current assets increased by RM6.2 million mainly
due to higher level of inventory and increase in trade
receivables and advance payment to supplier.

Non-current liabilities increased slightly by RMO0.1 million
mainly due to increase in deferred tax liabilities.

Current liabilities increased by RM6.0 million mainly due
to increase in trade payables caused by the increase
in purchases which is in line with the increase in sales.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT REVIEW

In FY2022, net cash generated from operating activities
amounting to RM16.2 million, arising from operating
cash flow before changes in working capital of RM27.6
million, changes in net working capital outflow of RM5.4
million, income tax payment of RM6.1 million, and net
interest receive of RM0.08 milion.

In FY2022, we recorded a net cash outflow from investing
activities of approximately RM6.6 million mainly due to
additional cost of upgrading and renovation of factory
and purchase of plant and machinery.

In FY2022, we recorded a net cash outflow from financing
activities of approximately RM12.9 million was mainly
due to dividend paid amounted to RM13.2 million,
repayment of lease liabilities of RM0.6 million, interest
paid of RM0.9 milion which was offset by drawdown of
banker's acceptance of RM1.8 million.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group maintained a cash and
cash equivalents balance of RM71.9 million.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

SHAREHOLDER EQUITY
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Note: FY2018 until FY2021, the earnings per share has been adjusted based on the new number
of shares in issuance after share split.
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EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION DAY Z
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AFTER TWO YEARS, HARI RAYA AND GAWAI
CELEBRATED WITH MUCH JOY

After two years of gloomy celebrations due
to Covid-19, the Samuraian celebrated 'Hari
Raya & Gawai' with much joy this year. On
26th May 2022, Human Resource Department
together with Samurai Sports and Recreation
Club invited all staff to a special occasion at
the foyer of Samurai factory located in Johor
Bahru. For this year, it was extra special as
we had double the celebration and excitement
with Gawai Dayak and Hari Raya Aidilfitri. In
Samurai, Hari Raya and Gawai celebrations are
an annual occasion whereby all staff are invited
to gather and celebrate. Regardless of our race
and religion everyone was dressed in fanciful
traditional Malay Kurung, Baju Melayu and
Iban traditional clothes. Staff enjoyed various
delicacies of traditional Malay and Raya dishes.

The event was officiated with the opening
speech by our CEO, Mr Ong Yoke En. The event
was also enlivened with a birthday celebration
for those born from April to June, along with
100 lucky draws for the staff to participate in.

Amidst the festivities everyone was seen eating
and taking photos with each other throughout
the event. By creating memories, it is hoped that
by organizing this event yearly, it will provide
the opportunity for everyone to strengthen

their relationship with each other.

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022 7




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr Ong Yoke En was appointed to our Board on 9 March 2016 and was last re-elected as
Director on 23 September 2020. He has more than 20 years of diverse and strong working
experience in the aerosol industry holding leadership positions in various aerosol companies
in Malaysia. Mr Ong builds and leads the senior executive team and sets the strategic direction
of our Group. He is also actively involved in the research and development of our Group's
aerosol products and has achieved a major innovation in the production of our dual head
2K system which improves on the user friendliness of an existing technology. Mr Ong also
invented our Group's single head 2K system which was awarded a gold medal at the ITEX 2016
held in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia by the Malaysian Invention and Design Society. He was also
awarded a Special Innovation Award as a recognition of the same invention by The Moroccan
Union of Inventors, an affiliate of the International Federation of Investor's Associations at
Toronto 2016. Mr Ong graduated from the Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia with a Bachelor
of Arts in 1993.

Past directorships in listed companies (for last three years)
*  None

Present directorships in listed companies (other than the Company)
+  None

Mr Lim Siang Kai was appointed to our Board on 3 October 2016 and was last re-elected as
Director on 23 September 2020. Mr Lim has over 30 years of experience in securities, private
and investment banking and fund management, having worked in and held various leadership
roles in various banks and financial services companies since 1981. Mr. Lim holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree and a Bachelor of Social Science (Hons) degree from the National University of
Singapore obtained in 1980 and 1981 respectively. He also has a Master of Arts in Economics
from the University of Canterburry, New Zealand, which he obtained in 1983.

Past directorships in listed companies (for last three years)
+ Joyas International Holdings Limited

+  Beijing Gas Blue Sky Power Holdings Limited

+  D'nonce Technology Berhad

Present directorships in listed companies (other than the Company)
* ISDN Holdings Limited

Ms Lim was appointed to our Board on 3 October 2016 and was last re-elected as Director
on 23 September 2020. Ms Lim has a diverse and strong working experience having served
in various capacities for more than 20 years in marketing and product manufacturing. In 2001
to 2014, Ms Lim gained extensive customer relations and marketing experience in her roles of
planning marketing activities including organising roadshows for the Group's aerosol products.
As the COO of our Group, Ms Lim oversees daily operations of our Group, helps in designing
and implementing business strategies, plans and procedures, as well as establishing policies
that promote our Company's culture and vision, and managing relationships with vendors.
Ms. Lim graduated from the Simon Fraser University (Canada) with a Bachelor of Science
(Biochemistry) in 1994 and obtained a Graduate Diploma in Health Science (Herbal Medicine)
from The University of New England (Australia) in 2007.

Past directorships in listed companies (for last three years)
* None

Present directorships in listed companies (other than the Company)
*  None
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dato’ Loh Shin Siong was appointed to the Board on 16 December 2016 and was last
re-elected as Director on 25 July 2019. He has business interests in various industries such
as food and beverage and property development and operations and formulates strategies
to continually raise the standards of quality and service. Dato’ Loh is also responsible for the
management and operations in a real estate company and gained experience in property
investment and development.

Past directorships in listed companies (for last three years)
0 None

Present directorships in listed companies (other than the Company)
*  None

Dato’ Chang Chor Choong was appointed to the Board on 16 December 2016 and was last
re-elected as Director on 28 July 2021. Dato’ Chang is currently a director at various private
companies engaged in businesses across a range of industries including telecommunications,
beverages and real estate development. Over years, he has gained experience in the overall
management of companies and in setting directions and implementing various business
strategies. Outside of his business commitments, Dato’ Chang has been an advisor of
Ku-Miau Temple since 2012.

Past directorships in listed companies (for last three years)
5 None

Present directorships in listed companies (other than the Company)
. None

Mr Hau Hock Khun was appointed to our Board on 16 December 2016 and was last re-elected
as Director on 28 July 2021. Mr Hau has more than 24 years of experience in the legal industry
and his practice focuses on, amongst others, banking and finance law, Islamic banking law,
general corporate and commercial law, company law, conveyancing and land law, probate and
administration law and intellectual property law in Malaysia. Mr Hau is currently an executive
director in charge of overall management and operations in a number of private companies.
(Mr Hau is a member of the Bar Council of Malaysia, a member of the Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators (United Kingdom) in 2009.) Mr Hau graduated from Bond University, Australia
with a Bachelor of Law in 1997. He later obtained a Master of Business Administration (Total
Quality Management) from Newport University, USA.

Past directorships in listed companies (for last three years)
+  Kumpulan H & L High-Tech Berhad

Present directorships in listed companies (other than the Company)
*  None

Mr Lim was appointed to our Board on 21 May 2019 and was last re-elected as Director on
25 July 2019. Mr Lim has a diverse and strong working experience for more than 20 years in
the accounting and audit industry. Over the years, he has also gained experience in the overall
management and operations in a number of private accounting companies. Mr Lim is currently
an Audit Principal at Milant & Associates LLP and founder of Lim CH & Associates, a certified
public accounting firm providing audit services. He also set up a private limited company
named CoseClinic Services Pte Ltd which took over businesses of Everich Management Services.

Past directorships in listed companies (for last three years)
. None

Present directorships in listed companies (other than the Company)
*  None
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Mr Leo joined our Group on May 2021. As a Corporate Development Officer, he is responsible
for the comprehensive planning, implementation and management of all corporate relations
activities, public and community relations and oversee the Group's risk management and
internal control. He was the group accountant of Johore Tin Berhad in 2008 and subsequently
promoted to Group Finance Manager. He is currently a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (“ACCA"). He passed the professional level of the ACCA examinations in
2003. He also gained his audit experience in Chung & Associates as Audit Manager. Currently,
he is a member for Malaysia Institute of Accountants (“MIA”) and Fellow Member of Associates
of Chartered Accountants (“FCCA").

10

KEY MANAGEMENT

Mr Voon Kian Woon joined our Group in September 2014. Mr Voon started his own book
keeping business in 2012 where he provided bookkeeping services to small businesses
in Malaysia. Currently, Mr Voon has been relocated to USA subsidiary and is in charge
of overseeing the business operation, preparing of financial statements and business
activity reports of Samurai 2K USA Inc.. Mr Voon is currently an affiliate member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA"). He passed the professional level
of the ACCA examinations in 2010. Mr Voon obtained a Bachelor of Science with First
Class Honours in Applied Accounting from Oxford Brookes University in 2010.

%\

Ms Hanifah joined our Group in 2018 as Finance Manager where she led the finance team
and in charge in full set of account up to preparation of monthly reporting, consolidation,
preparing tax computation and financial reporting. She was promoted to Financial Controller
of the Group in January 2022. Currently, Ms Hanifah oversees and manages the Group's
financial, management, accounting, treasury, taxation, and other corporate compliance matters.
Ms Hanifah has 18 years of experience in accountancy. She started her career in 2004 as an
Account and Admin Executive. Since then, she climbed the career ladder at Scanwolf Plastic
Industries Sdn Bhd to the position of Head of Account where she oversaw all financial matters
such as finance and treasury planning. Ms Hanifah graduated from University Technology of
MARA (UiTM) in 2004 with a Bachelor of Accounting (Hons).
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KEY MANAGEMENT

Mr Parantaman E. Krishnan Naidu joined our Group in 2017 as Factory Manager where
he was in charge of monitoring and managing the whole production activities to ensure
the products are meeting the specification, delivery target and company target. He
was promoted to Regional Operation Director in June 2019 with responsibilities for
commercial and operational excellence over South Asia countries (eg: India, Nepal, Sri
Lanka, Bangladesh, and Middle East). Mr Paran has 25 years of manufacturing and
safety experience and with last 15 years in middle and seniormanagement roles mainly
in Ophtalmic Industry, Electronic Management System and Aerosol Competent Safety
and Health Officer. Mr Paran graduated from Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia with a
Bachelor of Arts (Hons) and he also obtained a Master of Bussiness Administration
(MBA) from Heriot Watt University, United Kingdom.

Ms Puah Thye Lay joined our Group in 2009. Ms Puah has more than 20 years of sales
experience. Ms Puah worked in a few fast-moving consumer goods companies where
she led a team of salesmen and merchandisers and assisted in the expansion of the
business. As Sales Director, Ms Puah is in charge of the sales department and is currently
involved in the training of our Group's sales team in a few countries.

Ms Lee Siong Kim joined our group in 2011. Ms Lee has more than 10 years of experience
in sales and marketing. She was a marketing manager at a company engaged in furniture
business, where she was involved in the expansion and development of the business. She
previously oversaw the development of Samurai 2K Aerosol Sdn. Bhd. (formerly known
as Orientus Industry Sdn. Bhd.) as well as the overall business operations and sales
performance. Currently, she oversees the business operations and sales performance of
Indonesia market.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIE

SAMURAI DONATES
RM210,000 TO 4
NATIONAL SCHOOLS
TO ENHANCE ICT
EQUIPMENT

Kluang, Johor March 2022 - Samurai
2K in performing their corporate social
responsibilities has donated RM210,000 to 4
different national schools in Kluang, namely
SIK (€) Chiau Min Kluang Johor, SJK(T) Ladang
Mengkibol, SJK (T) Ladang Lamba and SJK (T)
Ladang Sembrong.

The donations Willgo to the school funds for
the enhancement of ICT equipment in elevating
the knowledge and education of the future
generations in terms of technology.

This contribution was represented by CEO, Mr
Ong Yoke En, COO, Ms Lim Lay Yong, Corporate
Development Officer, Mr Leo Aun Foo, and

Regional Operation Director, Mr Parantaman
E. Krishnan Naidu.
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SAMURAI PAINT SERVICES

DIGITALIZATION
ON SPRAY PAINT
SERVICE — THE
FIRST IN THE WORLD
FROM OFFLINE TO
ONLINE

JOHOR BAHRU, APRIL 2022 - Samurai 2K Group
made a bold leap in its effort to transform
into a fully digital platform - Samurai2U -
with the launch of Samurai Spray Service, a
major stepping stone to achieving the goal of
everyone adding color to their lives.

As the first - but one of many - features of
Samurai2U, a service that is focused on solving
the problems of the people!

Even if the Froblems are relatively insignificant

to the world at large, any person with some
shred of humility and gratitude will gnaw at
themselves for not knowing how to overcome
said problems. In this case, rims and headlamps
that are in bad condition.

The way that the spray service fits into the
digitalization is by way of through Samurai2U’s
website, and in the near future, the Samurai

App.

From there, all people from all scopes of life
can enjoy a renewed, and even an enhanced
version of the car that they love, at their own
convenience. Since it is fully digitalized, long
gone is the hassle of having to physically go
out and hunt for a suitable spray shop; all that
they need are now in their phones.

The next phase of the spray service is
something even more bold, as the company
is planning on doing a touch-up service for
cars that have scratches ranging from light
scratches, to deep ones.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Mr Lim Siang Kai
(Non-Executive Chairman and Lead Independent
Director)

Mr Ong Yoke En
(Founder, Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Technology Officer)

Ms Lim Lay Yong
(Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer)

Dato’ Loh Shin Siong
(Non-Executive Director)

Dato’ Chang Chor Choong
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr Hau Hock Khun
(Independent Director)

Mr Lim Chong Huat
(Independent Director)

Mr Lim Siang Kai (Chairman)
Mr Hau Hock Khun
Mr Lim Chong Huat

Mr Hau Hock Khun (Chairman)
Mr Lim Siang Kai
Mr Lim Chong Huat

Mr Lim Chong Huat (Chairman)
Mr Hau Hock Khun
Mr Lim Siang Kai

Mr Tan Chee How (FCIS)

133, North Bridge Road,
#08-03 Chinatown Point,
Singapore 059413

MALAYSIA

6 Jalan Dato’ Yunus 1

Taman Perindustrian Dato Yunus Sulaiman
Lima Kedai

81120 Skudai, Johor, Malaysia

INDONESIA

JI. Sunter Mas Utara, Blok H1 No 17W
RT 021 RW 008, Sunter Jaya Sub-District,
Tanjung Priok District, North Jakarta
14350 Indonesia

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
627, Montrose Avenue

South Plainfield

New Jersey 07080

United States of America

UOB KAY HIAN PRIVATE LIMITED
8 Anthony Road

#01-01

Singapore 229957

BAKER TILLY TFW LLP

600 North Bridge Road

#05-01

Parkview Square

Singapore 188778

Partner-in-charge: Mr Lee Chee Sum Gilbert

(@ member of the Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants)

(Date of appointment: since financial year ended 31
March 2021)

BOARDROOM CORPORATE & ADVISORY
SERVICES PTE LTD

1 Harbourfront Avenue

Keppel Bay Tower

#14-03/07, Singapore 098632

OVERSEA-CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION
LIMITED

65 Chulia Street OCBC Centre

Singapore 049513
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

6L0Z ke Lz J012341Q JuspuUadapu| 3enH Suoyd wITIN
910z J2qua33g 9| 40312241 3uapuadapul unyy| 3204 neH JA
910z Jaqwaaq 9| 1012341Q 9A1INI3XJ-UON Suooy) Joyd 8uey) ,01eQ
910z 4oqua3qg 9| 10123410 9A1INIAXJ-UON Suols ulys yo,01eq
(,002,) 192140
910z 19903120 € | SunesadQ jo1yd pue 1012a41Q SAIINIBXT SuoA Ae7 wi s
(,032,) 490140
9102 Y2JBIA 6 | 9A1INI9XT JaIYD pUB J10123JIQ AIINISXT ug 90A SUQ JN
1012341 1uapuadapu
9107 429010 € | pes7 pue uewJileyD SAIINISXI-UON ley Suels Wi JN "121JU02 JO S3Nss| 3y}
SUIAJOAUI SUOISIDP puB SUOISSNISIP
paiuiodde ajeq uoneusgisag 1032341 Jo dwieN WO} SOAISWIAL) DSNDJ 15349101 10

S12113u0d Suidey si03da41q ‘Aueduwod
:SMO[|0} S S101J3.Ip (/) UA3S Jo sasiidwod pieog oyl ‘1oday [enuuy siyl Jo a1ep ayrie sy | ayl uiyym Aijigejunodde uadoud
S9JNSU3 puk ‘ainy|nd |euoliesiuesio

‘Auedwod ayy | paJisap pue dol-ayl-woij-auol
JO 1524211 159q 3Y3 Ul SaLepNply se ‘sswin [[e 1e AjaA1ndalqo suoisiap ayew o1 pue yie) pood ul | aieudoadde s19s ‘sdiyla pue 1dnpuod
10e 03 ‘sainp siy 1no SulAuied Jo 9s4n0d ayl 3ulinp paldadxa S| J03daJIp Yde3 ‘su031dalid dAIINIaX] | Jo apod e dde|d ul sind pieog ayl
9y} 01 paledajap aJe sa1891eJ1s ssaulsng jo uoneiusawsa|dwi pue juswadeuew Aep-oi-Aeq | "9duewdojiad Joj 3|geiunodde
‘dnoJo ay3 Jo JuswaSeuew »sid pue s|0JIu0d |eudalul Jo Adenbape ayl se ||am se juswaeue|y | Juswadeue|\ pjoy pue Auedwod sy
Aq papinoad sysia A9y sassasse pue aduewJsoyiad |eppueuly pue sapijod ‘sa1891e41S SMIIASJ | JO S1SaJ91Ul 3S9q 9yl ul AjaAndalqo
1] ‘suonesado s,dnoJo ayl Jo jJuswaleuew ayl JO UoISIAIdANS Yl Ul PIA|OAUI S| pJeog 3yl | 108 OYm S3lJedNpPI} ale sJ03daliq L'l

Auedwod aya
10 $$920NnS W93 SU0| aY3 Jo) JusWSSeUR|A YIM SYJom pue 3d|qisuodsal A[9A13D9[|0d SI YdIym pleog dA13I843 ue Ag papesay si Auedwod ay] :| a|didulid

SJ1ejJy J0 30Npuo) s,pieog ayL

SY3ILLVIN Qdvo4d

uoneuejdxy 10 asueljdwo) s,Auedwo) uondiidsag apo) | uoisinoid

'9p0oD 9y Jo ajdpulid yoes Japun Ajoieledss pead Suiaq Jo
peaisul ‘A11je303 ul peas aq pinoys yiodau siy] ‘papiroid aJe suolieue|dxa aieridosdde ‘9po) ay3 Jo suoisinoid ayl WoJy suoieiAIp aJaym pue ‘a|qedidde
2J9YyM ‘9p0D 3yl JO SUOIIEPUIWILIOIDI YY) YIIM MJoMawel) adueultanod ayy udie 01 sdais Alessadau ||e uayel aAey juswadeue|y pue pieog ayl

(.dp02, 243)
810 22UerUJIIA0D 1elodio) Jo 9po) ayl Jo sajdipulid syl 01 apew dduadasad d1yRads Yyum (,2202Ad.) ZZ0Z YdJelN LE papua Jeak jepueuly ayl Sulinp
22e|d Ul a1am eyl sad1ndeld pue saunidnuls 2dueudaA0g a1elodlod s,Auedwod 9yl SaUIIN0 ‘WJ0) Jejngel ul Ino 13s ‘11odal adueutan0g 1elo0dlod syl

‘an|eA JapjoyaJleys wJaai-3uo| Jo uonesiwixew pue Ayjigeaunodde ‘Aoualedsuely oieals
2INSUD 01 St 0S SW1SAS pue sassad04d 23ueulaA08d 21e40da0d S31 uo ddueriodwl saded pue adueulanod a1elodiod Jo spaepuels Y3y Suluieiuiew 0l
paniwwod si (,dnoan, sy ‘sauieipisgns si yim Jayiadol pue ,Auedwor, ay3) paliwi] [0S0IY Mz leinwes jo (,pleog, aY3) Si01daJiqg Jo pieog ayl

SITNY LSITVLVYD ANV 8102 IDNVNYIAOD I1VIO0dA0I 40 30D FIHL OL IDNVITdINOI NI Ld0dId TYNNNVY ¥04 378VL 3-dNSOT1OSIa

15

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘sp|al 123lgns
JUBAS[DJ UO S|} pue SIRUIWSS SE ||[9M Se Sallljiqisuodsal pue sa1anp ,SJ012941p U0 S3SIN0D Se
yons awil 01 aWil WoJy S1032341g 3yl 03 d|ge|ieAe apew aJe sawwelsdoisd Sujuiely Sulog-uo pue
SNoONUIIUOD ‘Spaau Sululell |eNPIAIPUI UMO JI3Y3 Jo} 3|qisuodsal Ajjetauas aJde S10123J41q 9yl 9|IYM

‘Auedwo) ay3 01 s10122.41Q
se sanljigisuodsal pue suoledigo J1ayl SuiINdaxa Ul Wayl 1sisse [|IM 1eyl sasinod Sululedy
pue 92UaJ24U0D ‘SJRUIWSS PUSIIe 01 PadeJnodUd ale SJ01daJlg 9yl ‘pleog ayl 01 paie|nduid
aJe sJ012aJig 9yl 01 a|gedijdde aie yoiym 1S-XOS 2yl Ag panss| sasea|al MaN ‘padnpoiul ale
dnoJo ayl 8undajje suoiendad 40 SMe| MaU UaYM ‘awil 03 dWi) WwoJy ‘paiepdn aJle si0133a.iq 9yl

JUENEY
Japun Jeak ayy Sulnp pajuiodde J031da41g MaU OU Sem 343y 'SJ031da41q 4o 91nasu| asodeduls Aq
pasiue8Jo sse|d Sululely pualle ||Im sioidadiq paiulodde Aimau |y |suuosiad juswaSeuew Aoy
Ul YuM 199w Jayla80)1 pue sall|ide) pue sadio ‘leuonelado s, dnoin ayl disia 01 Ayuniioddo
9y UBAIS 3Q OS|e ||Im J03123J1g 9y) ‘sanssl adueldwod Aioie|ndal pue A10inieis JueAd|al se
[|]oM se suol1daJip 21891e41s ‘suolyedado ssauisng ‘sauolsajiwl Asy pue Aioisiy s,dnoio ayi jo
Suipuelsiapun 43119 B UlPIQO O] ‘UOIIBWJOUI JUBA3|J-Ai3snpul yam papiroid aq pue Auedwod
p33S!| B JO J0}23JIp B JO SaINp paidadxa ay) se [|dm se ssauisng s,dnoJo syl uo pajaliq ag pjnom
103123410 9Y3 aJaym swwelsdoud uojleualio ue o3uspun [|IM SJ01dadig paiulodde Amau ||V

‘dnoJo ay) jo 1saJ1ul
33 Ul suoispap aAndalqo ayey 01 pue yiey poos ui 10 03 padiiqo ale pue dnolo 3yl Jo sdieye

‘11odau jenuue s,Auedwod ayy
Ul paso|dsip aJe sJoldaJdip SullsIXd
pue mau 0} papiroid jusawdol|anap
pue uluiesy ‘uondNpPU| Y| ‘dsuadxa
s, Auedwod ayl 1e a8pamouy pue
SIS 419y uleiutew pue dojansp
01 saniuniioddo yum papinoid ale
$J03123J1q (s4032941p 1uapuadapul
pue 9AIINIIXD-UOU  ‘DAIINIIXD
se s9|0J4 JI1ayl Suipnjdul) sannp
diysJ03123.1p J19Y3 Se [|]9M Se Ssaulsng

ssaulsng ayl yam 3uijeap ul Juawdpnl yuspuadapul pue 22uadijip anp 3SIDJaXd SJ012a41Q ||V | S.Auedwod syl pueisiapun sJo1daliq Al
‘92ueUIaA0S 91e40dJ0D o) AJljIgIsuodsal awNsse pue uolle|nwJio) d18a1e.als
S} Jo y4ed se ‘(SJ01dej [BIDOS pUB |BIUBWUOJIAUD "8'9) sanssl A}ljigeuleisns Japisuod ()
pue ‘39U pue pPo03ISJapun aJe SIIP|0Y3els JaYl0o pue siapjoyaleys o) suonesiqo
Jey3 SaJNSUd pue ‘(spJepueis [edlyla 3uipnjpul) spJepueis pue sanjea s,dnoJg ay) 13s (3
‘uoneindal s,dnoun
9y1 129ye suondadiad Jiayl 1eya asiugodras pue sdnoud uapjoyayeis Asy ayr Alnuapi (p)
‘dnoJo aya Jo aduewso)iad [eldueuly pue aduewloiad Jusawadeuew 3yl MaIAI )
'syasse
s,dnoJo ay) pue sisaJdaiul siapjoyaJleys jo Suipiendajes Sulpn|pul ‘paSeueul pue passasse
9Q 01 SYSIJ S9|BUd YdIYM S|0JIUOD DAIID}}2 pue juapnid Jo yJomawed) e ysigeiss  (q)
‘saAndalqo si1 199w 03 dnouo ay) Joy ade(d ul aJe
S92JN0SaJ Uewny pue [epueuly A1essadau ay3 1eyy 3ulnsua ajiym ‘dnous ay3 jo sapijod
51891e41S 9Y) S12941p pue saAndalgo 21891ea3s 19s ‘diysiapes| |elanauasdaliua apiaoud (e)
:0} S| 9|0J S,pJieog 9y
uopneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo) uondiidsag apo) | uoisinoad

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

16



‘110dau jenuue s,Auedwod

Yl Ul paso[IsIp aJe ‘salllallde
S,99131WWO0D Yydes jo Alewwns e pue
‘sUOISIDap dyew 03 AyJoyine s,pieog
9yl Jo uone3aap Aue ‘sruausyal
JO SWJ3) By} ‘SIagUUdW 991HWWO0I
3yl JO Saweu 3yl ‘pJeog 8yl 03
yoeq 3dunJdodas 3uipnppul ‘sannp
'ss9204d Supew-UoISIIAP S,pJe0g AU 93RUIWOP S|eNPIAIPU| J0 dNOJS [|eWS JO |eNPIAIPUl OU | pue  s3lilioyine ‘suolyisoduwod

pue pJeog syl uo Juawa|d Juapuadapul pue SuoJls e S| 313yl ‘pJeog oy 4o (/1) pAIyl-auo i1sed| | 419yl 1no Su(11ds 2dUJd3aJ 4O
18 dn ayew sJ031daJi1q Juapuadapu] ay3 se pue ‘wed) Juawadeuew ay) jo 1ed Jou pue J03daJIQ | SWIS) USIIJIM JB3|D UMM pPawoy
yuapuadapul ue s| ey Suels Wi JN ‘UBwJIRYD DAIINIDXI-UON dYL °SJ01daJ4ig Iuspuadapu| | aJte ‘(Aue }1) S9313IWIWOD dAIINIDX]
9Je WOYM JO (€) 9343 'SJ1012JIp (£) UdASS saslidwod pieog ay) ‘1dodads S|yl jo d1ep ayl 1e sy | Suipnjdul  ‘saalljwwod  pJeogq 'l

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘pJeog syl Aq pardope usaq oOs|e sey UOISIIP S,pJeog ay) J0) PaAISSaI 9q 03 aJe YdIym
(9n0ge 1IN0 13S sua11ew 3yl Suipnjdul) sJa1lew pue sauljapIing ayl Ino Sui1ISS JUSWNIOP [BWI0)

‘'suonnyisul jepueul Aq paiueld sanijine) Supjueg 03 SIUSWIWIWOD °
pue ‘Sjuawadunouue S3NsSaJ [elpUeUL °
Juawadeuew ysiJ pue S|0J3u0d [eutaul °
‘uonesuadwod SAIINIBXD °
‘s9duewojiad JuswaSeuew pue [eppuUBUL °
‘sue|d ssauisng pue 128pnq s,dnouo °
‘saAndalqo pue saidaelis a1esoduod °
‘SJ9P|OYaJeysS 03 SUINIaJ J9YI0 pue SPUSPIAIP ‘Saduenss| aleys °
‘s3uimouloq ° ‘110daJ jenuue s,Auedwod
‘s UBLLISAAUI Jofew o | YUY UL pasopsip aue jenosdde
pJeoq SuliinbaJ sia1ieN "Sunum ul
!s)asse Jo s|esods|p pue suonisinboe |elialew e | Juswadeue|\ 03} SIY) S21LIIUNWWIOD
Kjaea|d pue |enaosdde sy aainbau
:8uinjoAul 9soy aJe axueping Jo [eaoddde s,paeog ayl adinbad Ajjediynads yaiym siailew ayl | 1eyl siallew uo sapldap pJeog ayl €1l

ssauisng [e331g OZO pue ureydo|g
aAndadsiad Juswaseur\ %Sy V - 0102 Vddd
Jeuigap 198png pue xel

A831e11S UOESUSAWOD) SAIINDSXT

S92UaO uondnuio) 4oy Ayjiger] a1esodiod
SunJoday |epueulq UNoA 1o} SSY4 [elnuass]

:$354n02 Sujules) SUIMO||0) 3Y) papuUdIIe BARY SJ0123.1J ‘2Z0ZA4 Suling

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo) uondiidsag apo) | uoisinoad

17

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Suooy) Joyd 3ueyd ,01eq

3uols ulys yoi ,03eg

jeny uoyd wi

N[ N

unyy| 3J0H ney

SuoA Aeq win

u3 0A SuQ
ley Suels wi

NN [ N[N N | NN
-
—

N[N [N[N|N| NN

10373.41p Jo dwen

[4 l l 4 4 pI2y sSunaaw jo JaquinpN

Sunesspy Y| N Y\ paeog
|eaduan

:MO[3g 1N0 135 3Je ZZ0ZA4 Sulinp Jo1daiig
yoea Jo 2duepualle JO pJodad 3yl pue sSuilLaw 99111WWO0) pieog pue pJeog Jo Jaquinu ayl

'SUOIIN|0SaJ UMM Jo Aem Aq Supjew uoisidap Joj
pJeog ay1 01 1nd os|e aJe dnoio ay) Suipiedal sia1rew juersodwi ‘sdunnaaw Sulpjoy 031 uonippe
U] ‘(,uo1IN3IIsSuo),) uoiniisuo) s,Auedwo) ayl Japun panjwlad si sduneaw e 3udUIU0D
03pIA pue SUIDUSIRJUOI-3[3] ‘Siaqwaw pJeog oyl Ag 21eridoidde pawssp se ‘saaueISWNIIID

‘Auedwod yoes
JO sJiejje 3yl 01 USAIZ aJe uonuale
pue awil JUDIJINS 1eY) 24NSUD
suoneiluasaldas pieoq adinuw yium
$10312241Q "1JodaJ jenuue s,Auedwod
9yl ul paso|dsip aJe s3unsaw
yons 1B S2duepudlle  S,1031d3JIp
[enpiAlpul yoea pue s3unsaw yasns
JO Jaquunu 9y ‘sSunsaw 99131WWO0)
pieoqg pue pieog ul 21edidnied

Jejndnued Aq pajuesdiem se pue Jeak [elpueul) Yyoea Ul saWwll (Z) OM] 1Sed| 1e s19aw pJeog 3yl | A|]9A13dE  pue pualle SJ1031d3.4id Sl
1ey Suels wi unyy 320H neH unyy| 3d0H neH JOqUIBIA
1enH Suoyd wi ey Suels wiq 1enH Suoyd wi J9qUIBIN
unyy ¥20H neH 1enH Suoyd wi ey Suels wi uewueyd
o). | JN NV
!SMOJ|0} SE 9Je S9913IWWO0D pJeogd ay3 o suoiisodwod aAdadsal ayy
‘110day |enuuy SIyl JO 21ep 3yl 1e Sy ‘pJeog ayl Yim saj| sJa1iew |je uo Aljigisuodsal ayewnin
9Y) ‘SUOEPUIWIWOI3J JO /pUB SUOISIIIP JI9Yl YlIM pieog 3yl 01 ydeq 1Jodal ||Im pue sanssi
Jeindiyied aulwexa 031 A3J0yINe 2yl 9ARY S9913WWOD pJeog 3sayl 3|iym leyl sidadde puaeog
9Y] '92UdJ3)aJ JO SWI) dAIIASAU JI9Y) U] IN0 13S 4B 23}WWO0D pieog ydea Jo sanljigisuodsal
pue sanloyine ‘sainp ayl ‘pleog ayl Aq patoliuow pue 0l pallodal aie suolde asoym pue
90UDJ343J JO SWJI] UM UMO S} SBY 23)13/WW0) pJeogd 3yl Jo yded *(,S9a33iwwo) pieog, ay3)
(,D2¥,) 911WWO0D UoheJIBUNWY PUe (,IN,) 991WWO0)D SuleUIWON ‘(,J¥V,) 9911WWO0D Xsiy pue
1pny 2yl Ajpweu ‘sa9111llwod pieog snolieA ayl 01 suoilduny ulellad pajesas|ap sey pJeog ayl
uopneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo) uondiidsag apo) | uoisinoad

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

18



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘Auedwo) aya Ag auldoq sI dd1Ape |euoissajoad yons |je Jo 1502
9yl Aiessadau JI ‘@2iApe |euoissajoud yuspuadapul a1eledas yaas Aew ‘dnoud e se Jo Ajjenplalpul
JOYMD ‘SJ012341Q 9yl ‘uoiippe U] ‘A|9AIIa4a sanljigisuodsal Jay/siy adJeyasip 031 ‘Aiessadau
uaym pue se ‘siosiape [euolssajold Juspuadapul s,dnoJn ayi 03 SSa33€ 1D3JIp dARY SJ03d3JIQ ||V

‘lenoadde s,pieog ay3 031 123[gns aJe Aieradas Auedwod
ay3 Jo |eAowas ay) pue juswiulodde ay] ‘Aierasdas Auedwo) ayir 01 ssadde juspuadapul pue
91eJedas aAeY SJ03D3JIp SYL "USXE] SUOISIDSP puUe SuojIelaqiap A9y U0 SUOISSNISIP JO SPJ0daJ pue
s3ulPaw 93)1|WWO0) pJeog pue pleog Jo SpJodaJ ay) Jo adueualulew Jadoud ay) Joy d|qisuodsal
os|e sI Aieraldas Auedwo) ayl "pleog ayl 01 paiendld ale s8ujlsaW ,S$9913IWWo) pieog pue
pJeog jo sainuiw ayl ‘yyum paljdwod aJe suonendal pue sajnJ ajgedijdde 1eyl pue ‘pamoj|oy
2Je sainpadoid pJeog eyl sainsus pue Auedwo) Y3 JO S991WWO0D pJeog pue pJieog ayi Jo

S|oym e se pieog ay3
4O uolIsIDap e sI Auerasdas Auedwod
9yl JO |eAowsals pue juswaiulodde
9yl -asuadxa s,Auedwod ayy e
(AJeSS2I3U 249YM) SIISIAPE |BUIDIXD
pue ‘Aserssdas Auedwod sy
Juawadeue|y 03 ssadde Juapuadapul

sdunaaw ||e spuane Aueiaadas Auedwo) ayl Jo anneiuasaldad e Jo/pue Aueaadas Auedwo) syl | pue aiesedas aAeY SJ401d34IQ L'l
‘sy10adsoud pue uonisod ‘@duewlo)iad s,dnolo syl JO JUSWSSISSE PAaWLIOLUI
pue paduejeq e ayew 01 pJeog a3yl d|geus 01 AJessadau S| 1eyl Jo sioidalig Agq paisanbau s
1Byl uopewJojul Jo |elidlew |euolippe Aue apiaold osje ||im |auuosiad juswaSeuew Ay
IEEEE sonsnels duipjoyaleys g
Alaeap 1i0dal (,y1.) ,S101PNY [euany| 14
Aj1eak jjeH Aynnoe a1esoduod pauueld Jo ulo3-uo uo 1ioday €
Aj1eak jjeH saJuelieA ay3 uo uoleue|dxa ayi Suipnjpul 3sedalo) pue 193png z
sdduelieA 3yl uo uoneue|dxa ‘san|Igisuodsau
Ajeak jjeH | ay3 Suipnjpul ‘uonyisod |epueuly Ajueak jjey pue siaded puaeog L pue saninp Jidyly agieydsip pue
X b SUOISID9P pPawJojul ew 031 Wwayl
Juanbal4 uonewuojui 9|geus 03 siseq Zujo3-uo ue uo
pue s3uneaw 031 Jolid uolzewJoul
:7Z0TZA4 10} s101d241 Juspuadapul | Ajpwin pue arenbape ‘a19|dwod yim
0} |auuosJtad yuswadeuew A3y Ag papinodd uonewdojul pue adA1 syl s1no 19s 9|gel Suimo|jos 3yl | SJ01d34ip sapiaosd juswadeue|n 91
uopneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo) uondiidsag apo) | uoisinoad

19

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘pleog
9U3 JO SuluoIdUNY 9AI1I94D 9yl J0J 98pajmouy Aiasnpul pue aoualladxa Juswadeuew Jo ssauisng
‘le33] ‘@aueul) 4o uipunodde se yons sapualaduwod pue adualiadxa ‘asniadxa jo xiw aierudoidde
9y) sey pJeog 1uasaid 2yl 18yl M3IA 9yl JO OS|e aJde DN 8yl pue pieog ayl ‘dnouo ayl Joj
21erudoudde ase uonisodwod pue azis s,pJeog 1Ua4inNd Y3 1eY) palsines ale JN pue pieog ayl

‘91enbape
S| uonisodwod s,pieog syl Jayiaym SunenjeAs Ul SISeq |enuue ue uo yJom Jo 2dods pue
9si1Jadxa JO seade ‘SUOIINGIJIU0D ,SJ01da41g BYI ‘Do 42Ul ‘IUNOIIe 0JUl el DN pue pJeog ayl

‘Suijew-uoisiap
UDID Yim Sullagaaiul 1noyiim A3sIaAIp Juadiyns sapinodd 3| ‘dnodo ayy aAuas AjPA1D94)9
S99111WWO0) pieog ay) Jo uonisodwod 3uisixa ayl pue azis pJeoq uaJdind Sl 1Byl SaAdaljaq
‘ON 2Yl Y3IM 2d2Ua44NdU0d Ul ‘pieog ayl ‘S99llwwo) pieog pue pleog ay)y Jo uonisodwod
ay) 01 sadueyd wody suondnlsip anpun pIoOAE 01 Paau ay) pue ssauisng ayl Jo siuawalinbal
3yl pue ‘sassaulisng s,dnoJo ayl Jo ainieu pue adods ayl paJapisuod SUIARH "S2311WWIO0D
pJeog pue piJeog ayl jo uonisodwod pue azis ayl duluiwexa Joj 3|qisuodsal s IN 9yl

3J0dal
|enuue s,Auedwod ayl ul paso|Isip
2J4e ‘saandalgo Suipnpur ‘Adxijod
KysJanlp pJeoq ayy Sunuawa|duwl
spiemol apew ssaJdSoud pue
Ao1jod A1isianip pleoq ayy "oieqeap
9A110NJISU0D U210 pue yulyidnoud
ploAe 01 se os ‘@8e pue Japuad se
yons AJisianlp jo s1dadse Jaylo pue
‘9aualiadxa ‘@8pajmous ‘S||IMs JO Xiw
pue aoue|eq a1eludosdde ayy apinoud
dnoJ8 e se oym sJordadip asiudwod
pue ‘szis oajeludoisdde ue Jo aJe
S9911/WWO0Dd pJeoq pue pieog ayl

e

“S10123.Ip 9AIINIIXI-UOU 3Je SIaquiaw pJieog ay) jo Aolew ay |

‘pJeog ay1 Jo Ayiolew
e dn 9yew SJ031daJIp dAIINIBIXS-UON

€¢

‘Juspuadapul sI pJeog ay Jo uewdieyd ayL

“Juspuadapul Jou S| uewJieyd
9yl aJaym pieog ayl jo Ajuolew
e dn 9yew sJ03da4ip usapuadapu

(x4

Juspuadapul 3g 01 J0U WY JO Aue Wasp 3SIMI3YI0
pinom 1eyl apo) ayl ul paieis se diysuone|as Aue aaey Jou op sJ03da4iq uspuadapu] syl

‘uoljeJe|dap aduspuadapul Jiayl papiroid aaey s101da41q Juspuadapul
9yl ||e pue zzoz AeN Gz uo pjay 3unsaw DHN 9yl Sulinp 3ap0d 3yl Yiim aduepiodde ul
9duapuadapul 419yl pawJuod os|e pey s1031dalig Juapuadapu| ay] “yuspuadapul aie unyy 320H
neH JIN pue 1enH Suoyd wig JA ‘1ey uels w7 JA 1Byl M3IA 33 JO S| pue pamalAal pey DN dYL

‘Auedwod ay3 Jo S1saJalUl 1599 Y}
ul Juswa8pn( ssauisng yuspuadapul
S,J010341p 3Yl JO 3SI2JaX3d 3yl Yyim
‘9J494491U1 01 paAnlddiad Ajgeuoseal
9Q JO ‘2J3jJ421Ul P|N0d 1eY) SJIIHO
S11 JO sJap|oyaleys |elnueisqns si
‘suonelodiod pajejas sy ‘Auedwod
2y} yum diysuone|al ou sey
pue ‘“yuawadpn[ pue Jd1deJdRYD
1oNpuod Ul uapuadapul SI oym
U0 S| J01d3JIp ,uspuadapul, uy

L'c

‘Auedwod ay3 JO S3SaJ9IUI 3S9Q 9Y3 Ul SUOISIIDP
axew 03 1] d|geua 03 uonisodwod s Ul punoJ8ydeq pue ysnoyy Jo AISIaAIp pue aduspuadapul Jo [9A9] dielidoadde ue sey pieog syl :z 9|ddulid

asueping pue uonisodwo) pieog

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

20



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

*S10123.1 9AIINDXJ BY) JO UONLIBUNW
ay1 pue juawdojanap diysiapes| se ||am se Suluueld UoissadINS 'sassad0ld paeoq ‘saAleniul
2xueuJan08 a1edodliod ‘@duewojiad [edueuly s,dnodn ayl se Yyons SJaiiew uo juswaseue|y
33 Jo 92udsald Byl INOYUM SISBg-pPaau & Uo 193W JOo/pue SSNISIP SJ03dadig Juspuadapu| ayl

"'SM3IA pUE seapl Jo a8ueydXa |NJasn ay3 Joj Smojje
pue dnoJo ayi 01 a|gen|eAul aie a8Pa|MouUy pue adualiadxa 9AI123||0d puUE sJieje 21eJodiod uo
juawa8pn( aAndalqo ,s4012341Q 9yl “JuswaSeue|y 031 ddueping puaixs pue ‘sanndalfqo pue sjeod
pa2J43e Sunsaw ul Juswadeue|y Jo aduewlopiad syl malnal ose pue ASs1es1s uo sjesodoud
dojanap djay pue a8usjieyd A|SAIIDNJISUOD 031 SJ03I3JIJ SAIINISXJ-UON Yl S9|geua siyl

‘KloA1n23)49 suonouny 1ySISIaA0 J1ayl 984eydsip 03 S924N0saJ pue
SWI) JUSIDIYNS dARY pue ‘Juswadeue|y 03 SS922e PaIdLIIsalun aaey A3yl ‘uonewJlojul Ajpwin pue
919|dwod ‘@1e4ndde Ag parioddns ||am aJe si01da41g Juspuadapu| ay3 1eyl a4nsua o] ‘ul saresado
dnoJo ayy Auasnpul 8yl Inoge 3|qeasdpajmous g pue ssauisng s,dnoJds ay) Jo pawojul ||am 1day

‘21eludoudde se uewusieyd
Jo/pue pJeog 3yl 01 deqpasy
sapinodd sdueaw yons Jo uewdieyd
9yl ‘juswsadeuel jo dduasaid ayl
1noyym Ajiein3als 19aw ‘sjerndoadde
se JoldaJip juapuadapul Jaylo
JO uewuJleyd 2uspuadapul oyl
Aq pa3| ‘sdoidaJdip uspuadapul Jo

90 1SNW ‘SJ0323J1g dAIINISXI-UON 3Je YdIym ‘sio1daJiq Juapuadapul ay3 Ajejndniied ‘pieog ayl | /pue  SJ03ID3J4IP  DAIINIAIXI-UON (o4
"SJ0323J41p JUdqWindU| Jo Juawiulodde-aJ ay) Jo/pue S103133J1p Mau
J0 Juswiulodde ay) 4o} UCIIEPUIWIWOIAI SH Ul SISIIIXD 9SAY) JO SI|NSSJ dY3 JOPISUOD [|IM DN dYL
‘pJeog
ay1 Ag Supjoe| si yaiym asntadxas jo a8ues ayl Suipueisiapun 01 M3IA B Ylm ‘ssassod
SJ0122J41 J49Yl0 3Y3 SIS [|IMS Y3 4O Jeak e 9duo0 1sed| 1e sJ01dalig 9yl Ag uolien|ea °
pue ‘pJeog ayl uswa|ddns
10 Uayl8uaiis 01 padinbalu sxualiadxa 40 9s1349dXd PaJISap Y dUILWIIDP 01 J9PJ0o Ul Jeak
B 9JUO 1se?| 1e pJeog 9yl Jo sapualadwod pue saingluiie 3uilsixa ayl SMaIAJ DN YL °
:A)ISJ9AIp pue ddue|eq Sil ueyua Jo ulelujew o) sdais Suimo||o) Yl uaxel sey pJieog ayl
‘Ko110d A3isaanip paeoq paxiy e aAey 1ou saop Auedwo) ayl
%09 ¥ 93pa|Mouy| 10 ddualladxa paseq Jawoisn)
%001 / 9duanadxa Suiuue|d 218918115
%62 Z 9dualIadxa 40 98pajmou Aiasnpul Juenslay
%Y € 9JualJadxa 91e40duod Jo |87
%001 L Juawadeue ssaulsng
%62 Z 9dueul} Jo SunRUNOIY
pieog jo uoniodoud | s4032941Q Jo JBqWINN sapualadwo) a10)
:SMmo[|0} se dnoup
9y3 03 a3pajmouy| pue adualtadxa ‘s||s Jo Ausianlp e sapinodd uolisodwod pieog uadind ayl
uopneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo) uondiidsag apo) | uoisinoad

21

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

'9p0D Y3 Yam
2oueldwod Sulinsua ul pea| ay) el os|e |[IM aH ‘o1elidoiddeur S| uoneIIUNWWOD YdNS I9YM
JO uolnnjosas ou sey (,J4,) 49[]0J1U0D |eIdDURUI4 JO/PUBR OFD dYI YUM S|auueyd [ewJdou y3noayl
UOIIB2IUNWIWOD YdIYM SINSS| JO SUIDIUOD 3Je 9J3Y) 3J9YM SUOIeNlS Ul SiapjoyaJleys Joj uosiad
12B1U0D 3Y3 SI 9H ‘SJapjoyaJeys su pue Auedwo) ayl U9aM1Iaq SUOIIBIIUNWILIOD A}V SINSUD
[|]oM se ‘Jusawadeur|y ayl pue pieog 2yl U9aM1aq pue pleog oyl UIYIIM SUOIIR[J SAIIDNIISUOD
sadeunodus aH "2JueuJaA0S d1es0da0d JO spaepuels YSiy saiowodd pue SJ01da4ig SAIINIDXT
-UON JO UOIINQIIIUO0D DAIIIBYD dYI S21e)|1De) OS|e 9H "pJeog Yyl 1B uoIssNIsIp pue ssauuado
JO 24n3n2 e sajowold pue ‘sanss| d18a1e41s Jeindided ul ‘swall epuade |[e JO UOISSNISIP 10y
d|ge|ieAe s awiy a1enbape 1eyl sainsus pue s3ueaW pJeog ay) SJeyd aH "uonewJsoiul Ajlpwi
pue a1enbape ‘919|dwod yim papinoad ade si031da41q 1Byl sainsua pue epuade 3uileaw s,pieog
93 S19s 9H AJeSS2I9U USYM PAUIAUO0)D aJe sSullLaw pieog 1Byl S9JNSUS OS|e pue UoISSNIsIp
pJeog 2yl spea| Jo1daJig Juspuadapu| peaq pue uewdieyd SAIINISXI-UON Y3 ‘1ey uels wiq JA

‘91enbapeu
1o 21eridoaddeul aie JuswaSeue|y Jo
uewieyd 9yl Yim uonedunuwuwiod
JO s|auueyd JewJou 3yl ysnoayy
12B1U0D UYDIYM JOJ pUB SUISIUO0D dARY
A3 a1aym siapjoyaJeys 03 a|ge|jieae
S| J0312241p juapuadapul pes| ayl
Juapuadapul J0uU S| uewldieyd ayl
uaym Ajerpadss pue ‘paidijjuod
S| UBWJIRYD 9yl 2J9ym Suolenis
ul diysiapea| apinodd 031 J03daJIp
juspuadapul pes| e sey pJeog ayl

€

‘pJeog ay) pue jusawadeuelp
U29M12Q UOIIBDIUNWWOD dAIIDNJIISUOD sa3eunodua os|e 03D 9yl 'saakojdwas s,dnoun ays
01 2cueping 3uipinoid pue ‘dnoJo ayiy Jo duewdollad syl uo paeog ayi 01 yoeq Sunsodal
‘sa1891e.3s s,dnouo ayl Suiniaxs pue 3uidojaAap ‘dnolo ayy Jo saniAlde ssauisng Aep-o3-Aep ays
Suideuew ssedwodua ‘03D pue J012341Q SAIINISXT dY3 ‘UJ OA SUQ JIN JO sanljiqisuodsal ayl

‘03D 3y pue uewureyd
9yl usamiaq sanljiqisuodsau
JO UOISIAIp 3yl Suniam ul 1no
S19S pue saysijgeisa pJeog ayl

[43

1230 Yded 03 pale[aJl 10U aJde ‘03D pue J03daJig dAIINISXT Y3 ‘U 3XOA SUQ JIN pue 40123lig
Juapuadapu| pea7 pue uewJdiey) AIINIIXI-UON ay1 ‘Iey Suels wiq JA Jamod Jo uolles3usduod
9|qeJapIsuod e siuasaidal [enplAlpul dUO OU 1eyl yons ‘Aiioyine pue Jamod jo sduejeq e si
9133 S24Nsua YdIym ‘03D pue uewdieyd ayl Uusamiaq sanljigisuodsal JO UOISIAIP Jes)d e S| a4yl

‘ujew uoispap Juspuadapul
1o} pJseog ayi jo Aypeded usreals
pue ‘Ailjigeiunodde pasealdul
Jamod Jo aduejeq o1elsdoudde
ue aJnsua 03 suostad 3Iledsedas
dle 03D 9yl pue uewdieyd ayl

3

‘8uew-uoisap Jo siamod
paJ13a4un sey [enpiAlpuUl U0 OU pue ‘Jusawadeuey pue pieog ayl jo diysiapes| ayi Usamiaq saliljiqisuodsal Jo UOISIAIP Jesjd e S| aJay] :€ a|dipulid

1321330 9AI3NI3XT J3IYD pue uewaieyd

"ZZ0ZA4 Ul [uuosJad Juswadeuew Aoy Jo aduasqe ayy ul AjaAndadsal awi (1)
2UO SJOIIPNE [eulalul PUB [BUJDIXD Y] YIM PISSNISIP pue 1aw pey SJoidaldig wuspuadapul ayl

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

22



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘pJeog ay) Jo) sswwesdoud Juswdo|ansp |euoissajold pue Suiuredy syl SUIMaIAS
pue !SJI92140 9AIINISXT pue S10312341J 9AIINISXT 9Y3 Joj suejd uoiIssa2dNs ay3 SuImalnal

JuswAojdwa Jiay) Jo swal pasodoid ay3 pue sisp|oyaJleys [elaueisqns Jo Ssiad1o
9AIIN29XT ‘S10323J1Q Y3 01 paie|aJ suosiad jo uswAhojdwsa ayy Suinoidde pue Suimalnal

‘anjeA ,sJapjoyaleys wial-8uo| padueyus sey pJeog syl Moy ssalppe pue ‘sisad
Aaisnpui sii yum uosiiedwod smojje 1eyy pieog ayi Aq pasoidde se ‘elia11ud aduewo)iad
aAIDa[qo asodoud pue pajenjeas ag Aew sduewJsojiad s,pieog syl moy apidep 03

‘10122JIp e se salInp siy 1no 3uikiied
K|o1enbape usaq sey pue 01 a|qe sI Auedwo) ay3 JO 1031da41g e 10U JO Jaylaym Suipidap

‘syuswiiwwod jedpulad Jaylo spiemol
sanp siy Suidieydsip pue spieog a|dijnw Uo SUIAISS USYM J10123liJ 9yl Aq pade) aJe eyl
SjusWIWWod awin Sunadwod ayy 01 pJedal Suiaey Jo3dalig se sainp siy ino Sulkiied
A|21enbape usaq sey pue 03 3|ge S| 401341 YINS 10U JO J3YIdYym apIIap pue malaal oy ‘Aue
J1 ‘sajueduwod snolieA uo suoiejuasaldal pieoq a|dijnw sey oym Joidadiq e jo 10adsal ul

Juspuadapui si Auedwod aya jo
J03122J1Q € 10U JO JayIaym ‘alinbas seoueIswiniJd usym pue se pue ‘Ajjenuue ujuiwiaisp

‘xuewloglad pue uoiINQLIIU0D S,4012341Q aY) 01 pJedas Suiney pue Sunosw |esauad
|enuue yoea 1e UojINIISU0D) 3yl YIIM 3DUBPI0IIE Ul UOIIID|9-34 JO) SJ03Ia41d SUSIXS ay)
JO uoleujwou-aJ 3yl Suipnjpul ‘syuswiulodde pieog uo pieog ayl 01 SUIPUSWIWIOII

QuswAoidws Jiay)
JO swiJa) pasodoud pue suositad paiejas Jo JuswAhojdwas mau Aue Suinoidde pue Suimainal

)
C)

(3)

(€)

(®)

(P)

o)

(Q)

(e)

:0i{o 423Ul ‘BpN|PUI DN BY3 JO S3j0.
A3 3Y1 pue 25UaI3a4 JO SWISY BY] “Ieak jeidueul) yoes ul Sunssw (1) auo 1ses| e spjoy DN Yyl

enH SuoyD Wi JA S DN 9Y3 JO Uewiey) ayL "1enH Suoy)
WIT JIN pUB unyy }20H NeH JIA ‘1ey Suels wiq JA ‘si032a.41q Juspuadapul ay) sasiudwod JN ayL

‘(Aue 41
‘sJ032941p S1euJdlje Suipnpdul)
sJo31daldlp JOo 1uawjulodde
-9J pue juawiulodde ay

pue s10323J41p S} pue
pJeog ayy Joj sswwelsdoud
juswdo|anap |euoissajouad
pue SululeJd) JO M3IIASJ Y]

!S1032341p
pue s$393)}3lWWOd pJeoq S}
‘pJeog ay) jo sduewdojiad
9yl JOo uolien|eAs 4o}
B119114D pue ssadold ay)

‘l]auuosiad
1uswadeuew A3y pue 03D ayd
‘uewdieyd ay3 Jo usawade|dal
Jo/pue  juawiulodde syl
Jejndiyded Ul ‘sioldadip Joy
sue|d UoISS3IINS JO MIIASJ Y]

(P)

)

(Q)

(e)

:01 Sunea4 S1911eW JUBAD|D
Uo pJeog ayl 01 suolepPUBWWOI
9Yew 01 DN e saysljgeiss pieog ayl

L'y

‘pJeog ay) Jo [emaual aAaissalgoud
J0J Pa3U 31 3UN0ddEe 03Ul U e) ‘S103d3J1p Jo Juswiulodde-aJ pue Juswiulodde ayy Jo) ssadoud Jusiedsuely pue [ew.oy) e sey pieog ayl i a|didulid

diysiaquiajy paeog

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

23

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘lenoidde pue uoeJapISuUod J4o) pieog
3U) 01 91epIpued pal1ddds dYl puawWwWodIal pinom JHN ayL

J0123lIp
J0 Jjuswiuloddy

*K11]102INS JIBY) SSasse 0}

Ssa1epipued pPaisilIoys

's10312241Q 3y} Aq pasodoud sajepipued JapIsuod pjnom JN aYL

S9)epIpued PaISI}IoYS Y} MIIAIDIUI pue 133U P|NOM DN ¥yl | JO JUBWSSASSY
*A1BSS9I9U 3J3YM SIURINSUOD YDJeas |euJaixa agedua Aew
pue sJapjoyaJleys |elaueIsgns Jo [uuosiad jusawaSeuew Aay sajepipued

9|qeyns Joj ydieas

‘pJeog ayy usayi8ualils
pue jusawadwod 01 pJieog SuUIISIXd Yl JO SISSIUNLIM
pue syiguaJis ayl JO IX2IU0d 3y ul painbas aie eyl s|s
pue asi1adxa JO SWJa) Ul pJeog 2yl JO SpPasu 1uaLINd 3yl 1491142 UOIII3|3S
Aj13uapl pjnom pJeog 2yl Yilm UO[ILINSUOD Ul ‘DN 9yl | JO uolleulwliala(Q 1

:S10123.Ip Mau Jo Juswiujodde pue UonIS|BS Y3 Jo) ssad0.4d aY3 1IN0 S13S 3|gel SUIMO|0) By L

‘110daJ |enuue s,Auedwod ayy ul
saiepipued aieidoidde Joy Suiydiess
Ul Pasn S|auuUeYD pue SJ01I3JIP MaU
|elauslod aienjers pue Ajuspl o3l
pasn e 2yl Suipnjpul ‘pieogq
dY) 031 SJ01daJIp jo juswiujodde-a.
pue juawaiuiodde ‘UoIIdB|IS BY) 4O}
ssad0.4d ay3 sasopasip Auedwod ay)

1S4

"IN 2Y3 JO JaquiaW e s 4031221 Juspuadapul pea] ayl pue
juspuadapul aJe siaquiaw DN ||V ‘Pieod ay3 o uonisodwod ay3 4o} | Uoisiroid 01 Ja)aJ aseald

‘ON
9yl JO Jaqwiaw e s| ‘Aue JI 403daJIp
juapuadapul pes| ayl usapuadapul
aJe ‘uewdieyd DN 2yl Suipnjoul
‘woym jo AKyuolew ayy ‘sioidauip
994y1 31ses| 1e saspdwod JN dylL

[

"19172W 1ey) 01 Sune|al ssaxoud |eaosdde pue mainal ayl ul Suinedidinied wody ureisqe
M 3y ‘DN 2y Ag uodn pajelaqijap Suiaqg Jailew e ul 1saJaiul ue sey JN 243 jo Jaquiaw Aue
12Ul 1UaA2 3y) U “Auedwo) ay3 JO J01I3JIP Se UOIIRUIWLOU-3J JO dduewlo)iad Ssiy JO JUSWSSasse
9Y3 Jo 12adsaJ ul suoninjosas Aue uo SunoOA woJd) uleisge |jeys DN 2yl Jo Jaqwaw yoeg

‘pJeog Y3 JO SSEUAIIIDYS DY3 01 J01d3JIJ [BNPIAIPUI Yoea Ag UoiIngliiuod ay3 Suissasse o) pue
‘S9911WIWO0) pJeog Sil pue 9|oym e se pJeog a3yl JO SS2UDAINILS 2yl Suissasse Joj DN ayi Aq 1no
paliied 3g 03 ssax0.d e jJuawajdwl os|e ||IM pJeog 3yl ‘anjeA siapjoyaleys wia-3uo| pasueyua
sey pJeog syl Moy sassaippe ydiym ‘pieog aya jo [erosdde ay3 03 123[gns ‘elia1id aduewojiad
aAndalqo asodoud pue paienjeas ag 01 SI aduewJsoilad s,pleog a3yl Moy dpIdep [IM DN YL

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

24



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

'U0I109]2-3J4 10) PIIBUIWIOU 3Q 0] 3Je pue |ADY Sullodylio) 3yl 1e Sulinal aq
[Im 8uolS Ulys yo,01eQ pue ‘1enH Suoyd Wi JA ‘UoNINSUOD 3Y1 JO 10| uoieinSay 03 Juensingd

‘Sunn@aw yans e uoielod Ag 241394 01 918 OYM SJ03d3JI[J JO Jaquinu
ay3 SuluIWJIaIap Ul JUNOIIE 01Ul UdYe) 9 10U |[eYS ING ‘INDY Y3 18 U011d3|9-3J Joj 9|qISI2 3q
191JB2J3Y) pue |NDY IXaU 3yl |1un 32140 pjoy Ajuo jjeys Jeak jerpueul ayl Sunp ing WOV 2yl
J91je pJeog ayl Aq pajulodde si031d941Q [BUORIPPY 401D34IJ |eUollIppe ue se Jo Adueden |ensed
e [|1J 01 4oyl J03da41g e 2q 03 uostad Aue juiodde uoinjosas Aseuipto Ag Aew Auedwo)d ayl

‘uonI9|e-al
J0J 91918112 29 ||eys 4032241 SulinaJ v 10| A paulwia1ap 99 (SaAjaswayl Suowe 9a43e asIMIaylo
ASy3 ssajun) [jeys 241324 01 9s0y3 ‘Aep aWes syl Uo SJ01I3J1g Pa1d|2-3J ISB| 9J9M JO dwedaq oym
suosJad usamiag se 1eya os pue Jusawiulodde 4o UOIIID|-3J 1SE| JI9Y) DDUIS D140 Ul 3S28UO0| Ud3q
aney oym uonelod Ag juswaldinad 03 123lgns asoyl aq |jeys Jeak AIaAa ul 241394 03 SJ012a41Q YL

's1eak (€) 99443 A1aAd 9oU0 1sed| 1e (,INDV,,) SUINS3IN |eJauaD
|enuuy s,Auedwo) ayl 1e uoDd|-a4 JoJ 9|qISI2 2 pue uolelod Ag 9210 WUy 4139 ||eys
SJ0122J1Q 9Y3 JO (PJIYyl U0 03 3SaJeau Jaquunu ayl J40) (€/1) P41yl U0 ‘U0IINIIISUOD 9y 03 Juens.ind

“321JJO JO W) PaxI} OU dABY SJ01d3J1d 4NO

‘lenoidde pue uojleJapisuod sii 4o} pJeog ay
03 J03123J1p 3y3 Jo uawiulodde-aa pasodoud syl pusawwiodal J0312341p
pjnom DN 9yl ‘quawssasse Auoldejsies s,ON 9yl 031 133lqns | Jo uswiuiodde-ay 7

‘pJeog ay3 JO SPadu JUaJJ4Nd JO S9INQIIIle pue
S|IIYs ‘asiiiadxa jo a8ues Yl MaIAdJ OS|e PjNom DN dYL q

pue ‘pJeog ay3 Aq 13s 149114 dduewJoslad
3yl UM 2dueplodde Ul J031daJId 9yl JO dduewdoliad J0312341p
pue suOlINQIJIUOD 3y} SSISSe p|nom IN dYl (CHEYe) JUDWSSASSY l

:s10123J1p Su1129]2-24 9Y3 Jo4 Ssa204d Y1 In0 S19S 3|gel Suimo|jol 3yl ‘(P)(2)9zz 2Ny isijeied
Japun paJinbaJ se si0312341p jo jJuawiulodde ayy uo Josuods ayl Aq pasiape os|e sI pieog ayl

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

25

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

"110day [enuuy siyl Jo G| 01 0L | so8ed Uo 1IN0 13S DV JO 921I0N Y3 Ul paiels aJe
220z Ain[ £z uo pjay ag 01 WOV Sujwodylio) ay3 Je Juawiulodde-aa 3uaas aJe oym si03dadig

‘Auedwo) ay3 Jo sallelpisqns ay3 Ul saJeys pjoy SIoidalip ay3
J0 3uoN °1S 28ed uo 1no 19s aJe Auedwod ay3 JO S0P [BNPIAIPUl BY3 JO sSulpjoyaJleys ayl

‘11odaJ [enuue siyl Jo G| pue g 03 g saded U0 1n0 13s aJe ‘sieak (g) 9a4y3 1sed ay3 ul
play sdiysJoidadip pue saiep uswiulodde Jiayl Suipnjpul ‘s1031daJdig 2yl Jo uonewlojul Asy ayL

"M3IASJ
Japun Jeak ayy Surnp pajuiodde J031da41g MaU OU Sem 343y 'SJ031da41q 40 9Inasu| asodeduls Aq
pasiuegio sse|d Sululely pualle ||Im sJoidadig paiulodde Aimau |y |puuosiad juswaSeuew Ao
Y31 Yim 199w Jayla801 pue sanljide) pue sadiyo ‘leuonesado s, dnoitn ayl dsia 03 Ayuniioddo
dY) UIAIS 9 0S|e ||IM J03daJ1g ay} ‘sanss| adueldwod Aloiejn8aJ pue A10in1eis 1uend|as se
[|]9M Se suol1daJip d1891eJ1s ‘suoieldado ssauisng ‘sauolsajiu A3y pue AJoisiy s,dnoln syl jo
Sulpueisiapun 42119 e UIRIQO O] "UOIIBWIOU| JUBAS|RJ-AJISNpUl Yam papirodd aq pue Auedwod
P33si| & JO J01D2JIP B JO S91INP Pa1dadxad ay3 se ||am Se ssaulsng s,dnoJdo ay3 uo pajalig 39 pjnom
103123410 9Y3 aJaym awwesdoud uojleIualIo Ue 03u3pun [|IM SJ031daJ1g paiulodde Amau ||y

"'sannp Jay Jo siy adueydsip Apuasdijip
0} Jo3da4ip ay3y jo Ajige ayy jo
JUSUISSISSEe pauoseal s,pleog pue
S, ON 9yl sapinoad 31 ‘SIUSWIIWWOD
pue sdiysJo1daJdip Yyans jo Jagwnu
JuedIUSIS B SpJoY J01I3JIp B aIdaym
pue ‘J01daJIp Yyoea JO JUSWIUWIWIOD
jedipuiid pue sdiysioldauip Auedwod
paisi| ay) wodas |enuue s} Ul
sasopdsip Auedwod ayy ‘Auedwod
dYl JO J01D3JIp e se sainp Jay Jo
siy 1no 3uikiied Kj@renbape usaq
sey pue 0} 3|ge S| J0IdAIIP e I
sapldap os|e DN ayl ‘suopnediqo
pue sanNp JIdYyl JO aJeme ale
SJ101J9JIp M3U 1By} SaJNsua DN YL

v

‘Juspuadapul g 01 30U WY1 Jo Aue WIap 3SIMIaYI0
pinom 1eyl apod ayl ul paieis se diysuolie|as Aue aaey jou op SJoidadid uspuadapu] syl

‘uoliele[dap axuspuadapul Jiayl papirodd aaey sI03da.ig Juspuadapul
3yl ||e pue zzoz Ae|N Sz uo pjay Sunsaw JN 3yl Suinp 2pod dYl Yim 2dueplodde Ul
dduspuadapul J1ay) pawJiyuod osje pey s401da4iq uspuadapul 3y uspuadapul aie unyy 3doH
neH JIA pue 1eny Suoyd wi JIA ‘1Y Suels Wi JIA 1Yl M3IA 33 JO S| pue pamalAal pey DN 9yl

"140daJ [enuue s31 Ul SUoseal
S}l pue sdiysuolie|al ayl saso|dsip
Auedwod syl ‘sdiysuone|as yans
JO 92Ud1SIXa 2yl Sulpueisyiimiou
Juapuadapul aJe sJ01d3JIp Ydns eyl
S2UIWJIRI9P ‘DN dYl JO SMIIA BY)
Junodde ojul uaxe) Suiaey ‘pieog syl
J| "pJeog ayy 03 ‘aduspuadapul J1ay)d
103)je Aew yoiym ‘Aue jI ‘siad1}jo
S}I JO sJap|oyaJeys |elaueisqns s
‘suonetodiod pailejas sy ‘Auedwod
9yl yum sdiysuoliejaJ J1ayy asodsip
SJ0123JIQ "L’ UOISIAOId Ul Yiloj
19S S2dURISWNIID 3yl 0) pJedau
Suiney “yuapuadapul s| 10123JIp € 4
‘aJinbaJ S9dURISWNDID UIYM pue
se pue ‘Ajlenuue saulwJialap DN dYL

vy

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

26



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

pJeog ayl 031 UolleW.IojUl JO UOISIAOId (4
sJap|oyaJeys Yiim uonediunwuwod (®
S93)13IWWO0d pJieog (p

Sululel] pue ssauUaANIRYT (6

3unasN 40 3dNpuo) (g

9zIS pue uonisodwo) (e

:seale

SuUIMO||0) 3Y) 19A0D ‘DN 3yl AQ paullIDIap S ‘UoiIeNn|eAd ,S8911IWWO0) pleog pue pieog ayl
40} el11d @duewloiad syl ‘DN pue DY ‘DYV 3yl Jo uonen|eAs sxuewloiad ayl yim Jayia8oy
220ZA4 01 1uanbasgns ajoym e se uonen|eas aduewloliad s,pieog syl pPa1dNpuod pey IN ayl

'S1012241Q 9AIINI9XJ-UON Y3 01 9|gedijdde ssa| aJe 93uay pue dduewopiad sjuawadeue|p
9U) aJnseaw 03 pasn Ajulew aJe SJ1oiedIpul [eldURUL 3Y) 1Y) 9A3I|2g DN 9yl pue pJeog ayl

"el191142 913} |ENb pue aAneIuenb
4ioQg apn|oul pJeog ayl o aduewloiad syl sSasse 01 pasn elia1ud aduewdoyiad aandalqo

'SJ103122J41Q JO uoneudisal syl 99s 4o pJeog ay) 01 pajulodde ag siaquuawi
Mau 1eyy ‘srersdoudde asaym ‘asodoud ‘DN 9yl Yilm UOIIBRINSUOD Ul pue ‘uolien|eAs ssuewdoylad
33 JO S3INS3J dY) U0 128 ||IM pJeog Y] J01daJig B Se Uolleulwou-al Jo dduewJloslad Jayy/siy Jo
JUBWISSasse ay) Jo 12adsaJ ul suolinjosal Aue uo SuoA woJj uleisge ||eys JN dyl Jo Jaquiaw
yoe3 ‘ssadoud pue uonewdojul ‘uoinisodwod pieog se yons ‘sxuewdojiad paeog jo sydadse
SNOIJIBA UO SM3IA J19y) Suyaas aJleuuonsanb e a19|dwod s10323Jig a3yl aJ9ym UOo[IeNn|eAd
pJeog e jo Aem Aq Jeak e 2duo0 1sea| 1e DN 9yl AQ pa1dNpuUod S| JUSWISSISSe SIYL ‘pleog ayl Jo
SSQUDAIII4D dY) 01 J0123JIQ [BNPIAIPUI YdBD JO UOIINQGIIIU0D 3Yy) UISSISSEe 40} pue S2311WW0)
pJeog Sl pue 3joym e se pJeog ay) JO SSaUIAINIDYD Y3 SuIsSasse Joj ssadoid e paysl|qeiss DN

‘pJeog
3Y3 01 JO1I3JIp |eNpPIAIpUl Yded pue
uewJieyd ayl Ag uonngluod ayy se
[I]om se ‘Aj91esedas 99131LILI0D pleoq
yoea Jo pue ‘ajoym e se pieog ayi
JO SS9UDAIIID44D BY) JO uOolIeNn|eAd
9yl Joj ssadoud pue  elI3IId
2ouewojlad anndalgo ayy jeaosdde
s,pJeog ay) Joj spusawiwodal JN aylL

'S

'S10123JIp [eNPIAIPUI
pue $3313IWWO0D PJeoq Sl JO Ydea JO 1Byl pue ‘9|0YM B Se SSBUDAIIIBS S) JO JUBWISSISSE |[BNUUER [eWJO) B SdYellapun pieog ayl g ajdipulid

9Juew.ojiad pieog

‘3|gedndesd usym pue se sdiysiaquiaw pJeoq J1ay) paJedsp aAey s101dalig
IV "A|9A13D349 pJeog ayl uo SUIAISS Yim 4931250} SIUSWIIWWOD JO SUoes||qo Jaylo ayeirlapun
01 Ayjige pue Aypeded umo Jay/siy SSasse 03 403daJig Yoes Joj SI 3 1yl MIIA 39U JO S| DN dYL
‘Auedwo) ay3 Jo J012341Q € Se sainp siy 1no Auied Aj@renbape pue Auedwo) ayl Jo siiejje ayl 0l
UOIIU1Ie PUB 3WI} JUIDIYNS USAIS dARY SJ012341J Y) JaYiaym ‘siseq ased-Ag-ased e uo ‘Ajjenuue
dUIWJRISP pue Jojyuow pinom JN Yyl ‘Auedwo) ayy 03 sainp siy adieydsip Aj@zenbape 01 awiy
JU3IDIYNS Sey J03daJig B Jaylaym U0 SNd0) peaisul [[Im IN YL 1012341d Ydea JO S20UeISWNIII
palieA ayl 1unodde olul el Aj@ienbape jou pnom Jaqwnu paxi) e Suniss eyl uoiuido
9yl JO S| pJeog ayl se sJo1dalig dyl uo suolieiuasaidas pJeoq paisi| 4O Jaquinu wnwixew
e asodwl jou [jeys Auedwo) syl eyl pasJtde sey ‘DN aYl JO 90UaLINdU0d 3yl Yum ‘pieog ayl

uopneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondiasag apod

uoisinoad

27

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

"W} 01 dWI WoJy pJeog ayl Agq Dy 9yl uodn pasoduwi aq Aew Jey3 SUOIIDIIISDI
Aue 01 sAemje 103lgns ‘Juaipadxa sWaap 1l 1Byl Jauuew ayl ul sai3np sil 1no Sulkiied -

pue ‘Auedwo) ay3 Jo aAlNIBXa A9y pue 03D Y3 4012a41q
yoesa Joj jusawAhojdwas Jo swial pue sadexded uolnesaunwal d1}129ds Yyl aulwWIIdP
03 sad1jod uoneJIaUNWSI JO YJOoMaleld) e ‘pieog 9yl 03 SulpusawLIodal pue SUIMIIAI -

:3UIMO| |04 DY) “DJjb 433Ul ‘9PN|DUL DY JO DUDID)3J JO SWID) 9y L

“UNyy} Y20H NeH JA SI DY 343 Jo uewilieyd ayL 1eny Suoyd
WIT JN pue unyy Y204 ney A ‘1ey Suels wi JIN ‘s40129.41q Juspuadapul ayy sasiudwod DY ayL

‘]auuosJiad JuswaSeuew
K93 9yl Joj se ||oam se
J1012241p ydea Joj sadeyded
uolnjedaunwaJd diy0ads ayl Q)

pue |]auuosJad juswadeuew
K93 pue pieog o9yl JoJ
uoljeJaunwial JO yJomawel) e (e)

:uo pJeog
9U) 01 SUOIIBPUBWIWOIAI 3Yew pue
MIIADJ 03 9913WWOD UolIeJauNnway
e saysl|geiss pJeog Yyl

1’9

‘uoeJIBUNWDI UMO Jay Jo SIy SUIpIdap Ul PaA|OAUIL SIJ0123JIp ON ‘[uuosJtad Juswadeuew A9y pue SJ0123J41p |[enplAlpul Jo sadeyded uojjelaunwal
9Y3 SuIXl} JO} pUB ‘UOIIBJISUNWDI SAIINIDXD pue J031d3JIp uo sapijod Suidojaasp Joy ainpadosd jualedsuely pue [ewJso) e sey pieog ayl :9 a|dipulid

saldijod uoipesaunwiay suidojaAaq 104 Sa4npad0id

SYILLIVIN NOILVHINNINIY

‘ss@20.d JuswWIssasse pieog syl wojiad 01 pa8e8us usaq sey Jo1ell|idey) [eUISIXS OU ‘2Z0ZA4 404

"S9A1323[q0 2duewWI0Iad ) 1oW sey
pJeog 2yl 18yl MaIA 2Y3 JO S| pue 21ep-01 aduewolad s,pieog 1uadind ay) passasse sey N 9yl

'pJ023J ddUepUlIe
|enpialpul pue sSunasaw e uonedpiied Jo [9A9] ‘sannp Asepnply pue suonoduny [edpuiid jo
9duewJo}iad apN|dUl JUSWISSISSE 404 B1IDIID YL 'SSOUDAIIIDYD S,pJeog ayl 01 SUoiINgLIIuod
S,10123J1 Y2ed SSISSEe 0} UII0) JUSWISSISSe-}9s e pala|dwod os|e 401daJ4ig Yded ‘|lews el pieog
93U} 01 pPaie|ndJd sem ydiym 1odal Alewwins pajepljosuod e ojul sasuodsal ,s1013341q Sa|idwod
Kie1audas Auedwo) ay] 'S9911WWIOD pJeog pue pJeog syl JO UOIBN|BAS U3 JO) J03daJIg Yoes

'SJ03123J1p
s11 Jo Aue Jo Auedwod ayy yum ‘Aue
41 'UOIID2UUOD S} pue Jolell|dey
|eusaixa Aue jo Aypnuapl ayy Suipnpdpul
‘P912NPUOI UISQ dARY J031IBJIP Ydes
pue s$9313IWWOD pJeoq S}l ‘pieog
9Y) JO Ssluawissasse ayy moy 1iodal

Ag pa1s|dwod sI YydIym aljeuuonsanb e eIA JUSWISSISSE aY) PaldNpuod pey IN dY} ‘TZ0ZA4 404 | |enuue si ul sasodsip Auedwod ayl 'S
9s1149dxa Jo ealy (®
eaJe JUeA3|aJ 3SI|eldads UMO Ul UOIINGIIIU0D (p
suolssnasip ul uoniedidied o
s3uneaw Joj uonesedaud jo Aoenbapy (q
s3ujlaauWl Ul 9dUBpUNY (e
:seaJde SUIMO||0} 33 JOA0D J0IIUIP [BNPIAIPU| BY) JO4 BLISIID 9duewWIoIad ay |
uonesuadwod pJeog (
9cuewJoyiad |ejpueUl y
19Npu0) JO spJiepuels (8
uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo) uondiidsag apo) | uoisinoad

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

28



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘1JodaJ |enuue siy Jo €6 01 zG sa8ed uo 1IN0 39S aJe SOST pue dsd
9Y3 In0ge s|1eIdp JaYIINg "910Z JaqwiadaQ 91 3duls pardope asam ydiym ‘(,$0S3,) dwayds uondo
aJeys aakojdw3 ay1 pue (,dSd, 2Y3) ue|d aJeys aouewiojiad s,Auedwo) ayl siaisiuiuipe Dy ayL

‘AIngssanans Auedwo) ay3 unJ 03 [puuosiad Juswadeuew A
pue 510129410 9AIIN29X3 3yl 21BAIOW pue ulelal ‘1oeJile 01 ajelidoidde s| uoielaunwal Jo |9A3)]
9U1 1Byl aJnsua os se ‘sadeyded uonesaunwal aAnRdadsas Jiayl Suludisap usaym aduewdojiad
s,dnoJo ayl 01 uolINgIIIUO0d pue 3siladxa ‘s|s ‘sanljigisuodsal s,jauuosiad Juswadeuew
A3y pue 510129410 9AIINISXT dY) SIIPISU0D DY ayd ‘|auuositad juswadeuew Asy s, dnolo ayl
pue sJ10312aJ1g 9AIIN2aX3 9y) Jo sadedded uonelaunwald ayl SululwIdIDp pue SUIMIIADIL U|

‘Auedwod ay3 Jo $$920NS WJU3-3U0|
9yl sajowoldd pue siap|oyayeis
J9ylo pue siap|oyadeys jo
S1S2423Ul 9yl yum pauldie si
uolleJaUNWJ Pale|dJ-2IURWI04IDd
‘9ouewdojiad |enpiAalpul  pue
91eJ0dJ0d 01 spJemad >ul| 01 se
0S pPaJnidniis S| uolleJaunwal
s,JauuosJtad juswadeuew A3y pue
,5401224Ip 9AIINJ3X® jo uonsodoud
o1eiidoisdde pue uedijiudis v

V'L

‘Auedwod ayy Jo saAndalgo d18areais ayl aunodde ojul Supjel ‘Auedwod ay) JO UOIILaJD aNjeA pue aduewJiojiad pauleisns
9yl 01 areuolniodoud pue aieiidoisdde aue [suuostad juswaSeuew A9y pue pieog 9yl JO UOIIBJISUNWSI JO 24NIDNJIIS pue |9A3] ayl £ 9|dipulid

uoneIaunway JO XIA pue [3A3T]

"220ZA4 Sunnp Auedwo) syl Aq padedus aJam S1ULINSUOD UoIIRIUNWL ON

‘11odaJ |enuue s,Auedwod ayy ul
dduapuadapul JI9Y) pue slueyNSuU0d
uoneJaunwal Aue jo uswade3us
2yl saso|dsip Auedwod a9yl

79

'S10129.1Q Y3 03
palueJ3 s1yauaq JuswAo|dwa-1sod se ||am Se ‘S}Iauad JUSWSIIIRJ JO UOIIRUIULIS) OU 9J9M 343y L

*28e3ped uonesaunwial siy Jo 129dsaJ Ul suolInjosal Aue uo SUIIOA WOJ) suleIsqe DY
33 JO J3qUWIaW YdeJ "UoeIauNuWal UMO 413yl SUipidap Ul PAAJOAU] J0U 3Je S1031231id 9yl DY 3y}
Ag pamalnal aJe pupj-ul-siiyauaq pue suondo ‘sasnuoq ‘sedueMO|[e ‘Salie|es 'saa) ,S4031d341q ‘0}
paliwi| 30U INg ‘Sulpn|dul ‘uoileIaUNWSI JO S1dadse ||y "JUSWSSIopUS 104 pieog ayl 03 paiyiwgns
3Je DY 2Y3 JO SUOIBPUSWIWOI3J dY| 'SSAIINIAXD A3y pue J01dxaJid [enplAlpul jo sadeyded
uonesaunwial ayy Suixiy 4o} ddejd ui s ainpadoid jusiedsues) pue [eULIO) B 1By} S2INSUD DY 9y

Jlej aJe A3yl 24Nsud 03 'swid)
uolleuiwJia) duipnjpul ‘uoiesauUNWal
10 sidadse |je sJapisuod DY dYyl

€9

"Juspuadapul aJe siaquiaw DY ||V "pJeog 2y Jo uonisodwod ay3 4o} | uoisiroid 03 Ja)a4 aseald

“Juapuadapul aJe ‘uewlieyd
oY ay3 Suipnppul ‘woym jo Ayuolew
dYl} ‘SJ0ID3JIP SAIINISXD-UOU e
DY 9yl JO sJaquidW ||y ‘SJ03d3JIp
99Jy3 1sed| 1e saspdwod Oy ayl

9

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

29

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

uol|IW GZINY 3se3| 1e Jo 1dd "9l ‘dnoJD ay) Jo aduewloylad Ayjigelryold
JUSWIIWWO) pue sanljiqisuodsay

1uswdo|anap ajdoad

ylomwea|

diysiapean

— oM

:s1usuodwod aApelIuENb pue aAllelenb Suimol|o) 8yl uo paseq S| |auuostad Jusawadeuew
K9 pue SJ0129J1g 9AIINIDXT JO UOIIBIBUNWJ dY) SSISSe 0) Pasn eliaidd aduewdolad ayl

‘saA23[qo sduewoyiad [enpialpul pue 91eiodiod Jo JUSWAIIYIEe
JO |9A3] @Yl UO paseq paulwJalap s uonesuadwod ajgellea ayl Juswa|ddns a8em |enuue pue
9duemolle paxl} ‘Aiejes aseq |enuue ue Jo SISISUOD uojlesuadwod paxily ayl ‘suopesusadwod
d|gelieA pue paxij Jo dn apew S| uoleJaUNWJ JI3Y]L ‘Z2Z0ZA4 Ul dnouo ay) jo aduewdoyiad
|[eJSAO 33U} SPJEMO] UOIINQIIIUO0D pue dduewlojiad [enplAlpul 3y JO SIY UOIIRJISPISUOD 01Ul
saye) |auuosJtad Juswadeuew Ay pue sJ01daJ410 dA1INISXT ay) Aq paAIadad uonesaunwal 3yl

pue 03D 3y
pue Jo1daJlp [enpiAlpul yoea  (e)

:JO uolneJaunwal
JO UMopXealq pue syunouwle ‘saweu
se [|[am se ‘uonesaunwal 3ulllLs
1o} epayud pue Adjjod ayl iodau
|enuue s31 ul sasojdsip Auedwod syl

1’8

‘UOIIB3JD BN|eA pue dduewW.0)4ad ‘UoiieJaUNWRL UBaMIB] sdiysuolie|al
33 pue ‘uonesaunwal 8UIas Joj ainpadoJdd sy ‘UoieIaUNWRI JO XIW PUB [9A3] ‘sadijod uolesaunuwial si uo Juatedsuely st Auedwod ay] :g ajdidulid

uoljeJaunuway uo ainsoj|isig

'SJap|oyaJleys ay3 4oy anjea
91B3JD ||]9M S 1S3J1Ul pue sanjeA ‘saAidalqo ‘A8ajeais ssauisng wual-3uo| s,dnoJo ayl yim usgije
0] se 0s saakojdwa a1eAOW pue ulelal “1oediie o1 |ednd st Adijod uonessunwal s,Auedwo) ayL

‘wJa3 8uo| ay3 Joy
Auedwod ayy a8euew Ajnjssaddns
01 |2uuosiad jusawaSeuew Aoy
pue Auedwod syl jo diyspiemals
poo8 apinoidd 01 si01da4Ip Byl
91EAIJOW pue ulelal ‘1desile 0}
91eludoisdde sI uolnelaunway

€L

‘Al4e|n834 UoIENIS Y3 JOJUOW PUB MIIAJ |[IM PUB 94NIN} Ul UOISIA0Jd |ENIDBIILOD
yons jo uolzeusawa|dwi 3yl 1IN0 9|NJ 10U S0P DY dY3 ‘Sulo8a40) Y3 ‘SUIpURISYIIMION ‘Sa1INp
KJepnpiy Jo yseauq ayl JO IUSAS Y3 Ul SJ03I3JIQ dAIINIAXT dY) 1sulede saipawal 03 J|3sdl |leae
03 3|qe 3aq |leys Auedwo) ayl ‘Auedwod ayr 01 Aanp Asedpnply 9mo S1031da41g 9AIINIAXT Jayling

‘Auedwo) ayy
03 SSO| |eldURUL Ul SUI3NSJ 12NPUOISIW JO JO ‘SINS3J [BIDURULL JO JUSWSILISSIW JO S9IURISWNIIID
|euoindadxa ul [auuosJad jusawaSeuew A3y pue SJ0IDBJIP DAIINIBXD WOJ) UOIRIIUNWSI JO
sjusuodwod aAIUSdUI Wiedad 03 Auedwo) syl Mojje 03 SuoisiAoid [ENIDBIIUOD OU dJe dJdYL

‘INDY Ydea 1e siapjoyaJleys Aq
|enoadde 03 123[gns aJe SJ0122J41Q SAIINIDXI-UON Y3 JO S934 ,S10323.IQ 3yl “(S9913Wwo) pJeog
snolleA ay3 03 syusawiuiodde Jiayy 01 paliwil| 30U Ing Sulpn|dul) SJ101daJ1g 3yl JO sanijiqisuodsal
pue juads awWll 140}}d 9Y) UO paseq pJeog ayl Aq paulwialdp e Ydiym ‘sadj) ,s101daldig
pied aue Asyl ‘Aiejes Aue s394 10u op ASuiptodde pue Auedwod ayl yum siuswaaide
9JIAJ2S 9ABY 10U Op (SJ03da4Ig 1udpuadapu| ayl Suipnjdul) SJ01daJIg SAIINISIXI-UON dYL

"saly|Igisuodsads pue
‘Juads awWi) ‘34043 Se yons sioldey
Junodde 03Ul Suel ‘UoiINgLIIUOD JO
[9A3] 2y 01 21elidoudde s| si01d241p
SAIINI9X3-UOU JO uopelaunwal syl

<L

uopneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondiasag apod

uoisinoad

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

30



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘(Auedw o) ay3 Jo sJ031d341Q
0s|e 10U aJe oym) [Quuosiad jusawadeuew Ay dol (6) auiu pey dnodo ayl ‘z2z0ZA4 Suning

'$J032341Q Y3 0}
paiueld siyauaq yuswAhojdwa-1sod se [|9m Se ‘S3IJauaq JUSWD4134 10 UOIIRUIWID) OU 9J9M dJdy ]

‘ADY Sulwodylio) 3y 1e suapjoyaleys Aqg jerosdde ayy 01 323[gns aq ||Im ‘wns dwn| e se ‘saa} ,540312341Q YL

:910N
%001 | - | - | wr | w9 | wse | u3 90A SUo
000°0S$S - L0O0'00S$S
%001 | - | - | wz | wes | wez | 8uoA Ae7 wi
000°005%$S - 000°'0S2Z$S
%001 - %001 - - - Suooy) Joyd Suey) ,01eq
%001 - %001 - - - 3uols ulys yoi,01eq
%001 - %001 - - - 1enH Suoyd wi
%001 - %001 - - - unyy 3d20H neH
%001 - %001 - - - ey Suels wiq
000°052$S mo|ag
|elol pung $994 aAnuacul | snuog | AKiejes 10323.1@ JO dweN
jUapinold | 403123410 puy aseg
,s93kojdwi3 aduemoj|y
uo
uolIngiiuo)d
s,Auedwo)
:SMO]||0}

Se S| ZZ0ZA4 J0J S1012341Q 9y JO (Swua1 a8eiusdiad ul) uonelsunwal ayl 40) UMOpYealq ayl

‘000'05Z$S 40 spueq ul pasodsIp sI [auuosiad JuswaSeuew Aoy pue sJ03daliq
9Y) JO uopeJaUNWAJ dY) ‘Ydns Sy ‘Ul saresado dnolo ayl Juswuoliaua aannadwod Ajysiy ayy
uanIg 1saJaiul ssaulsng s 03 |eipnfaad aq pjnom a4nsoasip Yyons eyl malA 3yl jo si Auedwod
93 ‘|auuosJad juawadeuew Asy pue 1012341Q Ydea JO UOIIeJaUNWaJ JO 2JNSO[ISIP SY3 03 Uolie|al
ul saSejuenpesip pue sadeiueape ayy Suiskjeue pue ad130ead Aiisnpul 3yl SUIMIIASI IV

‘|]auuosJiad
JuswaSeuew A3y asayl o1
pied uojpeJauNwWal |B10} 9Y)
91e8a.438e Ul pue 000'05Z$S
ueyl Japim ou spueq ul (03D
3Y} JO SJ01IJIP 10U dJe OYm)
[ouuosJtad juswaSeuew
Aoy oA} dol ayy ises| e Q)

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

31

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

s,Auedwo)

uonnqiuo)

%001 %8 %81l %EL %19 u3j moH SuQ
000°05$S mo|a9g
|eyol pung aAnuadu| | snuog | AKiejes awenN
Juapinoid pue aseq
,s9akojdw3 | acuemo||y
uo

‘000'0S$S Mo|ag sem dnoJo) a3yl 01 paJapual SIIIAISS
JoJ wiy o1 pied uonedsunwal ay]l ‘dnolo syl ul JaSeuew |ea1uyda) e se pakojdwa Ajpuatind s

“Jap|oyaJeys |enueisqns
JO 03D 9yl JO J0ID3JIP IUeAD|J
2yl yum diysuonejas s,oako|dws
ay3 AjJes|d saieis aJinsopdsip ayl
"1J0daJ [enuue s1 Ul ‘000'001$S ueyl
J3pIM ou spueq ul “Jeak ayy Surnp
000'001L$S Spa93xa uolleJauNnwWal
asoym pue ‘Auedwod ayr Jo
JapjoyaJleys |ejaueisgns e Jo 03D
9yl J01daJIp B JO siaquiaw Ajjwey
d1elpawwl aJe Jo ‘Auedwod ayl Jo
SJ9p|oyaJeys |elaueisqns ale oym
soakojdwa Jo uoneJaUNWSL pue

‘Auedwio) ayy Jo OID pue J0123JIJ dAIINIBXT BY) ‘UJ OA SUQ JIA JO Jayroiq 2yl ‘U3 moH SuQ JIN | saweu ayl sasojasip Auedwod ayl )
‘A|3uipJodde sgupjellapun pue s1saJaiul [euossad
umo J1ay3 ansiand 03 paugdisal usay pey |auuosiad juswaeuew A3y (£) 994yl ‘220ZA4 241 Suling )
'89€’LYL'T$S
Sem ZzZ0ZA4 Joj [auuosiad juswaleuew Ay (g) auiu dol ay) 01 pied uolelaunwal |10} dYL
%001 - %66 - - %] wiy 3uols 991
%001 %S %09 % %0Z %eEL fe19hyL yend
000°0SZ$S @A0qy
%001 %S %8 - - %Ly piweH [npqy 19 yejluey
%001 %8 %cL - - %08 004 uny o917
%001 %6 %9 - - %G8 uooy MeA oy)
%001 %6 %L %61 %S9 npieN
UBUYSIY "3 uewelueled
%001 %L1 %€ %9l %0L 11e4 U1y Sueyd
%001 %Le - %8 %LL UOOM Uely UOOA
%001 %01 - %S¢ %S9 99A NYS elIS
000°05Z$S Mo|ag
|eol |punyjuapinoad | juswAhed | s394 ajuemojly | snuog | Aiejes | aAnndax3 Aay jo saweN
saafojdwa jo | paseq | 403d3.1Q aseg
uoilnquiIuod | -aleys
Auedwo)
:SMO||0} Se SI 7Z0ZA4 Sulnp (swJa1 a8ejuadiad
ul) [auuosJtad jusawadeuew A3y s,Auedwo) ayl JO uoneIUNWSIL Y] JO) UMOpMealq Yyl
uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo) uondiidsag apo) | uoisinoad

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

32



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

'sadijod pue juswadeuew ysii s,Auedwo?) ayy SUI9ISIDA0
4o Ayjigisuodsad s311no SulAlled ul siolipne | uldalxa pue |euJdalul ayl Aq pawiojiad SmalAal pue
Suliolluow ‘syipne JendaJ ayy pue ‘dnodo ayl Ag paulejuiew pue paysi|qeiss sainpadold pue
salp1jod [0J3U0D [BUJDIUI UO S3I2J pue DYV ayl Agq paisisse S ‘S|0JIu0d |eulalul pue Jusawadeuew
3si Jo sasodind ay3 4o} Ing ‘991WWO0D ¥siy pJeog dijdads e paysijgeiss jou sey pieog ayl

'SSO| JO JUaWIIRISSIW |elid1ew Isulese
9dUeJNSSE 91N|0Sge 10U pue 3d|geuoseal Ajuo apiroid ued pue saAllda[qo ssauisng aAdlyde 03
24n|iey JO YSIJ 9Y3 d1eulWi|D Uueyl Jayled aSeuew 01 paudisap s WISAS v ‘sallie|ndaJlll pue siodld
|le apnaa4d |[Im Wa)SAS |0JIUOD [BUJDIUI DAIIDD4D-1SOD OU 1Y) S3SIUS0IaJ 0S|e 3 ‘SJomawled)
|0JIU0D |euJdIUl ||BJDA0 dY) Joj d|qisuodsal sI 1 1eyy sadpajmoudde pieog ayr ysnoyiyy

‘Ajlenuue sjoJ3uod
|euJaiul s,dnoJo ayi UO SJOIIPNE |BUJIIUI PUB [BUISIXD dY) JO SSUIpUl} 9Y) S9IEN|BAS DYV YL

‘saijod
3S14 Sulpuodsallod pue |9A3] ddURIS|0) ¥SIJ 9Y) dUIWISISP 01 SJOIPNEe |euUJdIUl pue Siolipne
|PUJIXD 3Y) YIM S}NSU0d pieog ayl °saldijod ¥sSl4 pue 210UeI|0) ¥SI4 JO S[aA3]| S,Auedwod
9y3 3uluiwialsp pue jusawadeuew sid JO dduUeulaA0d Jo) d|gisuodsal os|e s| pJeog ayl

‘WRISAS S|0J43U0D [RUIDIUI
pue juswaSeuew XsiJ 9yl Sunuawajduwi ul JuswaSeue|n 9yl S99SI9A0 0S|e pJeog oyl ‘slolpne
|[PUJDIXS pUB SJOIIPNE |RUJSIUI BYI JO ¥IBQPa3} 9Y) Uo paseq sysid ASojouydal uonewldojul pue
2oueldwod ‘leuonesado ‘leipueuly se yons dnodo syl 031 seade ysid A9y 3uissasse pue Sulkjuapl
S9PN|DUl OS|E 3SIDJXD JUBWISSISSE ¥SId 9y "Sa18a1eJ1s ssauisng pue sapijod s,dnoJdo ayl uiyiim
SYSI 9say) 21edniw pue |0Jiuod 0) dde|d Ul SaINSeaW dY3 Se [|9M Se ¥SIJ ssauisng juedijiusis
Jo seaJe Ajauapl 01 saliAlde |euojlesado pue ssauisng s,dnoJo Yyl SMIIASJ pieog dyl

‘a1e1udoudde
J1‘siyy ssaJppe Ajesijnads 03
9913lWwWo) Xsiy pleog e dn sias
pJeog 9yl -UOIIE3aId dNjeA pue
saAndalqo d18a31eJ3s sy Sulasiyde ul
ey 03 Suljim si Auedwod ayl yaiym
SYSI4 JuedJIugis 9yl JO JUdIXd pue
9Jnjeu 3yl saulwldalsp pJleog syl

L'6

‘sJap|oyaJleys sil pue Auedwod ay3 Jo S1SaJa1Ul Yl pJendajes 03 ‘'S|0JIu0d |euldlul
pue juswadeuew sl JO WIISAS punos e sulelulew JuswaSeue|A 1Byl S9JNSUS pue %SiJ JO 9dUeUJISA03 Y] 10} d|qisuodsal si pieog ay] :6 9|dpulld

S]0J3U0) [eUI3IU| puk JUSWSeuey sy

1ldNY ANV ALITIEVLNNODJDV

“140day [enuuy SIY1 Jo £G 01 76 sa8ed ul 1N0 13S aJe dSd pue SOS3 2yl Jo sjie1sp Jayrind

‘dnoJn aya Jo aduewopiad
pue yimou3 aya o1 Ajpuediiugis paIngliauod aAey oym asoyl 031 uoiiugodal anld 01 pue ‘Kyjeho|
pue uojed|pap paseaJsdul ysnoayl sduewloyiad jo spiepuels Jaysiy 0l ‘wayl 91eAlow 03 se oS
Auedwo) ay3 Jo A1inba ayy ur aredipiied o1 Ayluniioddo ue yum syuedipnaed 91qiSije apiaoad
[IM dSd Pue SOS3I 3yl "9L0T Jaqwiadag 9| Uo dSd pue SOS3 2yl pardope Auedwod syl

‘sawiayds aJeys aakojdws
10 s|Ie1ap Sasodsip osje 3| ‘Auedwod
9yl Jo |auuostad jusawaSeuew
A9 pue sJo3ldaJlp 03} salle|pisgns
sy pue Auedwod ayy Aq pied
‘syijauaq pue siuswded Jsylo pue
uolleJaunuwal Jo swJio} [ y4odau
[enuue sy Ul sasopasip Auedwod ay|

€8

uopneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondiasag apod

uoisinoad

33

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘su211eW SunJodal jeidueuly Uo sanljiqisuodsal s1i 1o 38Jeydsip syl Ul pieog ayrasisse  (e)

:sJ9y10 3s8uowe ‘suolduny Suimo| oy
ay1 wuoplad 031 Ajjediporiad s19aw DYy oyl 'slapjoyaleys oyl 01 Aljigeiunodde Jo spiepuels
y3iy jo 3ulayo ayl pue acueusanosd a1esoduod Jo sduersoduwl syl asiudodad sJ01dadig dYlL

‘duewJolad [epueuly
s,Auedwod syl o1 Sulne|al
sjuswadunouue Aue pue
Auedwod ay3 Jo siuawalels
|erpueuly ayy jo Audsaul ayd
2Insua 01 se 0s sjuawadpn(
pue sanss| dunJodal |epueuly
1uedyiudis oyl Suimainal

(e)

:2pNPUl DY 3Y3 JO sannp ayL

1oL

‘A12A1323[q0 sa1INp S S984eYISIP YdIyM 9913WW0D IpNY Ue sey pieog 3yl 0l a|diduLid

3933WWo) Mpny

‘91enbape pue aA[123))9 aJe SWIISAS [0J41U0D [PUISIUI pue JUBWaSeuew ysil s,dnoJo ayl 1eys
24nsua 03 syiodald ,sJolpne |euJaiul Ag suop malnad AjJeak uo paijaJd Ajjeuonippe sey pJeog ayl

‘s9dueuly pue suopnelado s,dnoJdn ayl JO MIIA die) pue anJ) aAId
SIUDWILIS [eIdURUL 93 pue pauleiuiew Ajuadoud usaaq aAey SpJodald |eldURUL 3Y) 1Y) 9dURINSSE
se 1Joday |enuuy SIYl ul 1IN0 13s se 14odaJ ,Siolipne jusapuadapul syl Uo paljaJd sey pieog ayl

"9A11094J9 puk 31enbape aJe swalsAS [0J3U0d |euJdalUl pue Jusawadeuew sl s,dnoJo ayl (@)

pue ‘sadueuly pue suonesado s,dnoJo 3yl JO MIIA Jiej pue anJ)
B 9AIS SluaWlLIS |elduURUL 9yl pue paulelulew Apadoud uasqg aaey spJodad [elpueul) 9yl (e)

1121 ZZ0TZA4 JO 108dsau ul D4 pue 03D 8yl WoJ) 3dURINSSE PauIR1qo sey pJeog ayl

‘passaJppe Ajuadoud auam [puuosiad Juswadeuew Ay pue DYy ay3 01 paiy3ys3iy aJom s|0J13u0d
|erpueuly ul sded |0Jiu0d pue sioyipne 1uapuadapul ayy Aq pawliojiad sem lpne [eUIIIXD UY

SUJ2du0d |einualod Aue ssaippe pue malAaJ 01 [ouuosiad Juswaeuew

A9y a9yl JO 2d3uUdsSQe 2Y) Ul SJOlIpNe pue DYy a9yl Usamiag play aJ4aM suoissnasig °
pue !sysi |elialew

uo DYV 2yl 01 syiodal pue sioyiuow ‘sarenjeAs Ajien8aJ |suuostad JuswaSeuew Ay °

!SJ0}pNe [eUJdIUI pUB D4 ‘OTD 9Y3 WOJ) PIAIDIDI US( SeY dIURINSSY °

:SMOJ|0} SE aJe M3IA S,pJeog ay3 Joj siseq ay L

"7Z0ZA4 40} 2A1D34)9 pue a1enbape alam swaisAs JuswasSeuew
Sl pue (sjoJiuod ASojouydal uollewJosul pue axueljdwod ‘jeuoinesado ‘jeldueuly Suipnjaur)
S|0J1U0) [euJiul S,Auedwlo) 3yl 18Ul MIIA 3U3 JO SI ‘DY Y3 JO 92UaLINdU0D 3y YIIM pieog ayl

'SW)SAS |0J43U0D
|[euJaiul pue juswaSeuew
ysiu s,Auedwod ayiy Jo
SSaUaAIIIRD pue Adenbape
oY1 Suipsedal ‘s|qisuodsals aue
oym |auuosiad juswadeuew
Aex Jayjo pue 03D aYyy

pue !sasueuly
pue suoneisado s,Auedwod
3yl JO MIIA Jlej pue anJy e
9AIS sjuawalels |ejpueuly
9yl pue paulejuiew Ajuadoud
ud9Qg 9ABY SpJ0daJ |BIDURULY
9yl 1eyl D4 9yl pue 03D 3yl

(e)

:W0J} dURINSSE PaAIIaJ Sey
11 1ey3 1odad jenuue s,Auedwod ayy
Ul S9S0|dSIp pue saldinbas pieog ayl

[49)

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

34



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Aue 41) sa|ny 1sijeaed aya
J0 0l Joadeyd pue g Joadey)d jo adods ayl uiyum 3uljjes suondesuely anoidde pue malnal

‘Ssauyeam [0J1u0d Aue ssalppe 03 ‘Aue ji ‘sioypne
|eUJ2IUl PUB [BUJSIXS WOJ) SUOIIEPUSWIWOIRI JO UoleIuswa|dwi ayl MaIA3J pue Jojiuow

V1 Ag 1IN0 paliied SMaIAIJ BIA SWISAS JusawaSeuew
MSIJ pue ‘sjoJauod ASojouyda) uonewlojul pue asueldwod ‘jeuoliesado ‘jerpueul) Suipnjpul
‘sJ0)lpne [eUJ2IXd puUe [eUIIUI BYI pUB D4 3Y) YUM S[0JIU0D [eUISIUl [elilew s,dnoJD ay)
JO SSQUdAINDRYD pue Adenbape ay) Ajjenuue 1sea| 1e pieog ay) 01 1Jodal pue malAal 0)

!sJ0122.1Q JO pJeog ay) 01 uoissiwqgns
JI9y1 aJojaq acuewdojsad |epueuly s,dnotn ayy 03 Suiie|ad SJUSWLOUNOUUE [BWIOY
Aue pue dnouo ayj JO sjuswalels |elpueul) ay3 Jo A314391uUl Y3 24NSUD 01 Se OS sJolipne
[euJa1Xa 3yl pue D4 2y yum siuawadpnl pue sanssi Suiniodal |eipueul 3uedIugis MaIAJ

‘sJolipne |euJdaixa ay) Jo uswade8us Jo swWa) pue uonedaunwal
ay3 Suinoudde pue ‘siolipne |eUJIIXd 9y JO |eAOW pue juswiulodde -2 Quawiulodde
9yl UOo sJapjoyaJteys ayl 03 sjesodoid syl uo pieog syl 01 SUOIIEPUIWILIOIDI ew

‘asuodsal sjuswaseuew
ayy pue ‘uonisod [eppueul) Jo synsaJt Sunesado s,dnodo ayl uo 1dedwi [elileW e dARY 0)
A19)1] SI 40 sey ydiym ‘suoize|ndad 4o sanJ ‘sme| Jueaajal Aue jo juswadulijul paidadsns
Jo ‘Ayyen8aull Jo pneuy pa1dadsns Aue SJ10lIpne [eUJSIXD 9Yl YIM SSNISIP pUB MIIASJ

!S103lIpne |eUIIXd 3Y) JO
AyA1323[qo pue sduspuadapul 3yl pue ‘Ipne |eulalxa ayl Jo s3Nsat pue 2dods sy MalAal

((Aaessadau asaym
JuaWwaSeuew 3yl JO 9IUSSAR BYI Ul) SSNISIP 01 Ysim Aew siolipne ayl ydiym siailew Aue
pue ‘siipne |euly pue wiiaiul ayl wod} uisiie ‘Aue 41 ‘suiaduod pue swa|qoid ssnasip
pue ‘siolipne ay) 03 Juswaseuew 3yl Agq USAIS duelsIsse 9yl SuIMalAd ‘Juswadeuew
9U) pue ‘sI0lIpne |[PUJRIXd puUe |[BUJIUI SY] U3IMIDQ UOIIRUIPJIO0D INSUD pue SWaIsAS
juswadeuew ysid pue ‘sjosyuod ASojouydal |euolewJojul pue adueldwod ‘jeuonelado
‘lelpueul} dulpnjoul ‘s|joJiuod |[euJdaiul ayl jo Adenbape pue SS2UDAIIIDLD DYl MIIA

‘syuswialinbal
Aioiren3au/Ai01nieis Jayio Aue pue sajny isijeied ayl yim adueljdwod se ||om se
spJepuels 3uiniodad |eppueul yim adueljdwod ‘Juswialels uladuod Sulod ayl ‘ypne ayl
woJ} Sunnsal syuswisnipe juediyiusis ‘seade ysii Jolew ‘sadnndeld pue sapijod Supunodde
ul sadueyd uo “Jejndizded ul 3uisndo) ‘lerosdde Jo) pieog ayil 03 UOISSILWIQNS 24049
SIUBWDIUNOUUER S1|NS3J pPUB SIUSWISILIS [BIDURUI |ENUUER PUB WIIIUI 9Y) M3IADJ !S10lipne
|euJa1xa pue |eudajul ayy Agq pajidwod siipne ay3 Jo s3jnsaJd pue ‘asuodsal s,juswaSeuew
9Y1 pue J2119] JusawaSeurw JIay3 ‘S[0J43u0d SuinuNodde [eulalUl JO WSISAS ay) JO UoneNn|eAd
J19Y1 “Jom Jo adods ‘suejd 1pne ayl ‘siolipne |[eulaixa pue |eudaiul 3yl Yiim ‘Malnal

()

0)

@

"SUJ9IU0D
yons 3uisied Joj sainpadsoud
pue Adijod Suimolg-a3siym e
JO 92UD1SIX2 aY) ‘saskojdws
01 salediunwwod Apiea|d
pue ‘sasojdsip Ajdjgnd
Auedwod ayl ‘uo dn
pamojjo} Ajoierudoudde pue
paiediisanul Ajpuspuadapul
‘pasied Kjajes ag 01 sJa1ew
Jayio Jo Sunuodad jepueuly Ul
sanadoadwi ajqissod Inoqe
SUJadU0d J0j Sjuswadueldie
pue Adijjod syl Suimainal

pue ‘uonduny
1pne jeuJaiul s,Auedwod
29Ul pue 1pne |euJaixa
9yl Jo sinsaJs pue adods
‘@auapuadapul ‘SSaUDAIIIBYIS
‘Arenbape ayi Suimainal

!sJ0)lpne | uJaIxa
9y3 Jo j1uawadedus JOo swid)
pue uollelsunwaJ ay3 (I1) pue
!SJOIpNEe |RUJIIXD JO [BAOWIDI
pue 3jusawiuilodde ayl uo
sJap|oyaJeys ayy 03 sjesodoud
3yr (1) :uo pieog 3y 031
suoliepuawwodal Jupjew

Sjuswialels
[eIDUBUL} pUB SPJ0J3J [BlDUBUL
9y} U0 D4 ay) pue O3ID =yl
W04} 9dueinsse ayl SUIMaIA

'swaisAs
juswa8euew  ySi4  pue
s|0Jiu0d |eusaiul s,Auedwod
dYl JO SSaUdAIIIDD pue
Aoenbape oyl Ajenuue
1sea| e Suimainal

®)

@

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

35

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘paJtaisiuiwpe Ajuadoud si 31 1eyy Sulinsua pue Adjjod Suimolq
-9J3SIym 2y Jo Suiioyiuow pue y3ISIaA0 ayl Joy 3|qisuodsal si DYy 9yl ‘Auedwo) ay) isujese
Jo Aq s8uipaadoud Aue jo sasodind Joj Jo suonendas pue sme| ajgedijdde Aq paJdinbas asimiaylo
SSa|un |ennuUaplU0d 1day 39 jeys AMIUap! S,JaMO|g-3]3SIYM YL ‘2INSOISIP 3yl JO duanbasuod
12341p e se dnoJo syl wody Jo ulyum [esiadas Aue wody paidalodd aq [|IM 3ys/ay aJaym ‘24nso|asIp
Jo jurejdwod e SunRWgNS USYM }[9SJay/4asWiy AJIIUspl 3ISNW J9MO|Q-3[ISIYM a3y "Iudwiealy
Jlejun Jo |eyuawiiap isuiede pajdalodd si Jamo|g-9)3siym Aue eyl 24nsus 01 pPalHwWWod S|
Auedwo) ay] "9JuUapIUOd Ul pue yiie) pood Ul ‘suad1jo si pue dnoun ayl 01 Suie|al sadideldjew
Jay1o Jo ‘Suiopduoim 1dnpuodsiw ‘Suiniodad [eldueuly Jo Jd3jew ul ‘Aj3dadip siequiaw DYy
9yl 03 sanandoidwi 3jqissod 1noge suJaduod aulinuad 14odas pue asied 01 suostad Jaylo
Aue 1o dnoup ay3 Jo saakojdwa Joj [auueyd ayi sapirodd Ydiym ‘siaquiaw DYy 4o Suisiudwod
pue uosJadiieyd s,Oyv ayr Aq papeay ‘Adijod Suimo|g-spasiym e paysijgelss sey dnodo ayyl

‘Auedwo) ay3 Jo ajiy04d 3si ayl

uo 1oedwyi 3|qissod Aue S| 34ay3 }I SUIUWISIBP 0} MIIAJ [BIUSWIUOIIAUR dIpoltad axeyiapun
pue ‘suejd uonoe pue 3ji404d Xsi1 dNoJD SI0IUOW puUB SMIIA

!saAlenIul Juswadeuew ysiJ speayJleads

!s?130e4d pue Wa3ISAS JuaWAZeUBW XSIJ 3Y JO SSAUDAIIIDYD Y] S93SIIN0

‘3unsaw pua Jeak |eppueul)

K1ana ul [erosdde pue malAald Jo) DYV 03 140daJ MIIASI JUSWISSISSE MSI4 Yl 3|gel [|eys
pue Jeak e uj 2du0 31sed| 1e uonelado s,dnoJDH Yl UO MIIADJ JUBUISSISSE MSIJ B 1DNPUOD (0

:U03J9Y1 DYV 243 01 SUOIIEPUSLIWIO0II 3 ew
pue 1i0daJ ||eys pue mojaq paiejdwaiuod siaiiew ayl Yum DYY 9yl 1SISSe ||eys DAY "S1I04D
jJuswadeuew sl s,dNoJH Yyl JO UOIIRUIPJIO-0D pue 1YSISISA0 dAIINISAXD aplAodd 01 pajuiodde
S| Juswadeuew Xsid Ul dualIadxa sey oym D4 ‘weal Juswadeue pue si03dalig 9AIINISXT aY)
4o pasudwod DAY ‘dnodn ayl Jo ainsodxa XSl ||esaA0 ay3 aSeuew 03 JapJo Ul (,DMINY,)
dnoun Supjdop Juswadeue|n Ysiy SI Yy3noayl suoiduny juswadeuew 3Sid 9yl S93SI9A0 DY

"9WI} 03 W1 WOJ) 012433 dpew siuawpuawe yans Ag pue ‘sajny 1si|eied ayl
Jo 31n1e1s Aq paJdinbas ag Aew se saiInp pue suo(1duny Jayio yans ayelrsapun o1 Ajjesaussd (0)

pue ‘dnoJo uno uo Ajpanedau 1oedwi 1eyl sia1iew
Jayro Jo A1ajes ‘ssauisng ‘S8unipne ‘Suipunodde ajgeuolisanb ‘saakojdwa si1 Jo dnoup
N0 SUIA|OAUL ‘S9OUDH0 |eulWIlID ‘suayio 1sSuowe ‘01 uiuiersad dnolo uno Aq panladal
syulejdwod JOo JuawieaJly pue uolualad ‘1diddald Joy saunpadold ysigeisa pue malAal (u)

Jdv ayi jo
uonuale ayl Suiinbal pue 3uiside SJ1913eW UO dW} 01 dW} Wodj sdulpuly s pJeog ayi 0}
1J0daJ pue pieog ayl Aq paisanbau aq Aew se s12afoid pue smaiAad J9Yl0 Yyons ayersapun (W)

‘dnoup
a1 Aq pajuswajdwi aq 03 (Aue }1) syuswnuisul pue saipijod 3uiSpay |je anoidde pue malnal o

!S159431U1 JO S121)3U0D [ennualod Aue mainal  (¥)

uopneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondiasag apod

uoisinoad

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

36



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘uonduNny Jpne
[euJaIUl PRD4NOSINO BY) JO UONEBIBUNWSL pue uoneulue) quawiuiodde ay) Uo sapIRBP DYV 3yl

'SJ0)IpNY |eUJSIU| JO 21N11ISU| 3y Aq paleS|nwoid yiomawelq sad110e.d |eUOISSD404d
jeuoneutaiul Aq paping pue AjoAnda4e sannp sil adteydsip o1 Auedwo) ayy ul Sulpuels
a1eudoudde syl sey pue ‘padinosal pue pallienb Aj@ienbape si v ay3 1eyl paiysnes st DYV ayl

‘Jpne jo adods ay3 jo Axenbape
9Y3 2Jnsua 01 ue|d 1ipne |euJaiul ay3 sanosdde pue SMaIASJL DYY YL DYV 243 031 sS920e Sulpnpul
|ouuosJtad pue sanuadoud ‘spiaodad ‘syuswniop s,Auedwo) syl [|e 031 ssadde [N} 9AeY SJollpne
|euJaiul 9yl ‘D4 pue 03D ayl 01 A|AnBIISIUIWPE pue uewliey) JYY ayl ol A;3daJip siiodal
1843 P17 91d AJOSIAPY MSIY S1 BIXSN 03 Pa3Jn0SIno S| uolduny ipne |eusalul s,Auedwod ayl

‘Auedwod
a1 uiyum 3uipuess aierudoisdde sey
pue ‘Oy ayy Suipnjoul ‘|auuosiad
pue sajziadoud ‘spiodas ‘syuswindop
s, Auedwod oyl || 01 ssadde
pa42119jun Ssey uolduUNy pne
[eUJDIUI BYL "UOIIdUNJ JIpPNE |eUJdIUI
9y} JO peay ay) Jo uopesaunwal
pue uolleulwJidl ‘Jusawiulodde
Yl UOo Saplep os|e yaiym Oy
9yl 01 Sl UoIdUNS lpne |euJalul
ay3 Jo aull 3unJodas Asewud ayy

7ol

‘uolesoduod Sunipne Jo wuly 3unipne ay3 ul 3saJa)ul jeldueuly Aue
spjoy (q) pue ‘uoneiod.iod Sunipne ay3 Jo 4012aJ1p Jo wiy unipne ay3 Jo Jaulled e aq 01 Suisead
J19Y31 JO 91ep ay3 uo 3upuawwod sieak (z) omi jo poriad e uiyim (e) uoizesodaod Sunipne Jo Wiy
Sunipne 3unsixa s,Auedwo) ayl Jo J032341p 4O Jaulied Jowloy B S| siaquiaw DYY 9yl JO SUON

‘uonesodiod
Sunipne Jo wJiy Sunipne ayl ul
1saJa1ul |epueuly Aue aney Asyl
se 3uo| se Joj (q) ‘ased Aue ul pue
‘uonesodiod Sunipne ayl JO J01dAIP
Jo wJiy Sunipne ayl jo Jaulied e
9q 03 Suisead J1ay) JO 21ep ayl uo
SupuswWwod sieak omy Jo polsad e
ulysm (e) :uonesodtod 3unipne Jo
wJi) Sunipne 3unsixa s,Auedwod
9yl JO sJoi1daJlp Jo sidulied
JawJoy asidwod jou ssop DV dylL

€0l

“Juspuadapul
2Je siaquiaW DYV dyl ||V 3enH Suoyd wiT JN pue ey Suels wiq 4\ aJe syl ‘sanijigisuodsal
J19yy a8ueydsip 031 2dualiadxs pue asiiiadxs juswageuew |eldueul) palejad pue Sulaunodde
JUBA3[3J BY) dABY OUM ‘UBWIIRYD DYV 9yl Sulpnjpul ‘siaquiaw (Z) oMl 1sed| 1e sey DYV ayl

‘9oualJadxa 4o asiiadxa
JuswaSeuew [elpueul) pale|al Jo
guinunoooe jueAs|aJ pue 1ul3dal
aAey ‘uewdieyd DV 2yl Sulpnpul
‘sJagquUaW OM] 1Sea| 1y "Juapuadapul
ale ‘uewdieyd DV a3yl Suipnjoul
‘woym Jo Ayiolew ayy pue aAlINIBXa
-UOU 3Je WOyM JO [|e ‘SJ01dallp
994y 31sea| 1e sasndwod Dy 9yl

colL

"2Z0ZA4 Ul paAIdal s1iodal SUIMo|g-2(1SIUM OU 2J9M 343y L

‘d[1uredieinwes@®mo|gajasiym Suimo||0) a3 BIA Siaquiaw DY o Aue
ay1 01 SunlIm Ul aJnsoasip Jo ulejdwod e Supwgns ‘@duaplyuod ul ‘Aew Jjeis ayj "uolIeIualIo
Sunnp si3nJ>aJ4 mau pue dnolo ayy Jo Jjeis |je 01 uanig aJe Ad1jod Suimo|g-a)3siym ayl Jo sjierad

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

37

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘3unesw [esauas oyl 1e s1ysid SunoA sii/ay
/SIY U0 310A 01 Axoud s1iz49yysiy se Sunasw |esauad Jo uewdiey) ayi wuiodde 1snwi siapjoyaleys
‘auoyda|al ein paa) oipne ,9Al, e Yy3noJdyy s3uipasdoid asayy 01 uaisl| Jo suaindwod Jo s19|qel
‘souoyd ajigow JIday) eIA 1sedgam ,aAll, e y3dnodyl Sunsaw |esauad ayi Jo sSuipasddold ayl
yoiem 031 d|ge 3 ||IM SI9p|oyaJeys Sueaw d1U0J1d3|9 eIA NDY SUIW0dYllo) 3yl pjoy 01 papliap
dnoJo 3yl nsaJ e sy ‘paJinbad [|11s aJe sainseaw Ateuoinedald jeyy uojuido ayl jo sI dnouo
3U1 ‘pasl|igeis aAey pue ||ej 0} panNUIUOd pey Ssaled Uol1daul Ajlep ayy se ‘Ajpuadal sainseaw
JapJog pue Ayiunwiwod Jo Suises ayl padcunouue Jayiing alode3uls JO JUSWUISA0D 3yl y3noyly

‘Xey} Jo |lewd ‘llew Aq enuasqge ul 3uiloA Jusawajdui
01 J0U ‘3ulaq awWil aY3 Joy ‘papidap sey dnodo syl ‘UIdadU0d B ulewal |13s sanss| A114ndas palejal
J9Yl0 pue uojjewJojul Ajusapl Japjoyaleys Jo UOlILIIIUAYINE dY) SY J|eyaq 419yl uo 210A
pue 3uieaw |eJauad pualle 03 saixoud julodde 031 suap|oyaJeys || SMO||e UO0IIN1IISU0) ayl

‘Auedwo) 3yl Ul SIUSWISIAUL JI9Y) JO 123dSaJ Ul SUOISIIBP PauULIojul 9ew 01 SIap|oyaJleys a|qeud
03 se 0S ‘saJeys Sil Jo anjeA Jo 9d1ud ay)y uo 1dedwl [eluaiew e dAeRY PIN0d YdIym aduewlojiad
|erpueul) pue jusawdojaAaap ssauisng s, Auedwo) ayy o3 Sujuiersad uonewdojul Ajenadss
‘1INXDS eIA siseq A[awil pue a1eindde ‘aAlsuayalduwod e uo pasojasip SI UOIRWIOUl [elidlew
|le 1eyy saunsua Auedwo) ayl ‘syysis diysiaumo ,siapjoyaleys aiell|ide) ol ‘siap|oyaleys |e
0] JuswieaJl a|geyinba pue Jiey ay3 ajowoid sadnydesd adueusanod ayesoduod s,Auedwod ayl

‘siapjoyaJeys jo s3uieaw |esauad
SUIUISA0S S3INJ Y3 JO WAYI SWIoUl
pue siap|oyaJeys jo sdunaaw
|eJoua8 16 210A pue ul A|9A1I9})D
21edipnged o1 Ayluniioddo ayl yam
sJapjoyaJleys sapinoad Auedwod ayy

L'l

's10adsoud pue uonisod ‘@ouewlojiad S)I JO JUSWISSISSE
9|gepueisiapun pue pajuejeq e stap|oyaJeys sanld Auedwod ayl ‘Auedwod syl Suidayje SJ91lew U0 SMIIA JI9y) a1ediunwwod 01 Ajluniioddo
9yl 9ABY pue S1ySiJ ,SJap|oyaleys 3SID49X2 01 Wayl 9|geus 03 JapJo ul A|geiinba pue Ajie) siapjoyadeys |je syeasy Auedwod ayy] :1 9|dipulig

s3ySiy ,siopjoyaieys

LNIWNIOVYONI ANV SLHOIY ¥IATOHINVLS

"ZZ0ZA4 Ul [uuosiad Juswadeuew
A9y Jo 93UasSge 9yl Ul SI0NPNE |PUJSIUI pUB SJOIIPNE [PUJSIXS 93Ul YlIM 12W Sey DYV ayl

‘Kjlenuue
1se9| 1e ‘quawsa8euely jo dduasaud
3Yl 1noylMm 3sed yoea Ul ‘sioypne
[eUJDIUI dY} YlMm pue ‘siollpne
[BUJDIXD BY) UMM S1daw DY dyl

S0l

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

38



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘Suneaw [esaus8 sy 1e s1ySis SUOA S,31/09Y/SIY UO 910A 03 S,31/43Y/SIy
se 3upaaw |eJauad jo uewdieyd ayl julodde isnw siapjoyaleys ‘|)ANDY Suiwoddn ayi JoH

"Xk} J0 |lews? ‘jlew Aq enuasqe
ul Sunoa juswsajdwi 03 10U ‘Sulaq Wil 3yl 404 ‘papIdap sey dnoJo syl ‘UisdU0d B ulewal ||13s
sanssl A114n2as pajejaJl Jaylo pue uonewloiul A13usapl Japjoyaeys Jo U0IILdIIUdYINe 3yl SY

‘Axoud Jo wuoy ayy ul paydads aq |jeys pajuiodde
uaaq sey Axoud yoea ydiym 031 UolIe[aJ Ul S9JeYS JO SSed pue Jaguinu ay) ‘saixold (g) oml ueyl
aJow sjyuiodde Axoud JO W0} S, JaQUIBW YdNS SJIYM Jaquiall yans Aq p[ay Saleys Jualayip o1
payoeiie s1ysit syl asiniaxa 01 pajulodde aqg 3snw Axoud ydes 1ng Sunneaw |eiauas syl e yeads
pue pualie 01 saixoJd (z) oml ueyi aJow 1ujodde Aewl SaLIRIPAWISIUI JURAS|SI B S| OYM JaquiaWl

'sguizeaw |esauad ay3 1e Jjeyaq Jay Jo SIY UOo 910A pue pualle
01 saixoid (Z) om1 ueyy aiow 1ou jujodde 01 Jap|OYJRYS [ENPIAIPUI UB SMO|E UOIININASUOD 3yl

‘sJapjoyaJeys Jo
sS8unsaw |eJauas 1e SunoA enuasqe
10} MOJ|E (SIUSWNIOP SAIINIIISUOD
J2yio J0) uol1Iniiasuo) a9yl

vl

"Z7Z0ZA4 Ul sSunaaw [24auas J0J 32ULPUIIL S,101234IP BY] J0) G| UOISIAOI] 01 J3JaJ asea|d

"140daJ s,J03pne Juspuadapul 8y Jo JualU0d pue uopeledald sy
pue 1pne Jo 19Npuod 3yl 3noge salanb ,siapjoyaJleys ssaippe 03 Juasaid ag 01 palinbai osje aJe
SJojpne |eulalxa ay] 'S9IDUIBIXd JO SSI|UN ‘siapjoyaJleys Jo s3uieaw |esauas e 1e Juasald ag 0}
(s9211WwwIo) pJeog ayl Jo uewdieyd aandadsal ay3 Suipnjpul) sio1daliq |je saJdinbals Auedwo) ay

‘110daJ |enuue s,Auedwod ayy ul
paso|dsip si Jeak |epueul) ayl Sulnp
play s8uneaw ydns 1e aduepualle
,SJ0123J1q ‘1Jodad ,sioiipne 8yl
JO 1ud1u0d pue uonesedasd syl
pue 1lipne jo 1dNpuod 3yl i1noge
sallanb ,sispjoyaleys ssaippe 03
Judsald os|e aJe sJolpne [eulalxd
9yl pue ‘siapjoyaJteys jo s3upasw
[eJaus8 pualle sJ01dBJIP ||V

‘Sunpeaw Jo adnou
9y} ul suopedidwi |elialew pue suosead ay) sulejdxs Auedwo) ayi ‘,pajpung, dJe suoinjosal
9Y3 2J9yp\ "uonnjosal aeledas e se pasodoud si [earosdde siapjoyaseys Suiinbal ua1iew Aiang

'sSuneaw |eJauasd
yoans 1e siaaunnids ayy Agq paulejdxa aJte ‘ssaxoud Suinon ayy Suipnjpul ‘sajnJd ayl ‘sSunasw
|eJauad ayl e pajgel suolinjosal [je Joj 3unoa jjod sidonpuod Auedwo) ayy ‘sainpadoud
pue sa|nJ SullOoA Paysi|geIsa 9yl YlIM 2dUeplodde Ul 9J0A O} PIJIIUD aJe siapjoyaleys ||Y

‘uodn papidap
pue palegap g 031 suolijow ayl uo arey Aew Aayy suonsanb Aue yiioj ind o3 sSunssw |esausd
dYl pualie 0} PIAYAUl Je SIapjoyaleys ‘d1ep INDY P3NPayds ayl a404aqg sAep (i]) Ua91Inoy
1Sea| 1e sJuapjoyaJeys ||e 01 paysignd s| ‘1odas [enuue ayl yim Jayiasol ‘ADY JO ad130uU YL

‘1 INXDS @Y1 03uo paisod siejnadid Jo syiodal
|Jenuue Ul pauleuod sadjzou ysnodyl s8uileaw ,siapjoyaleys Jo pauwllojul ale siapjoyaleys

‘Suneaw jo sdnou
ayl ul suonedjdwi |elidlew pue
suoseas ay) sulejdxa Auedwod ay
',pa|pung, aJe SUoIIN|0SaJ Y3 YA
‘lesodoud juediugis aUo WwJo) 03 se
0S payul| pue juspuadapialul ale
S9NSS| 9yl ssajun anss| aiededss
Alleinueisgns yoses uo sJapjoyaleys
40 sSuj3eaw |eJauad 1e suolIN|osal
91etedas sajqer Auedwod oyl

<l

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

39

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘SUnasN |eJauan |enuuy Sujwoddn
ay1 1e |enosdde ,siapjoyaleys ayl 01 123lgns ade puapialg pasodoud ayl ‘Aj@andadsal Auedwod
ay3 jo |eaded ay3 uj aJdeys AseuipJdo Jad $00°0$S pue aJteys Aseuipto Jad z00'0$S 40 (,puUspIAl
pasodoud,) spuapialp (3dwaxa xel Jsan-auo) |enads pue |euly e uisodoid pue ‘Ajpandadsal
Auedwo) aya jo |euded syl ul aieys Aseuipio Jad #00°0$S pue aJteys Aueuipto Jad z00'0$S JO
SpuapIAlp (3dwaxa xe) J4a13-au0) |epads pue wiidlUl Ue paJte|dap pey pJeog ayl ‘Zz0ZA4 Ul

'$40122J1Q 9Y3 Aq JUBAS|2J paWa3p SJ4031de) J13Yl0 Aue (?)

pue ‘dnoJo ay3 jo aduewJogiad [eppueuly pardasfold pue jenyde syy  (p)

‘dnoJo ay Jo uonipuod Supueul) [eJauad pue siuswaldinbal [eyided Supiom paldadxa ayl ()
‘Auedwo) ayl 01 uswAed puapiAlp aew 03 saleipisgns ayl jo Ajige ayy ()

‘dnoJo ay) Jo Moy} ysed pue suonesado jo synsal ‘uoiisod [epueuly Yy (@)

15403284 SUIMO||0} B3 JUNOJIE 0IUI 3 E] |[IM SJ03I3JIQ dY3 ‘poltad Jo Jeak [eppueuly
JejndnJed Aue Jjo 129dsaJd Ul SPUIPIAIP 24NINy Jo unowe pue Aduanbaly ‘wJo) syl SulapIsSuod U|

‘sJap|oyaJleys
01 1 salediunwwod pue Adiod

‘Ko1j0d puapialp paxiy e aney 1ou saop Ajpuatind Auedwo) ayl | puapialp e sey Auedwod ayl 9Ll
JuswaSeue|y pue pJeoq
9yl wouJ} sasuodsal pue ‘Sunasw
|esauag ayi jo epuade ayy 01 Sunejal
siap|oyaJ4eys wody salianb Jo
SIUSWIWOD JUBAS[SJ puUE |BIIURISONS
‘1 INXDS eIA SI9p|Oyaleys 01 d|qe|leAe apew ae ZZ0ZA4 404 sSuieaw [eJauss Jo sainuiw ||y | pJ03aJ sainujw ayl 'd|gedndesd se
UoOS Se 3}Isgqam d31elodod s) uo
‘Suneaw [eJauad ay3 Jo UOISN|PUOD AY) Jdyje | siapjoyaleys Jo s3ujleaw |esauas
1INXDS eIA pasunouue g [|Im S} NSaJ pajieap J1ay3 pue ‘[jod Ag a1oA 03 Ind aJe suofanjosal ||y | 40 sainuiw saysiignd Auedwod sy Sl
uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo) uondiidsag apo) | uoisinoad

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

40



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Juawadelua
sJap|oyayels uo yoeoidde s,Auedwo) ayl uo sjieIsp Jayliny Joj zzoz 3sndny Aq panssi aq |[Im
yoiym 1ioday Adljigeuleisns syl 01 4294 3sea|d 'suolle1dadxa J1ayl pueisiapun 03 SIapjoyaels Jo
sdnoJg aSJaAIp Jno 3NSU0D pue yym a8eSua shkem|e am ‘Dnoidull A|ISNoNUIIUOD UBD 9M 1Byl 94NSUd
01 ‘2J4042J3Y] ‘sadus|jeyd Ayjigeuleisns Suissalppe ul sn 3doddns A3yl se [e1dnJd S| Siapjoyayels
Jno yum diysuoiielal aso|d e ujuieiuiew eyl aAsl|ag S 'sanss| |elalew s,dnoio ayy SuiSeuew
01 yoeoudde pue Suniodas uno jo sdueAld|as ayy uayrduaais padjay sey 1 se syuswadedus
Japjoyayeis Jno wody Suisiie ¥oegpasy ayl sanjea osje Auedwod syl ‘dnoJdo ay3 1dedwi ey
syuawdojanap Joflew e Jo pawaojul Ajswi pue Ajjlenba aq pjnoys siapjoyaJeys |je 1eya st Adijod
s,pJeog ayy 10y saluedwo) ay3 pue sajny 1sijeied ayy 01 wuensind Auedwo) ay3 jo suonediqo
9JNSO[ISIP SNONUIIUOD YIM BUI| U| '2JNSO[ISIP dAI3I3]3s 9d13dedd jou ssop Auedwo) ayl

‘'sdnoJd
yons yum sdiysuonejas sy adeuew
01 pue sdnoJ8 Japjoyayels |eliarew
S11 yum a8e3ua pue Ajuapi o1 aded
Ul syuswaduedle sey Auedwod ayl

L'EL

‘pPanJas ale Auedwlod ay3 4O SISaJ31Ul 1S9q 33 1eY) 24NSUd 01 AYjigisuodsal ||elano
S Jo 1ied se ‘sIap|oyayels |elidiew Jo S1SaJailul pue spasau ayl Supuejeq pue uliapisuod Aq yoeoudde aaisnpul ue syidope pieog syl gl a|dipulid

siapjoyayels yim juswasesus

SAIHSNOILV13d ¥43ATOHINVLS ONIDOVNVIN

‘A|8uipJodde sallinbua syl uo puodsal [Im [ouu0osJad J01SaAUl Y] ‘saldinbua Aue aney
Asyy pjnoys dluledielnWes®Jl 12 Sn 12e3u0d Aew sJapjoyaleys ‘swiojie|d eipaw [ed0S Se |[am
se 911sgam 21e40di0d Jno Yy3noJdyl Ssaippe |lews s,uolie|ad J03saAul ayl paysijgnd pey dnouo ayy

‘'suolnsanb yons o1 puodsau Aew
Auedwod ayl yaiym ygnouyy pue
suonsanb yim Auedwod ayi 10e3u0d
Aew sJap|oyaJteys yaiym ysnoayl
wsiueydaw a9yl ino sias Adijod
suolle|aJ JoisaAul s,Auedwod ayl

el

‘BIpaW pue sisAjeue ‘siap|joyayels ‘siapjoyaleys ||e pue Auedwo) ay) Uusamiag UolIedunwwod
9AI109}J9 9|geua 03 uoniedlunwwod ajesodiod ‘Suizunodde ‘exueuly aied3aiul 01 Ajiqisuodsal
jJuswaSeuew 21391e41S 9yl sey oym (,0d),) 4192140 wawdopaag a1edodio) Ag pa| sI uonduny
suone|aJl Joisanul s,Auedwo) syl 'Ad1j0d suoe|ay J01SaAU| ue aAey 1ou saop Auedwo) ayl

'SJ9P|OYaJeys Yim UojIediunwuiod
Jle) pue aAndaye endald ajowoud
pue a8e3ua A|9AI10E 0) SB 0S SMIIA
Jo 98ueydxa 3ulo3uUo ue 1o} SMmoje
yoiym Adzijod suoiie|al J03ISIAUI
ue ade|d ul sey Auedwod syl

el

"9A1309449 1S0D pUR JUBIDINS SJE S|DUURYD UOJIRIIUNWWOI JUS.LIND 3y
1BY) M3IA BY3 JO SeM pJeog 9yl ‘MaIAaJ Japun Jeak [ejaueuly 9y 404 19y saluedwo) syl pue sajny
1sijeae) ayy 01 wuensund suones||qo 24nsoasip s,dnoJn ayl Yiim aul| Ul ‘siseq dieipaulwl ue uo
13INXDS ein dnoun sy 1oedwi eyl syuswdo|aAsp |eldalew |je Suipledal Jauuew aAlsuayaldwod
pue 21e4n2de Ue Ul A[SnosueINWIS pawdojul 9q p|noys siapjoyaJeys [je 1eya si Adijod s,pieog ayL

‘siapjoyaJleys
JO SM3IA 3Y) pueISIapun pue 11d1|os
01 uaye) sdais ay) 1odal [enuue sy
Ul S9S0|2SIp pue sJapjoyaJleys |e pue
pJeog syl Usamiag UoIIedIUNWWOD
10} sanuaAe sapirosd Auedwod syl

Lel

‘Auedwod ay3 Sui3daje SI913BW SNOLIBA U0 SMIIA JI9Y3 91B2IUNWWIOD 03 SI9p|oyaJeys moj|e 03 sandojelp Jayio pue
sdunsaw |esaual Sulnp siapjoyaleys jo uonedpiied syl saielijide) pue siapjoyaldeys si Yum Aliein8ad sarediunwiwod Auedwod sy :z| 9|dipulid

siapjoyaieys yiim juswasesu]

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

41

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

“Jeak [eppueuly snojaald 3y JO pud SY3 dDUIS 03U| PAJIIUD ‘SUISISONS UBY) JoU JI
J0 ZZ0ZA4 40 pua 2y 1e 3uisisgns []13s JayYia aJe ydiym Japjoyaleys Suljjodiuod Jo 403daJiq Aue

‘03D 9yY3 Jo 1saJaiul 3yl Suiajoaul dnodn ayl Ag 0lul paJajua S12eJiuod |elidlewl ou aJ4aM aJayl S10eJjuo) |elLleN (8)v0zL
‘'SJolipne |eulaixs ayl Jjo
f1nndalgo pue sxuspuadapul 9yl 1094 10U Op SJolipne [euJdaixa ayy Agq papiaoid sad1AIaS Jipne
-UOU JO JU31IX3 pue ainieu ayl ‘DYY 2yl jo uoluido ay3 si 3| ‘wayl o1 pied saa) ay3 pue papiaoad
S9IIAISS Jpne-uou ayl Suimalnal Ag slolipne [eulaixa ayl Jo A1andalqo pue sduspuadapul ayl
JO M3IAR [ENUUR 3Y) %00143PUN DYV 3y ‘S3|ny 1si[eIed ayi Jo (9)(9)r0zL Ny Yam adueljdwiod u
009'C soueldwod xe| -
994 Jipne-uoN
005'65 $99) 11PNy
$S
:2Z0ZA4 40} pied s93) 1ipne-uou pue 1pne ayl 1IN0 S19S MO|aq 3|qel Yl lipne |[euJaixy (9)rozL
‘sJolipne 91/ JO
s3I Jo Juawiulodde syl Ul L/ pue ZL/ S9Ny 1sijeied ay3 01 axueldwod s swaiyuod Auedwod ayl SJ01Ipny Jo 1uswiuloddy SLL'ZLL
"LINXDS 3y
uo 31 peojdn |im pue zz0z 31sn8ny Ag ZzZ0ZA4 40) 110day Aiijigeureisns si ansst ||im Auedwo) syl yoday Ayjigeuteisns ViLL
uonjeue|dx3 1o asueijdwo) s,Auedwo) uondiinsaqg a|ny aIny
Isijele)

S3TNY LSITVLVY) 318VII1TddVY HLIM 3DNVITdINOD

‘Wod’|0soJaryzielnwies//:dny
d1sgam aiesoduod si ysnodyi siusawdojaasp 21esodiod s3I UO Siapjoyaseys saiepdn
Auedwo) ayy ‘aiodas |enuue S)3I pue Sjuswadunouue [INXDS 2yl wod) redy

‘'siapjoyaye1s yum adedus pue
21e2/UNWWO0Y 03 d3Isgam a1elodiod
jua4und e sujeiulew Auedwod syl

€€l

Juswadelua siapjoyaxels uo yoeoudde
s, Auedwo) ay1 uo sjieIsp Jayriny Jo) zzoz 31sn8ny Ag panssi aqg [im yaiym 1ioday Alljigeuieisns
9y} 01 J9jaJ ased|d ‘A}[1gIssaIde pue 1snJ) uo paseq sJapjoyaJteys sy yum diysuone|as ayl
uayr8uaais 01 se 0S uoiew.Jojul Alpwiy pue a|gel|aJ yim siapjoyaleys A|ddns 01 saals Auedwod
dUJ "Way) 03 1S9J31ul JO dJe eyl syusawdo|andp UO SJap|oyaJleys pue sJ01saAul a1epdn 01 awi}
03 9WI} WOJ} Ssyuswadunouue asew osje |[Im Auedwo) ay] "disgam s,Auedwo) syl pue asea|al
SMaU Ag pPamo||0} ‘JUBAR|DJ 2JaYmM pue |INXDS YSnoJyl paileujuassip o 1SJi} |[IM UOIRWIOoU|

‘portad Suniodat ayy
Suinp sdiysuolielal Japjoyaels Jo
juawsageuew ay3y 03 UOIIL[DJ Ul SNJ0}
Jo seale Aoy pue A3are.is syl 1uodal
[enuue sy ul sasopasip Auedwod ayy

el

uoneue|dx3 4o asuejjdwo) s,Auedwo)

uondinsag apod

uoisinoad

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

42



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

"220ZA4 8ulinp suonoesues uosiad
P21S2J21UI 3|geISO[ISIP OU aJ9M 343y "Sld| 40} 1epuew [esauas e aAey jou saop dnoio ayl

‘siapjoyaJleys Aysouiw sy pue Auedw o) ay3 Jo s3salaiul oyl 031 [edipnfaid Jou aJe pue swis)
|BI2J3WWIOD [eWJOU UO IN0 pallied ale Asyl 1eyl pue D¥y ayi 01 Jauuew Ajpwi e uo pariodal
pue paiuswndop Ajuadoud aie Asy) 1Yl a4nsua 03 Sid] || Suluianod sainpadold sey dnouo ayl

(.1dl.)
uolldesuel| SUOSISd PI1saJalu|

(Lol

'SJO}IpNe [euJalUl 9Y) JO UOlIBJaUNWSJ pUB UoieUIW ) Quawiulodde ayl Uo Sapidap os|e DYV
3yl "DYV 9yl 01 SI sJojipne |euJaiul ayl Jo aul| Sunsodal Atewiud ay] "saiuedwod paisi| Jo) supne
SuiwJoyiad sieak (1) US14N0J UBY) 240W Sey oym uayd ejawed S\ Aq pa| SI pue siaquiaw
(€) @24y3 Jo sasidwod paudisse wea) Juswadedus 1uaJind 3yl "UuoI8aJd 3yl Ul SIIIAISS AloSiape
pue sa21AJ9S Juawadeuew ¥ sl ‘syipne |euJaiul Suipinoad ul 9dualladxa 1SeA sassassod S| eIXaN
'sieak (G7) aAl-A1usam) ueyl 240w Jo) W) Suinunodde Jan-piw paysi|qeiss ue se pasiudodal si
ya1ym ‘uoizesodiod Suinunoddy d1jgnd S1 eixaN Jo Auedwod e si S eixaN "dnoJo ay) Jo sassadoud
|0JIUOD [eUJRIUI DY) MBIASJ 0] J0lIpNe |euJaiul ayl se (,S1 eIXaN,) P11 21d AJOSIAPY YsSIY S1
eIxaN paiulodde sey Auedwo) ay] "sassadoud s,dnodn ayi JO S|0JIUOD JO 1SD) pue MIIASL 3y
wiioglad 01 Wil |euoISSajold [PUIIXD Ue 0] UOIdUNS JIpNe [euJalul 8yl s924nosino Auedwo) ay L

‘Auedwo) ay3 uiyym Suipueis areridoadde ayy sey °

pue ‘dnoJo ay) Joj 3Jom ay3 wloglad 03 padinosal Ajarenbape °

‘uonduNy s wJiojiad 03 10PNy
|euJdaiul 9jgeua 03 uoneltado-0d [N} papirocdd sey juswadeuey se A|9AI1D9))9 PaIINPUOD °

‘9104 s311n0 A1ued 031 Juspuadapul Apuadiyns °

:SI UoIdUNY ApNe [eulaiul s,Auedwo) syl 1eyl palsiies sl DYy ayl

uonoun4
11PNy |BUJIU| UO JUSWWOD S,JYY

(dovvozl

‘|]ouuosJad juswadeuew A3y pue s9913WIWOD) pieog snolleA ayl Ag dUOp SMIIAJ °
pue ‘D4 pue 03D aY3 WoJj adueinsse °

v3 pue v| @yl Aq pawiiojiad yiom °

‘Auedwo) ayl Aq paysi|geisa waisAs Jusawadeuewl 3siJ aY3 pue sj0Jiuod |euJalul °

:3uImo(|o4 a3 uo paseq sysi4 ASojouydal uonewojul pue asueljdwod ‘jeuoiiesado ‘[epueul
33 ssaippe 01 a1enbape ale s|0JIu0d |euJaiul Y3 eyl uojuido ay) Jo aJ4e DYV 2yl pue pieog ayl

S|0J3U0d
[eusaiul jo Adenbape jo uonewJijuo)

(ovvozL

uoneue|dx3 Jo asueljdwo) s,Auedwio)

uondidsaqg a|ny

a[ny
Isijeye)

43

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

‘sypeq-Ang aJeys ay) Joj 93} 98eJ4a30.q Se GZ'901$S
1O S99) Josuods-uou pajiwi] ai1eAlld uelH Aey gon “osuods sii pied Auedwod ayl ‘zz0zAd 404

So99) \_OmCOQm-COZ

(lavozl

‘S)3INSaJ JUBAS|J BU3 JO JUdWIdUNOUUE
9y3 Jo 21ep 8yl uo Sulpud pue ‘AjPAIrdadsas siuswWLlRIS |eldURULL JedA-||ny pue Jedh-jey
s,Auedwo) ay3 JO JUBWdUNOUUE 3Y3 3J0J2q Yuow auo 3uluuidaq porsad ayl Sunp saiindas
s,Auedwo) ayy ul Sulesp woly paliqiyold ale pue SUOIIRJIDPISUOD WD) 3JOYS UO S3[11INISS
s,Auedwo) ayy ul Suleap wody pagelnodsip os|e ade SJDIJO pue sJoidalig sy ‘Auedwo) ayl

"UOIIBWIOUI DAISUSS-3214d Jo uolssassod ul ajiym Auedwo? ay3 Jo Sa111INI3s ay3 Ul Suljeap
W04} SJ921J0 pue sJ03daJidg 9yl saqiyoad yosiym Adijod jeusaiul ue pardope sey Auedwod ayl

sanNdas ul Suljeaq

(6L)v0TL

uoneue|dx3 Jo asueljdwo) s,Auedwio)

uondidsaqg a|ny

a[ny
Isijeye)

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

44



DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS
SEEKING RE-ELECTION

Mr Lim Chong Huat and Dato’ Loh Shin Siong are the Directors seeking re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be convened on 27 July 2022 (“AGM") (collectively, the “Retiring Directors”

and each a “Retiring Director”).

Pursuant to Rule 720(5) of the SGX-ST Catalist Rules, the information as set out in Appendix 7F relating to the
above Retiring Directors to be put forward for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting is disclosed

below:
MR LIM CHONG HUAT DATO’ LOH SHIN SIONG
Date of Appointment 21 May 2019 16 December 2016
Date of last re-appointment 25 July 2019 25 July 2019
Age 52 55
Country of principal residence Singapore Malaysia

The Board's comments on this
appointment (including rationale,
selection criteria, board diversity
considerations, and the search and
nomination process)

The Board of Directors of the Company
has considered, among others, the
recommendation of Nominating
Committee (“NC") and has reviewed
and considered the contribution
and performance, attendance,
preparedness, participation, candour
and suitability of Mr Lim Chong Huat
for re-appointment as Independent
Director of the Company. The Board has
reviewed and concluded Mr Lim Chong
Huat possess the experience, expertise,
knowledge, and skills to contribute
towards the core competencies of the
Board.

The Board of Directors of the
Company has considered, among
others, the recommendation of NC
and has reviewed and considered
the contribution and performance,
attendance, preparedness, participation,
candour and suitability of Dato’ Loh
Shin Siong for re-appointment as Non-
Executive Director of the Company.
The Board has reviewed and concluded
that Dato’ Loh Shin Siong possess the
experience, expertise, knowledge and
skills to contribute towards the core
competencies of the Board.

Whether appointment is executive, and
if so, the area of responsibility

Non-Executive

Non-Executive

Job Title (e.g.) Lead ID, AC Chairman, AC
Member etc.)

Independent Director, Chairman of
the Nominating Committee, Member
of the Audit and Risk Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Non-Executive Director

Professional qualifications

B.Acc, Chartered Accountant Singapore,
Public Accountant, Accredited Tax
Practitioner (Income Tax and GST)

Nil

Working experience and occupation(s)
during the past 10 years

2008 - Present
Milant & Associate LLP (CPA firm)
(Partner)

2016 - Present
Coseclinic Services Pte Ltd (Director)

2020 - Present
Matrix Audit Alliance PAC (Director)

2016 - Present
Diamond Star Global Sdn Bhd

2017 - Present
Tropical Wine Sdn Bhd

2018 - Present
Diamond Star Biotechnology Sdn Bhd

2019 - Present

Diamond Star Biolife Sdn Bhd
Diamond Star Biocare Sdn Bhd
Sateera Sdn Bhd

2020 - Present

Diamond Star Capital Sdn Bhd
Diamond Star Trading Sdn Bhd
Diamond Star Health Sdn Bhd
Eecon Capital Sdn Bhd

2021 - Present

Tropical Dynasty Sdn Bhd
DS Care Sdn Bhd

Sateera Biontech Sdn Bhd

2022 - Present
DLCK Venture Capital Sdn Bhd
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS
SEEKING RE-ELECTION

MR LIM CHONG HUAT

DATO’ LOH SHIN SIONG

Shareholding interest in the listed issuer | No 12,750,000 ordinary shares
and its subsidiaries

Any relationship (including immediate | No No
family relationships) with any existing

director, existing executive officer, the

issuer and/or substantial shareholder of

the listed issuer or of any of its principal

subsidiaries.

Conflict of Interest (including any | No No
competing business)

Undertaking (in the format set out in | Yes Yes
Appendix 7H) under Rule 720(1) has

been submitted to the listed issuer

Other Principal Commitments Including

Directorships

Past (for the last 5 years) G&H Online Pte Ltd Nil

Present

Kouso Bio Trading Pte Ltd

Semra (SEA) Pte Ltd

One-Stop Business Centre Group
Vegetarian Delivery

D'ellsell

Wealthy Eight Pte Ltd

Lim CH & Associates
Milant & Associates LLP
CoseClinic Services Pte Ltd
Matrix Audit Alliance PAC
Everich Management Services
ljim Bruxism Care Pte Ltd
Coseclinic Ebiz Pte Ltd
Origin Mart Pte Ltd
Wealthy Eight Pte Ltd

De Northstar Pte Ltd
Coseclinic (East) Pte Ltd

Diamond Star Capital Sdn Bhd
Diamond Star Trading Sdn Bhd
Diamond Star Biolife Sdn Bhd
Diamond Star Biotechnology Sdn Bhd
Diamond Star Biocare Sdn Bhd
Diamond Star Global Sdn Bhd
Diamond Star Health Sdn Bhd
DLCK Venture Capital Sdn Bhd
Eecon Capital Sdn Bhd

Sateera Sdn Bhd

Tropical Dynasty Sdn Bhd
Tropical Wine Sdn Bhd

DS Care Sdn Bhd

Sateera Biontech Sdn Bhd

Disclose the following matters concerning an appointment of director, chief executive officer, chief financial officer,
chief operating officer, general manager or other officer of equivalent rank. If the answer to any question is “yes”, full

details must be given.

a) Whether at any time during the
last 10 years, an application or a
petition under any bankruptcy
law of any jurisdiction was
filed against him or against a
partnership of which he was a
partner at the time when he was
a partner or any time within 2
years from the date he ceased to
be a partner?

No

No
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS
SEEKING RE-ELECTION

MR LIM CHONG HUAT DATO’ LOH SHIN SIONG

Whether at any time during the | No No
last 10 years, an application or
a petition under any law of any
jurisdiction was filed against an
entity (not being a partnership)
of which he was a director or
an equivalent person or a key
executive, at the time when he
was a director or an equivalent
person or a key executive
of that entity or at any time
within 2 years from the date
he ceased to be a director or
an equivalent person or a key
executive of that entity, for the
winding up or dissolution of that
entity or where that entity is the
trustee of a business trust, that
business trust, on the ground of
insolvency?

o]

Whether there is any unsatisfied | No No
judgement against him?

Whether he has ever been | No No
convicted of any offence,
in Singapore or elsewhere,
involving fraud of dishonesty
which is punishable with
imprisonment, or has been
the subject of any criminal
proceedings (including any
pending criminal proceedings
of which he is aware) for such
purpose?

Whether he has ever been | No No
convicted of any offence,
in Singapore or elsewhere,
involving a breach of any law
or regulatory requirement
that relates to the securities or
futures industry in Singapore
or elsewhere, or has been
the subject of any criminal
proceedings (including any
pending criminal proceedings
of which he is aware) for such
breach?
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS
SEEKING RE-ELECTION

MR LIM CHONG HUAT

DATO’ LOH SHIN SIONG

Whether at any time during
the last 10 years, judgement
has been entered against
him in any civil proceedings
in Singapore or elsewhere
involving a breach of any law
of regulatory requirement
that relates to the securities or
futures industry in Singapore or
elsewhere, or a finding of fraud,
misrepresentation or dishonesty
on his part, or he has been the
subject of any civil proceedings
(including any pending civil
proceedings of which he is
aware) involving an allegation
of fraud, misrepresentation of
dishonesty on his part?

No

No

g

Whether he has ever been
convicted in Singapore or
elsewhere of any offence in
connection with the formation
or management of any entity or
business trust?

No

No

Whether he has ever been
disqualified from acting as
a director or an equivalent
person of any entity (including
the trustee of a business trust),
or from taking part directly or
indirectly in the management of
any entity or business trust?

No

No

Whether he has ever been the
subject of any order, judgment
or ruling of any court, tribunal or
governmental body, permanently
or temporarily enjoining him
from engaging in any type of
business practice or activity?

No

No
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

SEEKING RE-ELECTION

MR LIM CHONG HUAT

DATO’ LOH SHIN SIONG

Whether he has ever, to his
knowledge, been concerned with
the management or conduct, in
Singapore or elsewhere, of the
affairs of:-

i. any corporation which
has been investigated for
a breach of any law or
regulatory requirement
governing corporations in
Singapore or elsewhere;
or

ii. any entity (not being a
corporation) which has
been investigated for
a breach of any law or
regulatory requirement
governing such entities in
Singapore or elsewhere;
or

iii. any business trust which
has been investigated for
a breach of any law or
regulatory requirement
governing business
trusts in Singapore or
elsewhere; or

iv. any entity or business
trust which has been
investigated for a breach
of any law or regulatory
requirement that
relates to the securities
or futures industry in
Singapore or elsewhere

in connection with any matter occurring
or arising during that period when he
was so concerned with the entity or
business trust?

No

No

k)

Whether he has been the
subject of any current or past
investigation or disciplinary
proceedings, or has been
reprimanded or issued any
warning, by the Monetary
Authority of Singapore or any
other regulatory authority,
exchange, professional body or
government agency, whether in
Singapore or elsewhere?

No

No
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS
SEEKING RE-ELECTION

| MR LIM CHONG HUAT DATO’ LOH SHIN SIONG

Disclosure applicable to the appointment of Director only.

Any prior experience as a director of an | Not applicable Not applicable
issuer listed on the Exchange?

If Yes, Please provide details of prior
experience

Please provide details of relevant | Notapplicable Not applicable
experience and the nominating
committee’s reasons for not requiring
the director to undergo training
as prescribed by the Exchange (if
applicable)
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

The directors are pleased to present their statement to the members together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and the
statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended 31
March 2022.

In the opinion of the directors:

(i) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and statement
of changes in equity of the Company as set out on pages 59 to 107 are drawn up so as to give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 March 2022 and of the financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for
the financial year then ended in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”) and
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International); and

(ii) at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay
its debts as and when they fall due.

Directors
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:

Ong Yoke En

Lim Lay Yong

Lim Siang Kai

Dato’ Chang Chor Choong
Hau Hock Khun

Dato’ Loh Shin Siong

Lim Chong Huat

Arrangement to enable directors to acquire benefits

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement
whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate other than as
disclosed under “Share options and awards” in this statement.

Directors’ interest in shares or debentures

The directors of the Company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the shares or
debentures of the Company and related corporations as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept
by the Company under Section 164 of the Act except as follows:

Number of ordinary shares
Shareholdings registered
in the name of directors

At At
1.4.2021 31.3.2022*

The Company

Ong Yoke En 46,384,000 139,152,000
Lim Lay Yong 15,000,000 45,000,000
Dato’ Chang Chor Choong 4,250,000 12,750,000
Dato’ Loh Shin Siong 4,250,000 12,750,000

* Adjusted as a result of the share split exercise during the financial year.

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022 51



DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

Directors’ interest in shares or debentures (cont’d)

The director, Ong Yoke En, by virtue of Section 7 of the Act is deemed to have an interest in the shares held by
the Company in its wholly-owned subsidiary corporations and in the shares held by the Company in the following
subsidiary not wholly owned by the Group:

Number of ordinary shares
At At
1.4.2021 31.3.2022

PT Samurai Paint 2,010 2,010

The directors’ interest in the ordinary shares of the Company as at 21 April 2022 were the same as those as at 31
March 2022.

Share options and awards

The Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited’'s Performance Share Plan (the “Plan”) and Employee Share Option Scheme (the
“Scheme”) were approved and adopted by the members at the shareholders’ meeting held on 16 December 2016
and will continue to remain in force until 15 December 2026, unless terminated in accordance with the rules of
the Plan and Scheme. The Plan and Scheme provide for the grant of shares and share options to employees and
directors of the Group.

The Plan and Scheme are administered by the Remuneration Committee of the Company, comprising of Mr Hau
Hock Khun (Chairman), Mr Lim Siang Kai, and Mr Lim Chong Huat. A member of the Remuneration Committee
who is also a participant of the Plan and Scheme must not be involved in its deliberation in respect of awards and
options granted or to be granted to him.

The aggregate number of shares and share options which may be issued or transferred pursuant to awards
granted under the Plan and Scheme on any date, when aggregated with the aggregate number of shares over
which awards or options are granted under any other share option schemes or share schemes of the Company,
shall not exceed 15% of the total number of issued shares (excluding shares held by the Company as treasury
shares) on the day preceding that date.

On 31 May 2021, 1,618,929 share awards were granted to employees of the Group pursuant to the Plan. All the
share awards granted under the Plan have vested on the date of grant.

On 31 May 2021, 1,190,000 share options were granted to employees of the Group pursuant to the Scheme.

Movement in the number of options granted by the Company under the Scheme for the Group's employees are as
follows:

<t No. of options under the Scheme >
Granted Forfeited Modification Vested
Beginning of during during during during End of
financial financial financial financial financial financial
year year year year* year year

2022
3 June 2019 164,000 - (49,000) 230,000 - 345,000
31 May 2021 - 1,190,000 (355,000) 1,670,000 - 2,505,000

* On 25 June 2021, every one existing ordinary share in the share capital of the Company were sub-divided into three
ordinary shares. Consequently, the number of outstanding unexercised options were adjusted on the same basis.

There were no options exercised during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

Share options and awards (cont’d)

The details of the outstanding number of options at the end of the financial year was:

Exercise price Grant date Exercise period 2022 Number of options
SGD0.305 3June 2019 3June 2022 to 2 June 2029 345,000
SGD0.347 31 May 2021 31 May 2024 to 30 May 2031 2,505,000

No participant has received 5% or more of the total number of shares under option available under the Scheme.

There were no options granted to directors, controlling shareholders and their associates except as disclosed
below:

No. of unissued ordinary shares of the Company under option

Aggregate Aggregate
granted since exercised since
Granted in commencement commencement Aggregate
financial year of Scheme to of Scheme to outstanding
ended 31.3.2022 31.3.2022 31.3.2022 as at 31.3.2022
Ong How En® - 60,000 - 60,000

m Brother of Mr Ong Yoke En, director and controlling shareholder, and the brother-in-law of Ms Lim Lay Yong, director. He is
employed as the technical manager of Samurai 2K Aerosol Sdn. Bhd. (formerly known as Orientus Industry Sdn. Bhd.).

Audit and Risk Committee

The members of the Audit and Risk Committee during the financial year and at the date of this report are:
Lim Siang Kai (Chairman)

Hau Hock Khun

Lim Chong Huat

The Audit and Risk Committee carried out its functions in accordance with Section 201B(5) of the Act. Their
functions are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit and Risk Committee also:

(a) reviewed the independence and objectivity of the independent auditor;

(b) reviewed the audit plan and scope of work carried out by the independent auditor and also met with the
independent auditor to discuss the results of their audit and their evaluation of the system of internal

accounting controls;

() reviewed the overall scope and timing of the work to be carried out by the internal auditor and also met
with internal auditor to discuss the results of their internal audit procedures;

(d) reviewed the financial statements of the Group and the Company for the financial year ended 31 March
2022 and the independent auditor’s report thereon; and

(e) reviewed interested person transactions.
The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the independent auditor and

has recommended to the Board that Baker Tilly TFW LLP be nominated for re-appointment as independent auditor
of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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Independent auditor

The independent auditor, Baker Tilly TFW LLP, has expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the directors

Ong Yoke En Lim Lay Yong
Director Director
7 July 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), as set out on pages 59 to 107, which comprise the statements of financial position of
the Group and the Company as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows of
the Group and the statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial
position and statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International)
[“SFRS(I)"] so as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial
position of the Company as at 31 March 2022 and of the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes
in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and of the changes in equity of the Company for the financial
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority (“ACRA") Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities
(“ACRA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s trade receivables of RM18,448,000 (2021: RM14,356,000) represents
approximately 13% (2021: 11%) of the Group's total assets.

The Group determines the expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade receivables by applying the simplified approach
to recognise a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at the end of the reporting period. The Group determined the
lifetime ECL of trade receivables by performing an ECL assessment for each debtor by considering the historical
loss rate, recent payments, ongoing business relationship, creditworthiness of each debtor and their ability to

repay.

As the ECL assessment involves significant judgement and assumptions by the Group, we have identified the
allowance for ECL of trade receivables as a key audit matter.

The significant judgements and assumptions applied in the calculation of loss allowance and details of ECL
measurement are disclosed in Note 3 and Note 26(b) to the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
Key Audit Matter (cont’d)
Procedures performed by component auditor and us to address the key audit matter

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s credit policy and credit assessment procedures, including client's
control to follow up on payments from customers and to monitor the credit limits, and evaluated the Group’s ECL
assessment for trade receivables. In testing the significant assumptions and reasonableness of the Group’s ECL
assessment, we tested the aging of trade receivables at the end of the reporting period on a sample basis, verified
historical loss rates of major trade debtors to historical payment trends, recent payments, information relating to
the Group’s ongoing business relationships and performed subsequent receipt test for major trade debtors up to
audit report date.

We have also assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of the disclosures made in the financial statements.
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report 2022, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and SFRS(l), and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting
controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised
use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by the
subsidiary corporation incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Lee Chee Sum Gilbert.

Baker Tilly TFW LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

7 July 2022

58 SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2022 2021
Note RM’000 RM’000
Revenue 4 113,038 110,630
Cost of sales (64,802) (56,749)
Gross profit 48,236 53,881
Other income 5 1,170 2,068
Administrative expenses (20,307) (13,517)
Marketing and distribution expenses (8,538) (17,010)
Finance costs 6 (926) (457)
Profit before tax 7 19,635 24,965
Tax expense 9 (6,512) (7,476)
Profit for the financial year 13,123 17,489
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the financial year, net of tax:
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Currency translation differences arising from consolidation (50) 42
Total comprehensive income for the financial year 13,073 17,531
Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 13,124 17,505
Non-controlling interest 1 (16)
13,123 17,489
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 13,079 17,560
Non-controlling interest (6) (29)
13,073 17,531
Earnings per share for profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company (RM sen per share)
Basic and diluted 10 3.93 5.31

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

Group Company
Note 2022 2021 2022 2021
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM'000

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment " 27,821 26,903 - -
Intangible assets 12 816 771 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 13 - - 15,658 10,545
Deferred tax assets 14 688 680 - -
Trade and other receivables 16 3,637 - - -
Total non-current assets 32,962 28,354 15,658 10,545
Current assets

Inventories 15 17,646 13,917 - -
Trade and other receivables 16 22,956 17,196 47,190 42,901
Cash and bank balances 17 73,111 76,430 4,704 14,057
Total current assets 113,713 107,543 51,894 56,958
Total assets 146,675 135,897 67,552 67,503
Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 18 3,949 4,350 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 14 1,953 1,435 - -
Other payables 19 94 93 - -
Total non-current liabilities 5,996 5,878 - -
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 28,208 23,816 533 3,666
Borrowings 18 17,786 16,067 - -
Tax payable 1,623 1,749 182 182
Total current liabilities 47,617 41,632 715 3,848
Total liabilities 53,613 47,510 715 3,848
Net assets 93,062 88,387 66,837 63,655
Equity
Share capital 20 57,165 52,653 57,165 52,653
Treasury shares 20 (64) - (64) -
Share option reserve 22 448 119 448 119
Retained earnings 45,385 45,436 9,288 10,883
Currency translation reserve (295) (250) - -
Merger reserve 23 (9,368) (9,368) - -
Equity attributable to equity holders of

the Company 93,271 88,590 66,837 63,655
Non-controlling interest (209) (203) - -
Total equity 93,062 88,387 66,837 63,655

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

60 SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Share Currency Non-
Share Treasury option Retained translation Merger controlling  Total
capital shares reserve earnings  reserve reserve  Total interest  equity
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000  RM'000  RM'000
Group
Balance at 1 April 2021 52,653 - 119 45436 (250) (9,368) 88,590 (203) 88,387
Profit/(loss) for the financial year - - - 13,124 - - 13,124 M 13,123
Other comprehensive loss for the
financial year
Currency translation differences
arising from consolidation - - - - (45) - (45) (5) (50)
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the financial year - - - 13124 (45) - 13,079 (6) 13,073
Issue of shares (Note 20) 4,512 - - - - - 4,512 - 4,512
Employee share option scheme
(Note 22) - - 329 - - - 329 - 329
Dividend paid (Note 21) - - - (13175) - - (13,175) - (13,175)
Share buy-back - (64) - - - - (64) - (64)
Balance at 31 March 2022 57,165 (64) 448 45,385 (295) (9,368) 93,271 (209) 93,062
Group
Balance at 1 April 2020 52,653 - 64 34,615 (305) (9,368) 77,659 (174) 77,485
Profit/(loss) for the financial year - - - 17,505 - - 17,505 (16) 17,489
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the financial year
Currency translation differences
arising from consolidation - - - - 55 - 55 (13) 42
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the financial year - - - 17,505 55 - 17,560 (29) 17,531
Employee share option scheme
(Note 22) - - 55 - - - 55 - 55
Dividend paid (Note 21) - - - (6,684) - - (6,684) - (6,684)
Balance at 31 March 2021 52,653 - 119 45,436 (250) (9,368) 88,590 (203) 88,387
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Share

Share Treasury option Retained Total

capital shares reserve earnings equity

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Company
Balance at 1 April 2021 52,653 - 119 10,883 63,655
Profit for the financial year - - - 11,580 11,580
Issue of shares (Note 20) 4,512 - - - 4,512
Employee share option scheme (Note 22) - - 329 - 329
Dividend paid (Note 21) - - - (13,175) (13,175)
Share buy-back - (64) - - (64)
Balance at 31 March 2022 57,165 (64) 448 9,288 66,837
Balance at 1 April 2020 52,653 - 64 4,614 57,331
Profit for the financial year - - - 12,953 12,953
Dividend paid (Note 21) - - - (6,684) (6,684)
Employee share option scheme (Note 22) - - 55 - 55
Balance at 31 March 2021 52,653 - 119 10,883 63,655

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2022 2021

RM’000 RM'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 19,635 24,965
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,154 2,638
Amortisation of intangible assets 80 146
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 1
Property, plant and equipment written off - 9
Performance share plan expense 4,512 -
Employee share option expense 329 55
Interest expenses 926 457
Interest income (747) (286)
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (285) (2,299)
Inventories written back - (62)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 27,607 25,634
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Inventories (3,729) (6,051)
Receivables (5,972) 15,162
Payables 4,395 11,978
Currency translation adjustments (63) 23
Cash generated from operations 22,238 46,746
Income tax paid (6,133) (4,798)
Interest received 80 286
Interest paid - (457)
Net cash generated from operating activities 16,185 141,777
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of intangible assets (125) (382)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 34 9
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [Note 11(ii)] (3,992) (2,378)
Interest received 667 -
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment (180) -
Prepayment of property, plant and equipment (3,027) -
Net cash used in investing activities (6,623) (2,751)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid (13,175) (6,684)
Deposits pledged (45) -
Drawdown of banker’s acceptance 1,822 10,441
Repayment of bank borrowings (16) (131)
Repayment of lease liabilities (611) (614)
Interest paid (856) -
Share buy-back (64) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (12,945) 3,012
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,383) 42,038
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 75,306 33,248
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 19 20
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year (Note 17) 71,942 75,306

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.

64

Corporate information

Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited (the “Company”) (Co. Reg. No. 201606168C) is incorporated as a private limited
company and domiciled in Singapore on 9 March 2016. It was converted into a public company limited
by shares on 16 December 2016 and is listed on the Catalist board of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST").

The registered office of the Company is at 133 North Bridge Road, #08-03 Chinatown Point, Singapore
059413. The principal place of business of the Company is located at No. 6, Jalan Dato Yunus 1, Kawasan
Perindustrian Dato Yunus Sulaiman, Lima Kedai, 81120 Skudai, Johor, Malaysia.

The principal activity of the Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 13.

Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in Malaysia Ringgit and are rounded to the nearest thousand
(RM'000) except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
1967 and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International) [“SFRS(I)"]. The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as disclosed in the accounting
policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with SFRS(l) requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the financial year. Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions and historical experiences and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates.

Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement in applying accounting policies, or areas where
assumptions and estimates have a significant risk of resulting in material adjustment within the next
financial year are disclosed in Note 3.

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances, trade and other current receivables and payables

approximate their respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial
instruments.

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

a)

b)

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
New and revised standards that are adopted

In the current financial year, the Group and the Company have adopted all new and revised SFRS(I)
and SFRS(I) Interpretations [“SFRS(I) INT"] that are effective for the current financial year. Changes
to the Group’s accounting policies have been made as required, in accordance with the transitional
provisions in the respective SFRS(l) and SFRS(I) INT. The application of these new and revised SFRS(I)
and SFRS(I) INT do not have a material effect on the financial statements.

New and revised standards not yet effective

New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that have been issued at the
reporting date but are not yet effective for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 have not been
applied in preparing these financial statements. None of these are expected to have a significant
effect on the financial statements of the Group and the Company.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting date as the parent
company. Consistent accounting policies are applied for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances.

Intragroup balances and transactions, including income, expenses and dividends, are eliminated in
full. Profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as
inventory and property, plant and equipment, are eliminated in full.

Business combinations involving entities under common control are accounted for by applying
the pooling of interest method. Under this method, the Company has been treated as the holding
company of the subsidiaries as if the combination had occurred from the date the subsidiaries first
came under the control of the same shareholders. Accordingly, the results of the Group include the
results of the subsidiaries for the entire periods under review. Such manner of presentation reflects
the economic substance of the companies, which were under common control throughout the
relevant period, as a single economic enterprise, although the legal parent-subsidiary relationships
were not established.

Pursuant to this:
- Assets and liabilities are reflected at their existing carrying amounts;

- No adjustments are made to reflect the fair values on the date of combination or recognise
any new assets or liabilities;

- No additional goodwill is recognised as a result of the combination;
- Upon the completion of the group restructuring exercise, any difference between the

consideration paid by the Company and the equity “acquired” is reflected within the equity of
the Group as merger reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

b)

)

d)

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

All other business combinations are accounted for using acquisition method. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary or business comprises the fair value of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration arrangement and the fair
value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Any excess of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business combination, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any) and the fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. In instances where the latter amount exceeds the former and
the measurement of all amounts has been reviewed, the excess is recognised as gain from bargain
purchase in profit or loss on the date of acquisition.

Non-controlling interests are that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of a
subsidiary attributable to the interests which are not owned directly or indirectly by the equity
holders of the Company. They are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and statement of
financial position. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the non-controlling interests based on
their respective interests in a subsidiary, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

For non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in the event of liquidation, the Group elects on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis whether to measure them at fair value, or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets, at the acquisition date. All
other non-controlling interests are measured at acquisition date fair value or, when applicable, on the
basis specified in another standard.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. On disposal of the investments, the difference
between disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the investments are recognised in profit or
loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment initially recognised includes its purchase price and any
cost that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Group and its cost can be reliably measured. The carrying amount of the
replaced component is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

d)

e)

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

On disposal of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
its carrying amount is taken to profit or loss.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated useful lives of the asset. If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation
is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Depreciation for other items of property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis
to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated useful lives of the asset. The useful lives for
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Years
Freehold properties 50
Leasehold properties 1-6
Furniture, fittings and equipment 4-12
Motor vehicles 8-10
Plant and machinery 8
Renovation 10

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
effects of any revision are recognised in profit or loss when the changes arise.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use.

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction for production are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss until construction is completed. Cost includes professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting policies.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Intangible assets
Acquired computer software licenses

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. Direct expenditure, which enhances or extends the performance
of computer software beyond its original specifications and which can be reliably measured, is
recognised as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software. Costs associated
with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Acquired computer software licences are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortised using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful life of 5 years.

Patents and trademarks
Patents and trademarks are capitalised on the basis of the cost incurred to successfully register
patents and trademarks in various countries. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line

method to allocate the cost of patents and trademarks over 10 to 20 years, based on the shorter of
their estimated useful lives and periods of contractual rights.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

f)

8)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses the carrying amounts of its non-financial
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A previously
recognised impairment loss for an asset is only reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date - the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to the fair value of the financial assets on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Trade receivables without a significant financing component is initially
measured at transaction prices.

Classification and measurement

All financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

The Group classifies its financial assets at amortised cost.

The classification is based on the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

The Group reclassifies financial assets when, and only when, its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
g) Financial assets (cont’d)

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments

Debt instruments include cash and bank balances, trade and other receivables (excluding advance
payment to suppliers, prepayments, net of goods and services tax receivables and tax recoverable).
The Group's debt instruments are measured at amortised cost.

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (“EIR")
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
interest income using the EIR method.

Impairment

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs") for financial assets carried
at amortised cost. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate.

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12-months (a “12-month ECL"). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a “lifetime
ECL").

For trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component, the Group applies a
simplified approach to recognise a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group determined the lifetime ECL of trade receivables by performing an ECL assessment for
each debtor by considering the historical loss rate, recent payments, ongoing business relationship,
creditworthiness of each debtor and the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on their ability to repay.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions
for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL at the current reporting date.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial assets with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Offset
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented on the statements of financial

position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

h)

»

k)

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits with financial institutions which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value and excludes pledged deposits.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads based on normal operating capacity but excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of
completion and selling expenses.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the statements of financial position when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, plus, in the case of financial liabilities other
than derivatives, directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value. Other financial liabilities
(except for the financial guarantees) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

For financial liabilities other than derivatives, gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process. Any gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of derivatives are recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or losses on
derivatives include exchange differences. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is extinguished.

Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised at their fair values plus transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the financial guarantees are stated at the higher of the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles
of SFRS(I) 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the amount of expected loss computed using
the impairment methodology under SFRS(I) 9 Financial Instruments.

Provisions for other liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle that
obligation and that the amount can be estimated reliably. Provisions are measured at management's
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of the provision shall be
discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessment
of the time value of money and risks specific to the obligation.

When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost in profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

m)

n)

0)

Share capital

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted against share capital.

Revenue recognition
Sale of aerosol spray paint

The Group manufactures and sell aerosol spray paints. Sales is recognised when the goods have
been delivered and control of the goods has been transferred to its customer. Revenue from these
sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract. Revenue is only recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable that there will be no significant reversal when the uncertainty is
resolved. No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of 30
to 120 days, which is consistent with market practice. A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is due.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Rental income

Rental income from operating lease (net of any incentives given to the lessees) is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

When a Group entity is the lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases (i.e. for leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option) and leases of low-value assets (e.g.
leases of tablet and personal computers, small items of office equipment and telephones). For
these exempted leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liabilities comprise fixed lease payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

0)

Leases (cont’'d)

When a Group entity is the lessee (cont’d)

Lease liabilities (cont’d)

The lease liabilities are presented within “borrowings” in the statements of financial position.

The lease liabilities are subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liabilities using the effective interest method, and reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use asset) whenever there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the
lease payments (e.g. changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of
the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement date, initial
direct cost, less any lease incentive received.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore
the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under SFRS(I) 1-37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. To the extent that the cost relates to a right-of-use asset,
the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter period of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term
or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented within “property, plant and equipment” in the statements of
financial position.

The Group applies SFRS(I) 1-36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is
impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss as described in Note 2(f).

As a practical expedient, SFRS(l) 16 Leases permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components,
and instead account for any lease and associated non-lease component as a single arrangement. The
Group has not used this practical expedient.

When a Group entity is the lessor

Where the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group has no finance lease when it acts as a lessor.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

0)

P)

q)

r)

Leases (cont'd)
When a Group entity is the lessor (cont’d)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
relevant leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added
to the carrying amount of the leased assets and recognised as an expense in profit or loss on the
same basis as the lease income.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into separate entities such as the Central Provident Fund in Singapore and the
Employees’ Provident Fund in Malaysia, and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further contributions once the contributions have been paid. Contributions to defined contribution
plans are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Share-based compensation

Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share options as consideration for
services rendered. The cost of these equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value of the share options on the date of the grant. This cost is recognised in
profit or loss, with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve, over the vesting period.
Non-market vesting conditions are included in the estimation of the number of shares that are
expected to vest on the vesting date. At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of shares that are expected to vest on the vesting date and recognises the impact of
the revision of the estimates in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve over the remaining vesting period.

When the share options are exercised, the related balance previously recognised in the share option
reserve and the proceeds received (net of transaction costs) are credited to the share capital account
when new ordinary shares are issued. If the share options are not exercised by the expiry date, the
balance in the share option reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Income taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current and
deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity in which the tax

is also recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively).
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

r)

s)

Income taxes (cont’d)

Current tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable income for the current
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable or recoverable in respect of previous years. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions, where appropriate, on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end
of the reporting period arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements except where the deferred income tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, and
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on currently enacted or substantively
enacted tax rates at the end of the reporting period.

Functional and foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which that entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The financial statements of the Group and the Company are presented in Malaysia Ringgit
(“RM"), which is the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency (“foreign currency”) are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Currency translation gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss, except for currency translation differences on net
investment in foreign operations and borrowings and other currency instruments qualifying as net
investment hedges for foreign operations, which are included in the currency translation reserve
within equity in the consolidated financial statements. The currency translation reserve is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss of the Group on disposal of the foreign operation.

Non-monetary items measured at fair values in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair values are determined.

Translation of Group entities’ financial statements
The financial performance and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the Group's

presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates at the end of the reporting period;
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
s) Functional and foreign currencies (cont’d)
Translation of Group entities’ financial statements (cont’d)

(ii) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless the average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions); and

(iiiy  All resulting exchange differences are recognised in currency translation reserve within equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations (including monetary items that, in substance, form part of the net investment in
foreign entities), and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to the currency translation reserve within the equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

On disposal of a foreign group entity, the cumulative amount of the currency translation reserve
relating to that particular foreign entity is reclassified from equity and recognised in profit or loss
when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.

t) Dividend

Interim dividends are recorded during the financial year in which they are declared payable. Final
dividends are recorded in the financial statements in the period in which they are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

u) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with other components of the Group. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the Group's chief operating decision maker for making decisions
about allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, management
has made the following judgements and estimates that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements or that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables

Management determines the expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade receivables by applying the simplified
approach to recognise a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at the end of the reporting period. The
Group determined the lifetime ECL of trade receivables by performing an ECL assessment for each debtor
by considering the historical loss rate, recent payments, ongoing business relationship, creditworthiness of
each debtor and their ability to repay.

As the calculation of loss allowance on trade receivables is subject to assumptions and forecasts, any
changes to these estimations will affect the amounts of loss allowance recognised and the carrying
amounts of trade receivables. Details of ECL measurement and carrying amount of trade receivables are
disclosed in Note 26(b) and Note 16 respectively.
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3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)
Write down of inventories

Where necessary, inventories are written down to net realisable value for estimated losses where the cost
of inventories may not be recoverable. The Group estimates the write down based upon an analysis of the
physical conditions of the products, product demand, anticipated selling prices and usability of the raw
materials and packaging materials. Adjustments to the carrying amount of inventories may be made in
future periods in the event that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable resulting from future loss
events.

The carrying amount of the Group’s inventories at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in Note 15.
Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there are any indicators of impairment
for investment in subsidiaries. Investment in subsidiaries are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
amount of the investment exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use.

When value in use calculations are undertaken, management is required to estimate the expected future
cash flow from the business and a suitable growth rate and discount rate, in order to determine the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of investment in subsidiaries is disclosed in Note 13.

Functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency transactions in the respective functional currencies of the Company
and its subsidiaries. In determining the functional currencies of the entities in the Group, judgement is
required by management to determine the primary economic environment in which the entities operate,
the entities’ process of determining sales prices and the currency of the country whose competitive forces
and regulations mainly influences the prices of its goods and services. Management has assessed that
prices are mainly denominated and settled in the respective local currency of the entities of the Group. In
addition, most of the entities’ cost base is mainly denominated in their respective local currency. Therefore,
management concluded that the functional currency of the entities of the Group is their respective local
currency.

In view of the financial reliance of the Company on the operations of its major subsidiary in Malaysia, the
management determined that RM is the functional currency of the Company.

4 Revenue
Group
2022 2021
RM’000 RM’000
Timing of revenue recognition
Sale of goods - At a point in time 113,038 110,630
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Group
2022 2021
RM’000 RM'000
Foreign exchange gain, net 243 1,491
Interest income 747 286
Rental income 180 180
Others - 111
1,170 2,068
Finance costs
Group
2022 2021
RM’000 RM'000
Interest expenses:
- Lease liabilities 51 53
- Term loans 280 85
- Banker’s acceptance 525 319
Others 70 -
926 457
Profit before tax
Group
2022 2021
RM’'000 RM'000
This is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
Audit fees paid/payable to:
- Auditor of the Company 171 181
- Other auditors* 11 50
Fees for non-audit services paid/payable to:
- Auditor of the Company 40 7
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 11) 3,154 2,638
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 12) 80 146
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 1
Property, plant and equipment written off - 9
Inventories written back (Note 15) - (62)
Rental expenses (Note 18) 137 111
Personnel expenses (Note 8) 18,967 11,858
* Includes independent member firms of the Baker Tilly International network.
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8 Personnel expenses
2022 2021
RM'000 RM’000
Key management personnel
- Salaries, bonus and other benefits 6,926 6,742
- Defined contribution plan 869 469
- Employee share option scheme 138 34
- Performance share plan 4,428 -
12,361 7,245
Other personnel
- Salaries, bonus and other benefits 5,797 4,145
- Defined contribution plan 534 447
- Employee share option scheme 191 21
- Performance share plan 84 -
6,606 4,613
18,967 11,858
9 Tax expense

2022 2021
RM’'000 RM'000
Income tax:
- Current year 6,111 6,505
- (Over)/under provision in respect of previous years (117) 200
5,994 6,705
Deferred tax (Note 14):
- Current year (143) 640
- Under provision in respect of previous years 661 131
518 771
6,512 7,476

The income tax expense on the results of the financial year differs from the amount of income tax
determined by applying the domestic income tax rates applicable to profit in the countries where the Group
operates due to the following factors:
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Tax expense (cont'd)

Group
2022 2021
RM'000 RM’000
Profit before tax 19,635 24,965
Tax at the domestic rates applicable to profit in the countries where the
Group operates 5,025 6,344
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,062 1,301
Non-taxable income 1) -
(Over)/under provision of income tax in respect of previous years (117) 200
Under provision of deferred taxation in respect of previous years 661 131
Singapore statutory stepped income exemption (4) -
Others (114) (500)
6,512 7,476

The above tax reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate reconciliations for each national
jurisdiction.

The income tax rate applicable to companies incorporated in Singapore and foreign subsidiaries of the
Group are 17% (2021: 17%) and 17% to 25% (2021: 17% to 25%) respectively for the financial year ended 31
March 2022.

Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic earnings and diluted earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity
holders of the Company is based on the following data:

Group
2022 2021

Profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders of the

Company (RM'000) 13,124 17,505
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ('000) 333,821 329,763
Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for effect of

treasury shares held ('000) 333,780 329,763
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RM sen per share) 3.93 5.31

As disclosed in Note 20, every one ordinary share in the share capital of the Company were sub-divided into
three ordinary shares during the financial year. As such, the earnings per share calculation for the financial
year ended 31 March 2021 had been adjusted for the increase in number of ordinary shares resulting from
the share split.

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Group's potential ordinary shares comprise employee share
options. The computation of diluted earnings per share does not adjust for the effects of the potential
ordinary shares from employee share options as these did not have a dilutive effect on the earnings per
share calculation since the exercise price of the options exceeds the average market price of ordinary
shares during the financial year.

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022 79



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

1

80

Property, plant and equipment

Furniture,
fittings Plant
Freehold Freehold Leasehold and Motor and Work-
land  properties properties equipment vehicles machinery Renovation in-progress Total
RM'000  RM’'000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000  RM’'000 RM'000 RM'000  RM'000

Group

2022

Cost
At 1 April 2021 5171 5,045 1,686 1,631 2,064 13,293 6,585 1,860 37,335
Additions - - 129 999 - 1,440 1,553 - 4121
Modification of

lease liabilities - - (76) - - - - - (76)
Disposals - - - - (50) - - - (50)
Currency translation

differences - - (2) 2 - - - - -
At 31 March 2022 5,171 5,045 1,737 2,632 2,014 14,733 8,138 1,860 41,330
Accumulated

depreciation
At 1 April 2021 - 51 778 380 744 6,225 1,794 - 10,432
Depreciation charge - 101 306 370 204 1,510 663 - 3,154
Modification of

lease liabilities - - (67) - - - - - (67)
Disposals - - - - (13) - - - (13)
Currency translation

differences - - 4 m - - - - 3
At 31 March 2022 - 612 1,021 749 935 7,735 2,457 - 13,509
Net carrying value
At 31 March 2022 5,171 4,433 716 1,883 1,079 6,998 5,681 1,860 27,821
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Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Furniture,
fittings Plant
Freehold Freehold Leasehold and Motor and Work-

land  properties properties equipment vehicles machinery Renovation in-progress Total
RM'000  RM’'000 RM’000 RM'000  RM'000  RM'000 RM’000 RM'000  RM'000

Group

2021

Cost

At 1 April 2020 5,171 5,045 1,713 810 1,525 11,293 6,682 2,219 34,458
Additions - - - 292 567 454 121 1,51 2,945
Written off - - - (5 - (6) - - ()
Disposals - - (16) - (28) - - - (44)
Reclassifications - - - 537 - 1,551 (218) (1,870) -

Currency translation
differences - (1) (3) (13)

At 31 March 2021 5171 5,045 1,686 1,631 2,064 13,293 6,585 1,860 37,335

Accumulated
depreciation

At 1 April 2020 - 410 394 223 597 4,963 1,228 - 7,815
Depreciation charge - 101 389 158 161 1,263 566 - 2,638
Written off - - - (1) - (1) - - (2)
Disposals - - (10) - (14) - - - (24)
Currency translation

differences - - 5 - - - - - 5
At 31 March 2021 - 511 778 380 744 6,225 1,794 - 10,432

Net carrying value
At 31 March 2021 5171 4,534 908 1,251 1,320 7,068 4,791 1,860 26,903
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Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

i)

ii)

iii)

Included in property, plant and equipment are right-of-use assets of RM1,503,000 (2021:
RM2,073,000) (Note 18).

Net cash outflow for purchase of property, plant and equipment.

Group
2022 2021
RM'000 RM’000
Aggregate cost of property, plant and equipment acquired 4,121 2,945
Less: additions to right-of-use assets (Note 18) (129) (567)
Net cash outflow for purchase of property, plant and equipment 3,992 2,378

Assets pledged as security

The Group’s freehold land and properties with a carrying amount of RM9,604,000 (2021:
RM9,705,000) are pledged to secure the Group's borrowings (Note 18).

Intangible assets

Group
2022 2021
RM’'000 RM'000
Acquired computer software license [Note (a)] 442 369
Patents and trademarks [Note (b)] 374 402
816 771
a) Acquired computer software licenses
Group
2022 2021
RM’'000 RM’000
Cost
At 1 April 985 892
Additions 123 93
At 31 March 1,108 985
Amortisation
At 1 April 616 481
Amortisation charge 50 135
At 31 March 666 616
Net carrying amount
At 31 March 442 369
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Intangible assets (cont’d)

b) Patent and trademarks
Group
2022 2021
RM’000 RM'000
Cost
At 1 April 423 134
Additions 2 289
At 31 March 425 423
Amortisation
At 1 April 21 10
Amortisation charge 30 11
At 31 March 51 21
Net carrying amount
At 31 March 374 402
Investment in subsidiaries
Company
2022 2021
RM’000 RM’'000
Unquoted shares, at cost
Balance at beginning of financial year 11,290 11,235
Addition due to incorporation of subsidiary 272 -
Addition due to share options issued to employees of its subsidiaries
(Note 22) 329 55
Addition due to share awards granted to employees of its subsidiaries
(Note 22) 4,512 -
16,403 11,290
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (745) (745)
Balance at end of financial year 15,658 10,545
Allowance for impairment loss
Balance at beginning and end of financial year 745 745
-*  Denotes an amount less than RM1,000
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Investment in subsidiaries (cont'd)

i)

iii)

Details of the subsidiaries are:

Proportion
Principal place of ownership
Name of subsidiary of business Principal business activities interest
2022 2021
% %
Held by the Company
Samurai 2K Aerosol Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Manufacturing and sales of 100 100
(Formerly known as Orientus aerosol spray paints and
Industry Sdn. Bhd.)® related material
PT Samurai Paint® Indonesia Dormant 67 67
Samurai 2K USA Inc®@ United States Import aerosol paint products 100 100
of America and wholesales
Orientus Singapore Pte Ltd® Singapore Trading of aerosol spray paints 100 100
and related material
Samurai 2U Sdn. Bhd.® Malaysia To carry business of 100 100
E-Commerce for all type of
goods
Samurai 2K India Private India Import aerosol paint products  99.99 -
Limited @@ and wholesales

m Audited by independent overseas member firm of Baker Tilly International.

2 Not required to be audited by law of country of incorporation.

3 Audited by Baker Tilly TFW LLP, Singapore.
“ Incorporated during the financial year ended 31 March 2022 with share capital of Rs5,000,000.

At the end of the reporting period, there are no subsidiaries with non-controlling interests that
are considered by management to be material to the Group. Accordingly, the summarised financial
information of the subsidiaries is not being disclosed.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Company fully impaired the cost of investment in
PT Samurai Paint as there were no business plans for PT Samurai Paint. For the financial year ended
31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, there were no changes in plans for PT Samurai Paint. Accordingly,
no reversal of impairment was made.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

The movements in the deferred tax accounts are as follows:

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM'000
At 1 April 755 (32) - -
Tax charged to profit or loss (Note 9) 518 771 - -
Currency translation difference (8) 16 - -
At 31 March 1,265 755 - -
Representing:
Deferred tax assets (688) (680) - -
Deferred tax liabilities 1,953 1,435 - -
1,265 755 - -

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and the movements
thereon during the current and prior financial year:

Accelerated

tax Tax

depreciation losses Total
RM'000 RM’'000 RM’000
At 1 April 2020 663 (695) (32)
Tax charged/(credited) to profit or loss 772 (1) 771
Currency translation difference - 16 16
At 31 March 2021 1,435 (680) 755
Tax charged to profit or loss 518 - 518
Currency translation difference - (8) (8)
At 31 March 2022 1,953 (688) 1,265

At the reporting date, the Group has unutilised tax losses of RM3,278,000 (2021: RM3,256,000) that are
available for carry forward to offset against future taxable income subject to the agreement of the tax
authorities and compliance with certain provisions of the tax legislation to the respective countries in which
companies operate. Deferred tax assets of RM688,000 (2021: RM680,000) have been recognised in respect
of such losses. Unutilised tax losses of RM623,000 are available for carry forward until 2037 and unutilised
tax losses RM2,655,000 are available for carry forward indefinitely.
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15 Inventories
Group
2022 2021
RM’'000 RM'000
Raw materials 9,344 7,817
Work-in-progress 3,936 1,194
Finished goods 4,366 4,906
17,646 13,917

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in cost of sales amounted to RM64,802,000 (2021:
RM56,749,000). In 2021, the Group had recognised a reversal of RM62,000 being part of an inventory write
down made in previous years, as the inventories were sold above the carrying amounts. The reversal was

16

86

included in cost of sales.

Trade and other receivables

Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM’'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
Non-current
Trade receivables 430 - - -
Deposits 180 - - -
Prepayments 3,027 - - -
3,637 - - -
Current
Trade receivables 18,018 14,356 - -
Advance payment to suppliers 1,075 48 - -
Amount due from subsidiaries - - 32,037 25,401
Dividend receivable from subsidiary - - 15,000 17,500
Deposits 962 892 - -
Other receivables 929 98 - -
Prepayments 2,500 1,508 153 -
Tax recoverable 302 294 - -
22,956 17,196 47,190 42,901
26,593 17,196 47,190 42,901

Amount due from subsidiaries are interest-free, non-trade in nature, unsecured and repayable on demand.
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Cash and bank balances

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM'000
Cash in hand and at bank 35,439 40,424 4,704 14,057
Fixed deposits 37,672 36,006 - -
Cash and bank balances 73,111 76,430 4,704 14,057

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise the following at the end of the reporting period:

Group
2022 2021
RM’000 RM’000
Cash and bank balances 73,111 76,430
Less: Pledged fixed deposits (1,169) (1,124)
Cash and cash equivalents 71,942 75,306

Fixed deposits amounting to RM1,169,000 (2021: RM1,124,000) are pledged to banks as collateral for banking

facilities granted (Note 18).

Borrowings
Group
2022 2021
Repayment period RM’000 RM'000
Non-current
Loan 1 - 2.1% per annum below bank 180 monthly instalments from 1,585 1,626
Base Lend Rate (“BLR") August 2016
Loan 2 - 2.1% per annum below BLR 180 monthly instalments from 1,586 1,626
August 2016
Loan 3 - 0.5% per annum above BLR 180 monthly instalments from 63 65
August 2016
Lease liabilities 715 1,033
3,949 4,350
Current
Loan 1 -2.1% per annum below BLR 180 monthly instalments from 164 131
August 2016
Loan 2 - 2.1% per annum below BLR 180 monthly instalments from 162 131
August 2016
Loan 3 - 0.5% per annum above BLR 180 monthly instalments from 7 5
August 2016
Banker’s acceptance - 0.75% to 1.50% 16,962 15,139
above bank Cost of Funds Rate
Lease liabilities 491 661
17,786 16,067
21,735 20,417
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Borrowings (cont’d)

The loans and banker’s acceptance are secured by:

(i) Fixed deposits placed with the bank (Note 17);

(i) Freehold land and properties of the Group (Note 11);

(iiiy  Corporate guarantee issued by the Company; and

(iv) A business loan reducing term assurance covered for the joint life of the guarantors.

Determination of fair value of borrowings (except for lease liabilities)

The carrying amounts of borrowings (except for lease liabilities) approximate their fair values at the end of
the reporting period.

The fair values of the borrowings, determined from discounted cash flow analysis using the market lending
rate that the directors expect would be available to the Group at the end of the reporting period, are
reasonable approximation of carrying amounts as they are floating rate instruments that are repriced to
market interest rates on or near the end of the reporting period. The fair value measurement for disclosure
purposes is categorised in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Lease liabilities

Nature of the Group’s leasing activities

The Group's leasing activities comprise the following:

i) The Group leases various warehouses and motor vehicles from non-related parties. The leases have
an average tenure of between three to six years.

ii) The Group leases hostels for employees with contractual tenure of less than one year.
The maturity analysis of the lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 26(b).

Carrying amount of right-of-use assets

Group
2022 2021
RM’000 RM’'000
Classified within property, plant and equipment
Leasehold properties 716 908
Motor vehicles 787 1,165
1,503 2,073
Additions to right-of-use assets
2022 2021
RM’'000 RM'000
Leasehold properties 129 -
Motor vehicles - 567
129 567
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Borrowings (cont’d)
Lease liabilities (cont’d)

Amount recognised in profit or loss

Group
2022 2021
RM’000 RM’000
Depreciation charge for the financial year
Leasehold properties 306 389
Motor vehicles 174 126
480 515
Lease expense not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
Lease expense - short-term leases 35 46
Variable lease payments which do not depends on an index or rate 102 65
Total (Note 7) 137 111
Interest expense on lease liabilities 51 53

Total cash flows for leases amounted to RM799,000 (2021: RM778,000).
As at 31 March 2022, the Group is committed to RMNil (2021: RM36,000) for short-term leases.
Future cash outflow which are not capitalised in lease liabilities

Variable lease payments

The lease of a warehouse contains variable lease payments that is based on a percentage of the expenses
incurred by the landlord in connection with the operation, ownership, management, repair or maintenance
of the building. Overall, the variable payments constitute up to 12.8% (2021: 8.6%) of the Group’s entire
lease payments. These variable lease payments are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Extension options

The lease of a warehouse contains an extension option, for which the related lease payments had not been
included in the lease liabilities as the Group is not reasonably certain to extend the lease. This lease is used
to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the asset used in the Group'’s operations.
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Borrowings (cont’d)

Reconciliation movement of liabilities to cash flow arising from financing activities:

Lease Bank
liabilities  borrowings Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Balance at 1 April 2020 1,757 8,413 10,170
Changes from financing cash flows:
- Proceeds - 10,441 10,441
- Repayments (614) (131) (745)
Non-cash changes:
- Additions of new leases 567 - 567
- Currency translation differences (16) - (16)
Balance at 31 March 2021 1,694 18,723 20,417
Changes from financing cash flows:
- Proceeds - 1,822 1,822
- Repayments (611) (16) (627)
- Interest paid (51 (805) (856)
Non-cash changes:
- Interest expense 51 805 856
- Lease termination 9) - 9)
- Additions of new leases 129 - 129
- Currency translation differences 3 - 3
Balance at 31 March 2022 1,206 20,529 21,735
Trade and other payables
Company
2022 2021 2022 2021

RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
Current
Trade payables
- Third parties 24,709 19,714 - -
Other payables
- Third parties 223 20 - -
Accrued expenses 3,276 4,082 273 3,666
Amount due to a subsidiary - - 260 -

28,208 23,816 533 3,666
Non-current
Other payables 94 93 - -

Amount due to a subsidiary is interest-free, non-trade in nature, unsecured and repayable on demand.
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Share capital

2022 2021
No. of shares No. of shares
‘000 RM'000 ‘000 RM’'000

Group and Company
Ordinary shares
At 1 April 109,921 52,653 109,921 52,653
Issuance of shares pursuant to the share

awards (Note 22) 1,619 4,512 - -
Share split™ 223,080 - - -
At 31 March 334,620 57,165 109,921 52,653
Treasury shares
At 1 April - - - -
Share buy-back 55 64 - -
At 31 March 55 64 - -

M On 25 June 2021, every one existing ordinary share in the capital of the Company were sub-divided into three

ordinary shares.

All issued shares are fully paid ordinary shares with no par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All
ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions.

Dividends

Group and Company

2022 2021
RM’000 RM'000
Interim exempt dividend of SGD0.002 per share paid in respect of the
financial year ended 31 March 2022 2,066 -
Special exempt dividend of SGD0.004 per share paid in respect of the
financial year ended 31 March 2022 4133 -
Final exempt dividend of SGD0.00667 per share paid in respect of the
financial year ended 31 March 2021 6,976 -
Interim exempt dividend of SGD0.01 per share paid in respect of the
financial year ended 31 March 2021 - 3,345
Final exempt dividend of SGD0.01 per share paid in respect of the
financial year ended 31 March 2020 - 3,339
13,175 6,684

The directors have proposed final and special exempt dividend for the financial year ended 31 March 2022
of SGD0.002 and SGDO0.004 per share respectively, amounting to a total of RM6,425,000. These financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable, which will be accounted for in the shareholders’ equity as
an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 March 2023.
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Share option reserve

The Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited’s Performance Share Plan (the “Plan”) and Employee Share Option
Scheme (the “Scheme”) were approved and adopted by the members at the shareholders’ meeting held
on 16 December 2016 and will continue to remain in force until 15 December 2026, unless terminated in
accordance with the rules of the Plan and Scheme. The Plan and Scheme provide for the grant of shares and
share options to employees and directors of the Group.

The Plan and Scheme are administered by the Remuneration Committee of the Company, comprising of
Mr Hau Hock Khun (Chairman), Mr Lim Siang Kai and Mr Lim Chong Huat. A member of the Remuneration
Committee who is also a participant of the Plan and Scheme must not be involved in its deliberation in
respect of awards and options granted or to be granted to him.

The aggregate number of shares and share options which may be issued or transferred pursuant to awards
granted under the Plan and Scheme on any date, when aggregated with the aggregate number of shares
over which awards and options are granted under any other share option schemes or share schemes of the
Company, shall not exceed 15% of the total number of issued shares (excluding shares held by the Company
as treasury shares) on the day preceding that date.

Scheme

The aggregate number of shares issued and issuable in respect of all options granted under the Scheme
available to the controlling shareholders and their associates shall not exceed 25% of the total number of
shares available under the Scheme.

The aggregate number of shares issued and issuable in respect of all options granted under the Scheme
available to each controlling shareholder or his associates shall not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares available under the Scheme.

Options granted with the exercise price set at market price shall only be exercisable, in whole or in part
(provided that an option may be exercised in part only in respect of 100 shares or any multiple thereof),
at any time, by a participant after the first anniversary of the offer date of that option, provided always
that the options shall be exercised before the tenth anniversary of the relevant offer date, or such earlier
and later date as may be determined by the Remuneration Committee, failing which all unexercised
options shall immediately lapse and become null and void and a participant shall have no claim against the
Company.

Options granted with the exercise price set at a discount to market price shall only be exercisable, in whole
or in part (provided that an option may be exercised in part only in respect of 100 shares or any multiple
thereof), at any time, by a participant after the second anniversary from the offer date of that option,
provided always that the options shall be exercised before the tenth anniversary of the relevant offer date,
or such earlier and later date as may be determined by the Remuneration Committee, failing which all
unexercised options shall immediately lapse and become null and void and a participant shall have no claim
against the Company.

An option shall, to the extent unexercised, immediately lapse and become null and void and a participant
shall have no claim against the Company:

a) subject to the rules of the Schemes, upon the participant ceasing to be in employment of the
Company or any of the companies within the Group for any reason whatsoever;

b) upon the bankruptcy of the participant or the happening of any other event which result in his being
deprived of the legal or beneficial ownership of such option; or

o) in the event of misconduct on the part of the participant, as determined by the Remuneration
Committee.
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Share option reserve (cont’d)
Scheme (cont’d)

Movement in the number of options granted by the Company under the Scheme for the Group’s employees
are as follows:

A
\/

No. of options under the Scheme

Granted Forfeited Modification Vested
Beginning during during during during End of
of financial financial financial financial financial financial
year year year year* year year

2022
3 June 2019 164,000 - (49,000) 230,000 - 345,000
31 May 2021 - 1,190,000 (355,000) 1,670,000 - 2,505,000
2021
3 June 2019 192,000 - (28,000) - - 164,000
* Pursuant to the share split exercise during the financial year (Note 20), the number of outstanding unexercised

options were adjusted on the basis that one option will be split into three options.
On 31 May 2021, 1,190,000 share options were granted to employees of the Group pursuant to the Scheme.

The details of the outstanding number of options at the end of the reporting period was:

Exercise price® Grant date Exercise period
SGDO0.305 3 June 2019 3 June 2022 to 2 June 2029
SGDO0.347 31 May 2021 31 May 2024 to 30 May 2031

M Based on the new exercise price after the share split exercise (Note 20).

The share options outstanding as at the end of the financial year have a remaining contractual life of 7.17 to
9.16 (2021: 8.17) years.

The fair value of each option granted on 3 June 2019 (“FY2020 Grant”) and 31 May 2021 (“FY2022 Grant)
was RM0.40 and RM0.47 respectively. The estimate of the fair value of each option issued on grant date
was based on the Binomial Options Pricing model. In order to approximate the expectations that would
be reflected in a current market or negotiated exchange price for these options, the calculation takes into
consideration factors like behavioural considerations and non-transferability of the options granted.

The Binomial Options Pricing model used the following assumptions:

FY2020 Grant FY2022 Grant

Underlying share price (SGD) 0.910 1.070
Exercise price (SGD) 0.916 1.042
Dividend yield expected 0.50% 0.97%
Risk-free annual interest rates 1.96% 1.05%
Expected life 6.5 years 6.5 years
Expected volatility 43.31% 45.01%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Company’s share price from
date of initial public offering to the grant date which was compared against the historical volatility range of
the comparable companies for the period of 6.5 years prior to the valuation date. The expected lives used in
the model have been adjusted, based on management best estimates, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022 93



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

22 Share option reserve (cont’d)
Plan
On 31 May 2021, the Company granted 1,618,929 shares awards to employees of the Group pursuant to
the Plan. The share awards have been vested on the date of grant and is under moratorium against any
disposal or sales/or other dealings in the share as follow:
(i) Tranche 1: 33% of the shares after 1 year from the date of grant (i.e.: 30 May 2022)
(ii) Tranche 2: 33% of the shares after 2 years from the date of grant (i.e.: 30 May 2023)
(iiiy  Tranche 3: Balance 34% of the shares after 3 years from the date of grant (i.e.: 30 May 2024)

The estimate of the fair value of each share awards on the grant date was based on the Finnerty Put Option
model, which takes into consideration the restrictions on the transferability of the shares.

The Finnerty Put Option model used the following key assumptions:

Share awards

Underlying share price (SGD) 1.070
Dividend yield expected 0.97%
Risk-free annual interest rates 0.33% - 0.51%
Annualised volatility 41.40% - 64.30%

Personnel expenses amounted to RM4,512,000 based on the fair value of the share awards have been
recognised in the Group’s profit or loss during the financial year.

23 Merger reserve
Merger reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid by the Company and the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired under common control.

24  Contingent liabilities
The Company has provided corporate guarantees of RM39,531,000 (2021: RM39,531,000) to banks for bank
borrowings of RM20,529,000 (2021: RM18,723,000) drawn down by its subsidiary at the end of reporting
period.

25 Capital commitments

Capital commitments not provided for in the financial statements:

Group
2022 2021
RM’000 RM’000
Capital commitment in respect of property, plant and equipment 22,216 -
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26 Financial instruments

a)

b)

Categories of financial instruments

Financial instruments at their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM'000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM'000
Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost 92,701 91,678 51,741 56,958
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 49,943 44,233 533 3,666

Financial risk management

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations and the
use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below. The
directors review and agree policies and procedures for the management of these risks.

There has been no change to the Group’s and the Company's exposure to these financial risks or the
manner in which the Group and the Company manage and measure financial risks.

Foreign currency risk

The Group and the Company have currency exposures arising from transactions, assets and liabilities
that are denominated in currencies other than their respective functional currencies of entities in the
Group. The foreign currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily the United States Dollar (“USD"),
Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR"), Singapore Dollar (“SGD") and British Pound Sterling (“GBP").

There is no formal hedging policy with respect to foreign currency exposure. Exposure to foreign
currency risk is monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group endeavours to keep the net exposure
at a level that is deemed acceptable by management.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company have the following financial assets
and financial liabilities denominated in foreign currencies based on information provided to key
management:

usbD IDR SGD GBP
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000
Group
2022
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 1,509 15,326 - 161
Cash and bank balances 6,031 1" 3,403 274
7,540 15,337 3,403 435
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (773) (60) - -
Net financial assets denominated in
foreign currencies 6,767 15,277 3,403 435
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Financial instruments (cont'd)

b)

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

usb IDR SGD GBP
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000
Group
2021
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 1,498 12,260 - -
Cash and bank balances 25,079 - 3,591 -
26,577 12,260 3,591 -
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (2,413) - - -
Net financial assets denominated in
foreign currencies 24,164 12,260 3,591 -
usD SGD
RM’'000 RM’'000
Company
2022
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 5,466 -
Cash and bank balances 1,675 3,029
7141 3,029
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (260) -
Net financial assets denominated in foreign currencies 6,881 3,029
2021
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 4,367 -
Cash and bank balances 10,479 3,578
Net financial assets denominated in foreign currencies 14,846 3,578
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26 Financial instruments (cont'd)

b)

Financial risk management (cont’d)
Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the USD, IDR,
SGD and GBP exchange rates against the respective functional currencies of the Group's entities, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit after tax:

Group

increase/(decrease) in
profit after tax

2022 2021

RM’'000 RM’'000
USD/RM
- strengthened 10% (2021: 10%) 597 2,279
- weakened 10% (2021: 10%) (597) (2,279)
IDR/RM
- strengthened 10% (2021: 10%) 1,161 932
- weakened 10% (2021: 10%) (1,161) (932)
SGD/RM
- strengthened 10% (2021: 10%) 278 317
- weakened 10% (2021: 10%) (278) (317)
GBP/RM
- strengthened 10% (2021: 10%) 33 9
- weakened 10% (2021: 10%) (33) 9)
Company

If the SGD exchange rate against RM strengthened/weakened by 10%, with all other variables held
constant, the Company’s profit after tax will be higher/lower by RM251,000 (2021: RM296,000).
If the USD exchange rate against RM strengthened/weakened by 10%, with all other variables held
constant, the Company’s profit after tax will be higher/lower by RM571,000 (2021: RM1,232,000).

The sensitivity analysis for the other foreign currencies is not disclosed as the impact on the Group's
and the Company'’s profit after tax is not significant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and the Company'’s
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s and the
Company's exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from their borrowings and deposits placed
with the financial institutions at variable rates. Borrowings and deposits at variable rates expose
the Group and the Company to cash flow interest rate risk (i.e. the risk that the future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates). The Group and the
Company do not utilise derivatives to mitigate its interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis for the interest rate risk is not disclosed as the impact on the Group’s and the
Company's profit after tax is not significant.
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Financial instruments (cont'd)

b)

Financial risk management (cont’d)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligations. The Group has credit policies in place and the exposure to
credit risk is monitored on an on-going basis by the management. The Group's exposure to credit
risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables. Cash and bank balances are placed with banks
with high credit-ratings.

The Group does not have significant credit risk except that the Group’s trade receivables comprise 3
debtors (2021: 3 debtors) that collectively represented 83% (2021: 85%) of the trade receivables. The
Company has no significant concentration of credit risks except for the amount due from subsidiaries
as disclosed in Note 16.

As the Group and the Company do not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk is
the carrying amount of each class of financial instruments presented on the statements of financial
position.

The following sets out the Group's internal credit evaluation practices and basis for recognition and
measurement of expected credit losses (“ECL"):

Description of evaluation of financial assets = Basis for recognition and measurement of
ECL

Counterparty has a low risk of default and does 12-month ECL
not have any past due amounts

Contractual payments are more than 30 days Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired
past due or where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition

Contractual payments are more than 90 Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired
days past due or there is evidence of credit
impairment

There is evidence indicating that the Group Write-off
has no reasonable expectation of recovery of

payments such as when the debtor has been

placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information, such as future economic and industry outlook that is available without undue cost or
effort.

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

26 Financial instruments (cont’d)
b) Financial risk management (cont’d)
Credit risk (cont’d)
Significant increase in credit risk (cont'd)

In particular, the Group considers the following information when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results/key financial
performance ratios of the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria
are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Regardless of the evaluation of the above factors, the Group presumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group also assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally understood definition, or the financial asset has a
low risk of default; the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term; and adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

Definition of default

The Group has determined the default events on a financial asset to be when there is evidence that
the borrower is experiencing liquidity issues or when there is a breach of contract, such as a default
of payment.

The Group considers the above as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred such as evidence that the borrower
is in significant financial difficulty, there is a breach of contract such as default or past due event;
there is information that it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties; or the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects
the incurred credit losses.
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Financial instruments (cont'd)

b)

Financial risk management (cont’d)
Credit risk (cont’d)
Estimation techniques and significant assumptions

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
current financial year for recognition and measurement of credit loss allowances.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to measure the expected credit loss (“ECL") allowance for
trade receivables.

The Group determined the lifetime ECL of trade receivables by performing an ECL assessment for
each debtor by considering the historical loss rate, recent payments, ongoing business relationship,
creditworthiness of each debtor and their ability to repay. Management assessed that there is
immaterial loss allowance relating to trade receivables.

Financial assets at amortised cost

12-month or Gross carrying  Loss allowance Net carrying

2022 Group lifetime ECL amount RM’000 RM’'000 amount RM’000
Trade receivables Lifetime ECL 18,448 - 18,448
Deposits Not applicable 1,142 - 1,142
(Exposure
limited)
Cash and bank Not applicable 73,111 - 73,111
balances (Exposure
limited)

2022 Company

Amount due from 12-month ECL 26,571 - 26,571
subsidiaries

Amount due from Lifetime ECL 5,466 - 5,466
subsidiary

Dividend receivable 12-month ECL 15,000 - 15,000
from subsidiary

Cash and bank Not applicable 4,704 - 4,704
balances (Exposure

limited)
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Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial risk management (cont’d)
Credit risk (cont’d)

Financial assets at amortised cost (cont’d)

12-month or Gross carrying  Loss allowance Net carrying

2021 Group lifetime ECL amount RM’000 RM’'000 amount RM’000
Trade receivables Lifetime ECL 14,356 - 14,356
Deposits Not applicable 892 - 892
(Exposure
limited)
Cash and bank Not applicable 76,430 - 76,430
balances (Exposure
limited)

2021 Company

Amount due from 12-month ECL 21,034 - 21,034
subsidiaries

Amount due from Lifetime ECL 4,367 - 4,367
subsidiary

Dividend receivable 12-month ECL 17,500 - 17,500
from subsidiary

Cash and bank Not applicable 14,057 - 14,057
balances (Exposure

limited)

Amount due from subsidiaries

For the amount due from subsidiaries where impairment loss allowance is measured using 12-month
ECL, the Group and the Company assessed the latest performance and financial position of the
respective counterparties, adjusted for the future outlook of the industry in which the counterparties
operate in, and concluded that there has been no significant increase in the credit risk since the
initial recognition of the financial assets. Accordingly, the Group and the Company measured the
impairment loss allowance using 12-month ECL and determined that the ECL is insignificant at the
end of the reporting period.

For amount due from subsidiary at lifetime ECL as at 31 March 2022, the Company assessed the
latest performance and financial position of the subsidiary, adjusted for the future outlook of the
industry in which the counterparty operates in. In addition, another subsidiary of the Group has
undertaken to repay the amount due from subsidiary as at 31 March 2022. The Company had
assessed that the loss given default is immaterial.

For amount due from subsidiary at lifetime ECL as at 31 March 2021, the Company had assessed that
the loss given default is immaterial based on the management approved five-year cash flow forecast
of this subsidiary. The cash flow forecast has been updated to reflect the most recent developments
as at the reporting date and considered the delays in the marketing strategy plan for this subsidiary
due to COVID-19 pandemic.
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Financial instruments (cont'd)

b)

Financial risk management (cont’d)
Credit risk (cont’d)
Financial guarantee

The Company has issued financial guarantees of RM39,531,000 (2021: RM39,531,000) to banks for
bank borrowings of RM20,529,000 (2021: RM18,723,000) drawn down by its subsidiary at the end of
reporting period. These guarantees are subject to the impairment requirements of SFRS(l) 9 Financial
Instruments. The Company has assessed that its subsidiary has strong financial capacity to meet the
contractual cash flow obligations and does not expect significant credit losses arising from these
guarantees.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group’'s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk
arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s
and the Company'’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of stand-by credit facilities. The Group and the Company manage the liquidity risk by
maintaining sufficient cash to enable them to meet their normal operating commitments and having
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities (Note 18).

The table below shows the contractual expiry by the maturity of the Group’s and the Company'’s
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted repayment
obligations:

Repayable
on demand Within
or within 2to5 Over
1 year years 5 years Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000
Group
2022
Trade and other payables 28,208 - - 28,208
Borrowings 17,431 1,879 1,902 21,212
Lease liabilities 505 752 1 1,258
46,144 2,631 1,903 50,678
2021
Trade and other payables 23,816 - - 23,816
Borrowings 15,514 1,703 2,385 19,602
Lease liabilities 694 1,151 - 1,845
40,024 2,854 2,385 45,263
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Financial instruments (cont’d)
b) Financial risk management (cont’d)
Liquidity risk (cont’d)
The table below shows the contractual expiry by the maturity of the Group’s and the Company'’s

financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted repayment
obligations (cont'd):

Repayable
on demand Within
or within 2to5 Over
1 year years 5 years Total
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000
Company
2022
Trade and other payables 533 - - 533
Financial guarantee contracts* 20,529 - - 20,529
21,062 - - 21,062
2021
Trade and other payables 3,666 - - 3,666
Financial guarantee contracts* 18,723 - - 18,723
22,389 - - 22,389

* At the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure of the Company in respect of the intragroup
financial guarantee (Note 24) based on facilities drawn down by the subsidiary is RM20,529,000 (2021:
RM18,723,000). The Company does not consider it probable that a claim will be made against the Company
under intragroup financial guarantee.

Fair values of assets and liabilities

Fair value hierarchy

The tables below analyse the fair value measurements by the levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs to the valuation techniques. The different levels are defined as follows:

(i) Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

(ii) Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

(iii) Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

There has been no transfer between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the financial years ended 31 March
2022 and 31 March 2021.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities (except for lease liabilities) are reasonable
approximation of fair values as they are short-term in nature, market interest rate instruments, or fixed rate
instruments whereby the fixed rates approximate market interest rates on or near the end of the reporting
period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company do not have any financial instruments
carried at fair value.
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Segment information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on its products, and have
three operating segments as follows:

(a) The paint - standard segment includes standard colour aerosol spray paint products.
(b) The paint - premium segment includes fluorescent, candy and metallic colour aerosol spray paint
products, high temperature aerosol spray paint products, primer products, epoxy products, 2K

products and multi-colour one aerosol spray paint.

() The maintenance and others segment includes cosmetic products such as metal and paint polish and
maintenance products such as engine degreaser, chain oil, carburetor and gasket cleaner.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for making decisions about
allocation of resources and assessment of performances for each segment.

The segment information provided to management for the reportable segments are as follows:

Paint - Paint - Maintenance
Standard Premium  and others Group
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2022
Segment revenue
Sales to external customers 65,527 46,953 558 113,038
Segment profit 11,486 8,230 98 19,814
Other segment information
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,989 1,151 14 3,154
Amortisation of intangible assets 46 33 1 80
Segment assets 62,614 44,866 533 108,013
Unallocated assets
- Deferred tax assets 688
- Fixed deposits 37,672
- Tax recoverable 302
Total assets 146,675
Segment assets include:
Additions to non-current assets 2,461 1,764 21 4,246
Segment liabilities 17,106 12,257 145 29,508
Unallocated liabilities
- Deferred tax liabilities 1,953
- Borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) 20,529
- Tax payable 1,623
Total liabilities 53,613
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The segment information provided to management for the reportable segments are as follows (cont'd):

Paint - Paint - Maintenance
Standard Premium  and others Group
RM'000 RM'000 RM’'000 RM’'000

2021
Segment revenue
Sales to external customers 62,985 47,206 439 110,630
Segment profit 14,311 10,725 100 25,136
Other segment information
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,645 982 M 2,638
Amortisation of intangible assets 83 62 1 146
Segment assets 56,316 42,208 393 98,917
Unallocated assets
- Deferred tax assets 680
- Fixed deposits 36,006
- Tax recoverable 294
Total assets 135,897
Segment assets include:
Additions to non-current assets 1,894 1,420 13 3,327
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities 14,576 10,925 102 25,603
- Deferred tax liabilities 1,435
- Borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) 18,723
- Tax payable 1,749
Total liabilities 47,510

Segment results

Performance of each segment is evaluated based on segment profit or loss which is measured
differently from the net profit or loss before tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Interest income and finance costs are not allocated to segments as Group’s

financing is managed on a Group basis.

A reconciliation of segment profit to the consolidated profit before tax is as follows:

Group
2022 2021
RM’'000 RM’'000
Segment profit 19,814 25,136
Interest income 747 286
Finance costs (926) (457)
Profit before tax 19,635 24,965
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Segment information (cont’d)
Segment assets

The amounts provided to the management with respect to total assets are measured in a manner
consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements. Management monitors the assets attributable
to each segment for the purposes of monitoring segment performance and for allocating resources
between segments. All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than deferred tax assets, tax
recoverable and fixed deposits which are classified as unallocated assets.

Segment liabilities

The amounts provided to management with respect to total liabilities are measured in a manner consistent
with that of the consolidated financial statements. All liabilities are allocated to the reportable segments
based on the operations of the segments other than deferred tax liabilities, tax payable and borrowings
(excluding lease liabilities). These liabilities are classified as unallocated liabilities.

Geographical information

Revenue and non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) information based on the geographical
location of customers and assets respectively are as follows:

Group
Sales to external Non-current
customers assets
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM'000
Malaysia 53,731 45,859 31,993 27,326
Indonesia 34,956 42,415 - -
Others 24,351 22,356 281 348
113,038 110,630 32,274 27,674

Non-current assets information presented above are non-current assets as presented on the consolidated
statements of financial position excluding deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers
Revenue from 3 (2021: 3) customers who individually contributed 10% or more of the Group's revenue

which are attributable to the paint-standard, paint-premium and maintenance and others segments are as
detailed below:

Group
2022 2021
RM’000 RM'000
Customer 1 (Paint-Standard and Paint-Premium) 16,968 15,924
Customer 2 (Paint-Standard and Paint-Premium) 28,340 33,259
Customer 3 (Paint-Standard and Paint-Premium) 23,836 19,904
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Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise shareholders’ value. In order to
maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, buy-back issued shares, obtain new borrowings or sell
assets to reduce borrowings.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of its total equity and borrowings and the Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged during the financial years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.
Authorisation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and statement

of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 were authorised for issue
in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 7 July 2022.
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

AS AT 27 JUNE 2022

NUMBER OF ISSUED SHARES (INCLUDING TREASURY SHARES) : 334,619,787
NUMBER OF ISSUED SHARES (EXCLUDING TREASURY SHARES) : 334,564,787

ISSUED AND FULLY PAID-UP CAPITAL : S5%$19,732,622

CLASS OF SHARES : Ordinary Shares

NUMBER / PERCENTAGE OF TREASURY SHARES ;55,000 (0.0164%)
NUMBER / PERCENTAGE OF SUBSIDIARY HOLDINGS : Nil

VOTING RIGHTS : 1 vote for each Ordinary Share held

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

NO. OF

SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS SHAREHOLDERS % NO. OF SHARES %
1-99 0 0.00 0 0.00
100 - 1,000 8 3.35 3,700 0.00
1,001 - 10,000 32 13.39 196,100 0.06
10,001 - 1,000,000 168 70.29 25,689,300 7.68
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 31 12.97 308,730,687 92.26
TOTAL 239 100.00 334,619,787 100.00
TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
NO. NAME NO. OF SHARES %
1 ONG YOKE EN 139,152,000 41.59
2 LIM LAY YONG 45,000,000 13.45
3 CHANG CHOR CHOONG 12,750,000 3.81
4 LOH SHIN SIONG 12,750,000 3.81
5 UOB KAY HIAN PRIVATE LIMITED 10,731,700 3.21
6 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED 10,531,300 3.15
7 KONG HEE SIONG 7,964,800 2.38
8 ONG YICK SING 7,344,000 2.19
9 CHAI FOOK CHOY 7,301,100 2.18
10 PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD 6,132,300 1.83
1 PANG HANG HIN 6,043,800 1.81
12 ONG HOW EN 6,024,000 1.80
13 LEE SIONG KIM 4,453,902 1.33
14 ONG YOKE HOI 3,924,000 1.17
15 CGS-CIMB SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. 3,529,800 1.05
16 BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE. LTD. 2,976,000 0.89
17 TAY WUU YEAN 2,663,000 0.80
18 DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 2,201,800 0.66
19 CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 2,187,000 0.65
20 CHAI MIN YEW 1,524,000 0.46

TOTAL 295,184,502 88.22
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AS AT 27 JUNE 2022

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholdings

Shareholdings in which the
registered in substantial
the name of shareholder are
the substantial deemed to be Percentage of
Substantial Shareholder shareholder interested Total issued shares
ONG YOKE EN 139,152,000 - 139,152,000 41.59
LIM LAY YONG 45,000,000 - 45,000,000 13.45

SHAREHOLDINGS HELD IN HANDS OF PUBLIC
Based on information provided and to the best knowledge of the Directors, approximately 34.36% of the total

number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company are held in the hands of the
public as at 27 June 2022. Rule 723 of the Catalist Rules has therefore been complied with.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited the “Company”) will
be held by electronic means on Wednesday, 27 July 2022 at 2.00 p.m. for the purpose of transacting the following
businesses:

As Ordinary Business:

1.

To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2022
and the Auditors’ Report thereon. (Resolution 1)

To declare a final exempt (one-tier) dividend of SGD 0.002 per share and special dividend of SGD0.004 per
share for the financial year ended 31 March 2022. (Resolution 2)

To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association:

Mr Lim Chong Huat (Regulation 98) (See Explanatory Note 1) (Resolution 3)
Dato’ Loh Shin Siong (Regulation 98) (See Explanatory Note 2) (Resolution 4)

To approve the payment of Directors' Fees of RM293,875 for the financial year ending 31 March 2023, to be
paid quarterly in arrears. (Resolution 5)

To re-appoint Baker Tilly TFW LLP as the Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration. (Resolution 6)

To transact any other ordinary business which may properly be transacted at an annual general meeting.

As Special Business:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions, with or without any
modifications:

7.

110

GENERAL MANDATE TO ALLOT AND ISSUE NEW SHARES IN THE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

“That, pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act 1967 of Singapore (the “Companies Act”) and Rule
806 of the Listing Manual Section B: Rules of Catalist of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(“SGX-ST") (“Catalist Rules”), authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to:

(A) (i) allot and issue shares in the Company (“Shares”) whether by way of rights, bonus or
otherwise; and/or

(ii) make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that might or would
require Shares to be issued, including but not limited to the creation and issue of (as well as
adjustments to) options, warrants, debentures or other instruments convertible into Shares,

at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such persons as the
Directors of the Company shall in their absolute discretion deem fit; and

(B) (notwithstanding the authority conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be in force) issue
Shares in pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the Directors while this Resolution was in
force, provided that:

(M the aggregate number of Shares to be issued pursuant to this Resolution (including Shares
to be issued in pursuance of the Instruments, made or granted pursuant to this Resolution)
does not exceed one hundred per cent (100%) of the total number of issued Shares (excluding
treasury shares) in the capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph
(2) below), of which the aggregate number of Shares to be issued other than on a pro-rata
basis to the existing shareholders of the Company (including Shares to be issued in pursuance
of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) does not exceed fifty per cent.
(50%) of the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the
Company (as at the time of passing of this Resolution);
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(2) (subject to such calculation as may be prescribed by the SGX-ST) for the purpose of
determining the aggregate number of Shares that may be issued under sub-paragraph (1)
above on a pro-rata basis, the percentage of the total number of issued Shares (excluding
treasury shares) in the capital of the Company shall be calculated based on the total number
of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares) in the capital of the Company at the time of the
passing of this Resolution, after adjusting for:

(@) new Shares arising from the conversion or exercise of the Instruments or any
convertible securities;

(b) new Shares arising from exercising share options or vesting of share awards which are
outstanding or subsisting at the time of the passing of this Resolution, provided the
options or awards were granted in compliance with Part VIII of Chapter 8 of the Catalist
Rules; and

(c) any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of Shares.

(3) in exercising the authority conferred by this Resolution, the Company shall comply with
the provisions of the Catalist Rules as amended from time to time (unless such compliance
has been waived by the SGX-ST), all applicable legal requirements under the Act and the
Constitution for the time being of the Company; and

(4) unless revoked or varied by the Company in a general meeting, such authority shall continue
in force until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company or the date by
which the next annual general meeting is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier.”
(See Explanatory Note 3) (Resolution 7)

AUTHORITY TO ISSUE SHARES UNDER THE PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN

That approval be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to allot and issue from time to time
such number of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company as may be required to be issued pursuant
to the vesting of awards granted or to be granted under the Performance Share Plan (the “Plan”), provided
that the aggregate number of ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to the Plan and any other share based
incentive schemes of the Company shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the total number of issued
shares excluding treasury shares of the Company from time to time, as determined in accordance with the
provisions of the Plan.

(See Explanatory Note 4) (Resolution 8)

AUTHORITY TO ISSUE SHARES UNDER THE EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

That authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to offer and grant options from
time to time in accordance with the provisions of the Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”), and,
pursuant to Section 161 of the Act, to allot and issue from time to time such number of shares in the capital
of the Company as may be required to be issued pursuant to the exercise of options granted under the
Scheme, provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to the Scheme and any other
share based incentive schemes of the Company shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the issued share
capital of the Company excluding treasury shares of the Company from time to time, as determined in
accordance with the provisions of the Scheme.

(See Explanatory Note 5) (Resolution 9)
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10.

12

RENEWAL OF SHARE BUY BACK MANDATE

That:

(@)

(b)

()

for the purposes of the Catalist Rules and Companies Act 1967 of Singapore (the “Act”), the exercise
by the Directors of the Company of all the powers of the Company to use Funds (as defined
hereinafter) to purchase or otherwise acquire the ordinary shares in the capital of the Company
(“Shares”) not exceeding in aggregate the Maximum Limit (as defined hereinafter), at such price(s) as
may be determined by the Directors of the Company from time to time up to the Maximum Price (as
defined hereinafter), whether by way of:

(i) on-market purchases (each an “On-Market Purchase”) on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST"); and/or

(i) off-market purchases (each an “Off-Market Purchase”) effected otherwise than on the
SGX-ST in accordance with any equal access schemes as may be determined or formulated by
the Directors of the Company as they consider fit based on the requirements of Section 76C of
the Act,

and in accordance with all other laws and regulations of Singapore and the listing rules of the
SGX-ST as may for the time being be applicable, be and is hereby authorised and approved generally
and unconditionally (the “Share Purchase Mandate”);

unless varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting, the authority conferred on the
Directors of the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate may be exercised by the
Directors of the Company at any time and from time to time during the period commencing from the
passing of this Resolution and expiring on the earlier of:

(i) the date on which the next annual general meeting of the Company is held or required by the
law to be held;

(i) the date on which the share purchases are carried out to the full extent mandated; or
(iiiy ~ the date on which the authority contained in the Share Purchase Mandate is revoked or varied;
in this Resolution:

“Funds” means internal sources of funds of the Company. lllustrations of the financial impact of the
use of Funds are set out in the Appendix 1;

“Maximum Limit” means that number of Shares representing ten per cent. (10%) of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) as at the
date of passing of this Resolution unless the Company has effected a reduction of the share capital of
the Company in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act, at any time during the Relevant
Period (as defined hereinafter), in which event the issued ordinary share capital of the Company shall
be taken to be the amount of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as altered (excluding
any treasury shares and subsidiary holdings that may be held by the Company from time to time);

“Relevant Period” means the period commencing from the date on which the last annual general
meeting was held and expiring on the date the next annual general meeting is held or is required by
law to be held or the date on which the share purchases are carried out to the full extent of the Share
Purchase Mandate or the date the said mandate is revoked or varied by the Company in a general
meeting, whichever is the earlier, after the date of this Resolution;

“Maximum Price”, in relation to a Share to be purchased or acquired, means an amount (excluding
brokerage, stamp duties, applicable goods and services tax and other related expenses) not
exceeding:

(i) in the case of an On-Market Purchase: 105% of the Average Closing Price; and

(ii) in the case of an Off-Market Purchase: 120% Average Closing Price, where:
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“Average Closing Price” means the average of the closing market prices of a share over the last five
(5) market days, on which transactions in the Shares were recorded, preceding the day of the On-
Market Purchase, or as the case may be, the date of the making of the offer pursuant to the Off-
Market Purchase, and deemed to be adjusted for any corporate action that occurs after the relevant
five (5) market days period;

“Date of the making of the offer” means the date on which the Company announces its intention to
make an offer for an Off-Market Purchase, stating the purchase price (which shall not be more than
the Maximum Price calculated on the foregoing basis) for each share and the relevant terms of the
equal access scheme for effecting the Off-Market Purchase; and

(d) the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to complete and do all such acts and
things (including executing such documents as may be required) as they may consider expedient or
necessary to give effect to the transactions contemplated by this Resolution.”

(See Explanatory Note 6) (Resolution 10)

By Order of the Board

Ong Yoke En
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Singapore 8 July 2022

Explanatory Notes:

1.

Mr Lim Chong Huat, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, will remain as the Chairman of the Nominating
Committee and a member of the Audit & Risk Management Committee and Remuneration Committee. Mr Lim Chong Huat
is an Independent Director of the Company. The Board considers Mr Lim Chong Huat to be independent pursuant to Rule
704(7) of the Catalist Rules.

Dato’ Loh Shin Siong, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, will remain as the Non-Executive Director of the
Company.

The Ordinary Resolution 7 proposed in item 7 above, if passed, will empower the Directors from the date of this AGM until
the date of the next AGM or the date by which the next AGM is required by law to be held or such authority is revoked or
varied by the Company in a general meeting, whichever is earlier, to allot and issue Shares and/or convertible securities
in the Company. The aggregate number of Shares and/or convertible securities which the Directors may allot and issue
under this Resolution shall not exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the total issued Shares excluding treasury shares of
which the aggregate number of Shares and/or convertible securities to be issued other than on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company shall not exceed fifty percent (50%) of the total issued Shares excluding treasury shares at
the time of passing of this Resolution.

The Ordinary Resolution 8 proposed in item 8 above, is to authorise the Directors to allot and issue shares on the vesting
of awards under the Plan.

The Ordinary Resolution 9 proposed in item 9 above, is to authorise the Directors to officer and grant options under the
Scheme and to allot and issue shares pursuant to the exercise of such options under the Scheme.

The Ordinary Resolution 10 proposed in item 10 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to make
purchases or otherwise acquire the Company’s issued shares from time to time subject to and in accordance with the
guidelines set out in the “Appendix” section in the Company’s Annual Report. The authority will expire at the next AGM of
the Company or the date by which the next AGM of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier, unless
previously revoked or waived at a general meeting.
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The Annual General Meeting is being convened, and will be held, by electronic means pursuant to the COVID-19
(Temporary Measures) (Alternative Arrangements for Meetings for Companies, Variable Capital Companies, Business
Trusts, Unit Trusts and Debenture Holders) Order 2020.

Due to the current COVID-19 restriction orders in Singapore, members will not be able to attend the Annual General
Meeting in person. Members will be able to watch the proceedings of the Annual General Meeting through a “live”
webcast via their mobile phones, tablets or computers or listen to these proceedings through a “live” audio feed
via telephone. In order to do so, members who wish to watch the “live” webcast or listen to the “live” audio feed must
pre-register by 2.00 p.m. on 24 July 2022, at https://complete-corp.com/samurai2k-agm/. Following authentication
of their status as members, authenticated members will receive email instructions on how to access the webcast
and audio feed of the proceedings of the Annual General Meeting by 2.00 p.m. on 26 July 2022. Members who do
not receive an email by 2.00 p.m. on 26 July 2022 should contact Complete Corporate Services Pte Ltd, by email at
samurai2k-agm@complete-corp.com.

Members who pre-register to watch the “live” webcast or listen to the “live” audio feed may also submit questions relating
to the resolutions to be tabled for approval at the Annual General Meeting. To do so, all questions must be submitted by
2.00 p.m. on 19 July 2022.

(@) viathe pre-registration website at https://complete-corp.com/samurai2k-agm/;

(b) in hard copy by post to Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited c/o Complete Corporate Services Pte Ltd at 10 Anson Road, #29-
07 International Plaza, Singapore 079903; or

() by email to Complete Corporate Services Pte Ltd at samurai2k-agm@complete-corp.com.

The Company will address relevant and substantial questions (as may be determined by the Company in its sole
discretion) received in advance of the AGM at least forty-eight (48) hours before the proxy cut-off date. If there are
substantial and relevant questions received after the cut-off time for the submission of questions, the Board may address
the questions at the AGM.

Members (whether individuals or corporates) who wish to exercise their voting rights at the Annual General Meeting
must appoint the Chairman of the Meeting as their proxy to attend, speak and vote on their behalf at the Annual General
Meeting. In appointing the Chairman of the Meeting as proxy, members (whether individuals or corporates) must give
specific instructions as to voting, or abstentions from voting, in the form of proxy, failing which the appointment will be
treated as invalid.

CPF/SRS investors who wish to appoint the Chairman of the Meeting as proxy should approach their respective CPF Agent
Banks/SRS Operators to submit their votes by 5.00 p.m. on 15 July 2022.

The Chairman of the Meeting, as proxy, need not be a member of the Company.
The instrument appointing the Chairman of the Meeting as proxy must:

(a) if sent by post, be received at the office of the Company’s Share Registrar in Singapore, Boardroom Corporate &
Advisory Pte Ltd, either by hand at 1 Harbourfront Avenue Keppel Bay Tower #14-07 Singapore 098632; or

(b) if submitted by email, be received by Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited at samurai2k-agm@complete-corp.com,

not less than seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed for the AGM in accordance with the instructions stated
herein.

A member who wishes to submit an instrument of proxy must first download, complete and sign the proxy form, before
submitting it by post to the address provided above, or before scanning and sending it by email to the email address
provided above.

The Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 and the Appendix dated 8 July 2022 in relation to the
proposed renewal of the Share Buyback Mandate have been made available on SGXNET and may be accessed at the
Company'’s website at www.samurai2kaerosol.com.
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Personal Data Privacy

By submitting an instrument appointing the Chairman of the Meeting to attend, speak and vote at the AGM and/or any
adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the member’'s personal
data by the Company (or its agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration by the Company (or its agents) of
the appointment of Chairman of the Meeting as proxy appointed for the AGM (including any adjournment thereof) and the
preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to the AGM (including any
adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable laws, listing rules, regulations
and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”), (ii) agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in respect of any
penalties, liabilities, claims, demands, losses and damages as a result of the member’s breach of warranty. Photographic,
sound and/or video recordings of the AGM may be made by the Company for record keeping and to ensure the accuracy of
the minutes prepared of the Meeting. Accordingly, the personal data of a member of the Company (such as his name) may be
recorded by the Company for such purpose.
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SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED IMPORTANT:

Company No. 201606168C 1. The Annual General Meeting is being convened, and will be held, by electronic

means pursuant to the COVID-19 (Temporary Measures) (Alternative

Arrangements for Meetings for Companies, Variable Capital Companies,
Business Trusts, Unit Trusts and Debenture Holders) Order 2020.

2. Alternative arrangements relating to attendance at the Annual General
Meeting via electronic means (including arrangements by which the meeting
can be electronically accessed via live audio-visual webcast or live audio-only
stream), submission of questions to the Chairman of the AGM in advance of
the Annual General Meeting, addressing of substantial and relevant questions
at least 48 hours before the proxy cut-off date and voting by appointing the
Chairman of the AGM as proxy at the Annual General Meeting, are set out
in the notice of AGM dated 8 July 2022. The notice of AGM may be accessed
via the SGX website at the URL: https://www.sgx.com/securities/company-

(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

PROXY FORM announcements.

(Please see notes overleaf before completing
this Form)

I/We,

of

Meeting.

3. Due to the current Covid-19 restriction orders in Singapore, a member will not
be able to attend the Annual General Meeting in person. A member (including
a Relevant Intermediary*) must appoint the Chairman of the AGM as his/her/
its proxy to vote on his/her/its behalf at the Annual General Meeting if such
member wishes to exercise his/her/its voting rights at the Annual General

4. SRS investors who wish to appoint the Chairman of the AGM as proxy should
approach their respective SRS Operators to submit their votes at least
seven (7) working days before the AGM in order to allow sufficient time for
their respective SRS Operators to in turn submit a proxy form to appoint the
Chairman of the AGM to vote on their behalf by the cut-off date.

(Name) NRIC/Passport No.

(Address)

being a member/members of SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED (the “Company”), hereby appoint the Chairman
of the Meeting as my/our proxy/proxies to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting
(“Meeting") of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 27 July 2022 at 2.00 p.m. by way of electronic means and at
any adjournment thereof in the following manner:

(If you wish to exercise all your votes “For” or “Against”, please indicate a cross [X] within the box provided.

Alternatively, please indicate the number of votes as appropriate.)

No. | Resolutions relating to: For Against | Abstain

1. Adoption of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 March
2022 together with the Directors’ Statement and Independent
Auditors’ Report

2. Approval of the payment of final (one-tier tax exempt) dividend of
S$0.002 per share and special dividend of S$0.004 per share for the
financial year ended 31 March 2022

3. Re-election of Mr Lim Chong Huat as a Director

4. Re-election of Dato’ Loh Shin Siong as a Director

5. Approval of the payment of Directors’ Fees of RM293,875 for the
financial year ending 31 March 2023

6. Re-appointment of Baker Tilly TFW LLP as Auditors

7. Authority to allot and issue new shares under Section 161 of the
Companies Act 1967

8. Authority to allot and issue shares under the Performance Share Plan

9. Authority to allot and issues shares under the Employee Share Option
Scheme

10. | Renewal of Share Buy-Back Mandate

Dated this day of 2022

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES IN:

(@) CDP Register

(b) Register of Members

Signature(s) of Shareholder(s) or
Common Seal of Corporate Shareholder

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF



Notes:

1.

Please insert the total number of shares held by you. If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository
Register (as defined in Section 81SF of Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289) of Singapore or any statutory modification
thereof, as the case may be), you should insert that number of shares. If you have shares registered in your name in
the Register of Members, you should insert that number of shares. If you have shares entered against your name in the
Depository Register and shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate
number of shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and registered in your name in the Register of
Members. If no number is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate to all the
shares held by you.

Due to the current COVID-19 restriction orders in Singapore, members will not be able to attend the Annual General
Meeting in person. Members will be able to watch the proceedings of the Annual General Meeting through a “live”
webcast via their mobile phones, tablets or computers or listen to these proceedings through a “live” audio feed
via telephone. In order to do so, members who wish to watch the “live” webcast or listen to the “live” audio feed must
pre-register by 2.00 p.m. on 24 July 2022, at https://complete-corp.com/samurai2k-agm/. Following authentication
of their status as members, authenticated members will receive email instructions on how to access the webcast
and audio feed of the proceedings of the Annual General Meeting by 2.00 p.m. on 26 July 2022. Members who do
not receive an email by 2.00 p.m. on 26 July 2022 should contact Complete Corporate Services Pte Ltd, by email at
samurai2k-agm@complete-corp.com.

If a member of the Company (whether individual or corporate) wishes to exercise his/her/its voting rights at the AGM,
he/she/it must appoint the Chairman of the Meeting as his/her/its proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her/its behalf
at the AGM. In appointing the Chairman of the Meeting as proxy, a member of the Company (whether individual or
corporate) must give specific instructions as to voting, or abstentions from voting, in the form or proxy, failing which the
appointment will be treated as invalid. The proxy form may be accessed on the SGX website.

The Chairman of the Meeting, as proxy need not be a member of the Company.

The duly completed instrument appointing a proxy or proxies together with the letter of power of attorney, if any, under
which it is signed or a duly certified copy thereof, must be

(@) deposited at the office of the Company’s Share Registrar in Singapore, Boardroom Corporate & Advisory Services
Pte Ltd, either by hand at 1 Harbourfront Avenue Keppel Bay Tower #14-07 Singapore 098632 or by post at 1
Harbourfront Avenue Keppel Bay Tower #14-07 Singapore 098632; or

(b) if submitted by email, be received by Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited at samurai2k-agm@complete-corp.com,

not less than seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed for the AGM in accordance with the instructions stated
herein.

Where an instrument appointing a proxy is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the letter of power of
attorney or a duly certified copy thereof must (failing previous registration with the Company) be lodged with the
instrument of proxy; failing which the instrument may be treated as invalid.

The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly
completed or illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the
appointor specified in the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies.

In the case of a member whose shares are entered against his/her name in the Depository Register, the Company may
reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have
shares entered against his/her name in the Depository Register seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed for
holding the AGM, as certified by the Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.

Personal Data Privacy:

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s), the member accepts and agrees to the personal
data privacy terms set out in the Notice of AGM.



APPENDIX

SUMMARY SHEET FOR SHARE PURCHASE MANDATE

The Sponsor and the SGX-ST assume no responsibility for the correctness of any of the statements made, reports
contained or opinions expressed in this Appendix. If you are in doubt as to the action that you should take, you
should consult your stockbroker or other professional adviser immediately.

Samurai 2K Aerosol Limited (the “Company”) maintains its accounts and publishes its financial statements in RM.
This Appendix contains conversion of certain S$ amounts into RM (or vice versa) at specified rates solely for the
convenience of the reader. Unless otherwise indicated, the financial figures in this Appendix are converted on the
basis of S$1 = RM3.1655. However, such conversion should not be construed as representing that the RM amounts
have been or could be converted into S$ amounts, or vice versa, at those or any other rates.

1. Shares Purchased In The Previous Twelve Months

The following are details of purchases or acquisitions of Shares made by the Company and announced by
the Company on the SGXNet in the previous 12 months preceding 27 June 2022 (the “Latest Practicable

Date”):

Total consideration paid
Date of purchase or Number of Shares (excluding expenses
acquisition of Shares purchased or acquired Price paid per Shares related thereto)
28 June 2021 22,000 $$0.3750 $$8,250.00
29 June 2021 18,000 $$0.3650 $$6,570.00

These Shares were acquired by way of open market purchases during the 12 months preceding the Latest
Practicable Date.

As at Latest Practiceable Date, an aggregate of 55,000 Shares are being held by the Company as Treasury
Shares.

2. Proposed Renewal Of The Share Purchase Mandate

This ordinary resolution if passed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“2022
AGM"), will renew the share purchase mandate (the “Share Purchase Mandate”) approved by the
shareholders of the Company from the date of the 2022 AGM and expiring on the earliest of the date the
next annual general meeting of the Company is held or is required by law to be held, the date on which
the share purchases are carried out to the full extent of the Share Purchase Mandate or the date the said
mandate is revoked or varied by the Company in a general meeting (the “Relevant Period”) (the “Share
Purchase Renewal Resolution”).

3. Rationale for the Share Purchase Mandate

The Share Purchase Mandate authorising the Company to purchase or acquire its ordinary shares in the

capital of the Company (“Shares”) would give the Company the flexibility to undertake share purchases or

acquisitions up to the limit described in Section 4 below at any time, subject to market conditions, during

the period when the Share Purchase Mandate is in force.

The rationale for the Share Purchase Mandate includes the following:

(a) The Share Purchase Mandate would provide the Company with a mechanism to facilitate the return
of surplus cash over and above its ordinary capital requirements and investment needs to its

Shareholders in an expedient and cost-efficient manner.

(b) The purchase or acquisition of Shares under the Share Purchase Mandate is one of the ways in which
the return on equity of the Company may be enhanced, thereby increasing Shareholders’ value.
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() The Share Purchase Mandate will allow the Directors to exercise greater control over the Company'’s
share capital structure, dividend policy and cash reserves, with a view to enhancing the net tangible
assets and/or earnings per Share.

(d) The purchase or acquisition of Shares under the Share Purchase Mandate will help to mitigate
short-term share price volatility by stabilising the supply and demand of issued Shares and offset
the effects of short-term share price speculation, thereby supporting the fundamental value of the
issued Shares and bolstering Shareholders’ confidence.

(e) The Share Purchase Mandate will allow the Directors to effectively manage and minimise any dilution
impact associated with any share-based incentive scheme of the Company.

The purchase or acquisition of Shares will only be undertaken if the Directors believe that it can benefit the
Company and Shareholders. Shareholders should note that purchases or acquisitions of Shares pursuant
to the Share Purchase Mandate may not be carried out to the full 10% limit as authorised. No purchase or
acquisition of Shares will be made in circumstances which would have or may have a material adverse effect
on the liquidity of Shares or the financial position of the Company and the Group or result in the Company
being delisted. The Directors will use their best efforts to ensure that after a purchase or acquisition of
Shares pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate, the number of Shares remaining in the hands of the public
will not fall to such a level as to cause market illiquidity or adversely affect the orderly trading and listing
status of the Shares on the SGX-ST.

Authority and Limits of the Share Purchase Mandate

The authority and limitations placed on purchases or acquisitions of Shares by the Company under the
Share Purchase Mandate, are summarised below:

(a) Maximum Number of Shares

The Company may purchase only Shares which are issued and fully paid-up. The total number of
Shares that may be purchased or acquired by the Company is limited to that number of Shares
representing not more than 10% of the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares and
subsidiary holdings) as at the date of the annual general meeting (“AGM") at which the resolution
authorising the Share Purchase Mandate is passed (the “Approval Date"), unless the Company has
thereafter, at any time during the Relevant Period, reduced its share capital in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, in which event the total number of issued Shares of the
Company shall be taken to be the total number of issued Shares as altered (excluding treasury shares
and subsidiary holdings).

For illustrative purposes only, based on the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Latest Practicable Date of 334,564,787 Shares (excluding treasury shares or subsidiary holdings),
and assuming that no new Shares are issued on or prior to the date of the AGM, not more than
33,456,478 Shares, representing 10% of the issued Shares as at that date, may be purchased or
acquired by the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate.

While the Share Purchase Mandate would authorise the purchase or acquisition of Shares up
to the 10% limit, Shareholders should note that purchases or acquisitions of Shares pursuant
to the Share Purchase Mandate may not be carried out up to the full 10% limit as authorised,
or at all. In particular, no purchase or acquisition of Shares would be made in circumstances
which would have or may have a material adverse effect on the float, liquidity or orderly
trading of the Shares and/or financial position of the Group.

(b) Duration of Authority

Purchases or acquisitions of Shares may be made, at any time and from time to time, from the
Approval Date up to the earliest of:

(i) the date on which the next annual general meeting of the Company is held or is required by
law to be held;
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(ii) the date on which the purchase or acquisition of Shares have been carried out to the full
extent of the Share Purchase Mandate; or

(iiiy ~ the date on which the authority conferred by the Share Purchase Mandate is varied or revoked
by an ordinary resolution of Shareholders in a general meeting.

The authority conferred on the Directors by the Share Purchase Mandate to purchase or acquire
Shares may be renewed at the next annual general meeting or at an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company to be convened immediately after the conclusion or adjournment of the next
annual general meeting. When seeking the approval of the Shareholders for the renewal of the
Share Purchase Mandate, the Company is required to disclose details pertaining to purchases or
acquisitions of Shares made pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate during the previous 12 months,
including the total number of Shares purchased, the purchase price per Share or the highest and
lowest prices paid for such purchases of Shares, where relevant, and the total consideration paid for
such purchases or acquisitions.

Manner of Purchase or Acquisition of Shares

Purchases or acquisitions of Shares may be made on the SGX-ST (“Market Purchases”) and/or
otherwise than on the SGX-ST, in accordance with an equal access scheme (as defined in Section
76C(6) of the Companies Act) (“Off-Market Purchases”).

Market Purchases refer to purchases or acquisitions of Shares by the Company effected through the
SGX-ST's trading system, through one or more duly licensed stockbrokers appointed by the Company
for the purpose.

Off-Market Purchases refer to purchases or acquisitions of Shares by the Company made under
an equal access scheme or schemes for the purchase or acquisitions of Shares from Shareholders.
The Directors may impose such terms and conditions, which are not inconsistent with the Share
Purchase Mandate, the Catalist Rules and the Companies Act, as they consider fit in the interests
of the Company in connection with or in relation to an equal access scheme or schemes. Under the
Companies Act, an equal access scheme must satisfy all the following conditions:

(i) offers for the purchase or acquisition of issued shares shall be made to every person who
holds issued shares to purchase or acquire the same percentage of their issued shares;

(ii) all of those persons shall be given a reasonable opportunity to accept the offers made; and
(iiiy  the terms of all the offers are the same, except that there shall be disregarded:

(aa) differences in consideration attributable to the fact that offers may relate to shares with
different accrued dividend entitlements;

(bb) (if applicable) differences in consideration attributable to the fact that offers relate to
shares with different amounts remaining unpaid; and

(cc) differences in the offers introduced solely to ensure that each person is left with a
whole number of shares.

In addition, the Catalist Rules provide that, in making an Off-Market Purchase in accordance with an
equal access scheme, the Company must issue an offer document to all Shareholders, which must
contain at least the following information:

(i) the terms and conditions of the offer;

(ii) the period and procedures for acceptances;

(iiiy  the reasons for the proposed share purchase or acquisition;
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(d)

(iv)  the consequences, if any, of share purchases or acquisitions by the Company that will arise
under the Take-over Code or other applicable take-over rules;

(v) whether the share purchase or acquisition, if made, could affect the listing of the Shares on
the SGX-ST;

(vi)  details of any share purchases made by the Company in the previous 12 months (whether
Market Purchases or Off-Market Purchases), giving the total number of Shares purchased,
the purchase price per Share or the highest and lowest prices paid for the purchases, where
relevant, and the total consideration paid for the purchases or acquisitions; and

(vii)  whether the Shares purchased by the Company will be cancelled or kept as treasury shares.
Maximum Purchase Price

The purchase price (excluding brokerage, stamp duties, commissions, applicable goods and services
tax and other related expenses) to be paid for the Shares will be determined by the Directors.

However, the purchase price to be paid for the Shares must not exceed:
(i) in the case of a Market Purchase, 105% of the Average Closing Price (as defined below); and

(ii) in the case of an Off-Market Purchase pursuant to an equal access scheme, 120% of the
Average Closing Price (as defined below),

(the “Maximum Price”) in either case, excluding related expenses of the purchase.
For the above purposes:

“Average Closing Price” means the average of the closing market prices of a Share over the last five
Market Days on which transactions in Shares were recorded, immediately preceding the day of the
Market Purchase by the Company or, as the case may be, the day of the making of the offer pursuant
to the Off-Market Purchase, and deemed to be adjusted for any corporate action that occurs after
such five-market day period; and

“day of the making of the offer” means the day on which the Company announces its intention
to make an offer for the purchase or acquisition of Shares from Shareholders, stating the purchase
price (which shall not be more than the Maximum Price calculated on the foregoing basis) for each
Share and the relevant terms of the equal access scheme for effecting the Off-Market Purchase.

Status of Purchased or Acquired Shares

Any Share which is purchased or acquired by the Company is deemed cancelled immediately on purchase or
acquisition (and all rights and privileges attached to that Share will expire on such cancellation), unless such
Share is held by the Company as a treasury share. At the time of each purchase or acquisition of Shares by
the Company, the Directors will decide whether the Shares purchased or acquired will be cancelled or kept
as treasury shares, or partly cancelled and partly kept as treasury shares, as the Directors deem fit in the
interests of the Company at that time.

(a)

Cancelled Shares

Shares which are cancelled will be automatically delisted by the SGX-ST, and certificates in respect
thereof will be cancelled and destroyed by the Company as soon as reasonably practicable following
the settlement of such purchased Shares. The total number of issued Shares will be diminished by
the number of Shares purchased or acquired by the Company which are cancelled and not held as
treasury shares.
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Treasury Shares

Under the Companies Act, Shares purchased or acquired by the Company may be held or dealt with
as treasury shares. Some of the key provisions on treasury shares under the Companies Act are
summarised below:

(i) Maximum Holdings

The aggregate number of Shares held as treasury shares cannot at any time exceed 10% of
the total number of issued Shares. Any Shares in excess of this limit shall be disposed of or
cancelled in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act before the end of
the period of six months beginning with the day on which that contravention occurs, or such
further period as the Registrar may allow.

(ii) Voting and Other Rights

The Company shall not exercise any right in respect of the treasury shares and any purported
exercise of such a right is void. In particular, the Company will not have the right to attend or
vote at meetings and for the purposes of the Companies Act, the Company shall be treated as
having no right to vote and the treasury shares shall be treated as having no voting rights.

In addition, no dividend may be paid, and no other distribution (whether in cash or otherwise)
of the Company's assets may be made, to the Company in respect of the treasury shares.
However, the allotment of shares as fully paid bonus shares in respect of the treasury shares
is allowed. Also, a subdivision or consolidation of any treasury share into treasury shares of a
greater or smaller number is allowed, so long as the total value of the treasury shares after the
subdivision or consolidation is the same as before.

(iii) Disposal and Cancellation

Where Shares are held as treasury shares, the Company may at any time (but subject always to
the Take-over Code):

(aa) sell the treasury shares for cash;

(bb) transfer the treasury shares for the purposes of or pursuant to any share scheme,
whether for employees, directors or other persons;

(cc)  transfer the treasury shares as consideration for the acquisition of shares in or assets of
another company or assets of a person;

(dd) cancel the treasury shares; or

(ee) sell, transfer or otherwise use the treasury shares for such other purposes as may be
prescribed by the Minister for Finance.

Under Rule 704(31) of the Catalist Rules, an immediate announcement must be made of any sale,
transfer, cancellation and/or use of treasury shares (in each case, the “usage”). Such announcement
must include details such as the date of the usage, the purpose of the usage, the number of
treasury shares comprised in the usage, the number of treasury shares before and after the usage,
the percentage of the number of treasury shares comprised in the usage against the total number
of issued shares (of the same class as the treasury shares) which are listed on the Catalist before
and after the usage, and the value of the treasury shares if they are used for a sale or transfer or
cancelled.
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Source of Funds

The Companies Act permits the Company to purchase or acquire its Shares out of capital or distributable
profits so long as the Company is solvent. For this purpose, the Company is solvent if at the date of
payment for the Shares purchased or acquired, the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) there is no ground on which the Company could be found to be unable to pay its debts;
(b) if:

(i) it is intended to commence winding up of the Company within the period of 12 months
immediately after the date of the payment, the Company will be able to pay its debts in full
within the period of 12 months after the date of commencement of the winding up; or

(ii) it is not intended so to commence winding up, the Company will be able to pay its debts as
they fall due during the period of 12 months immediately after the date of the payment; and

() the value of the Company’s assets is not less than the value of its liabilities (including) contingent
liabilities) and will not, after the purchase or acquisition of Shares, become less than the value of its
liabilities (including contingent liabilities).

The Company intends to use internal sources of funds or external borrowings, or a combination of internal
resources and external borrowings, to finance the purchase or acquisition of Shares pursuant to the Share
Purchase Mandate. However, in considering the option of external borrowing, the Directors will consider
particularly the prevailing gearing level of the Company and the costs of such financing.

Financial Effects

It is not possible for the Company to realistically calculate or quantify the impact of purchases that may
be made pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate on the net tangible asset value or earnings per Share
as the resultant effect would depend on factors such as the aggregate numbers of Shares purchased, the
purchase prices paid at the relevant times, whether the Shares purchased or acquired are held in treasury
or immediately cancelled on purchase or acquisition, how the Shares held in treasury are subsequently
dealt with by the Company in accordance with Section 76K of the Companies Act, and the amounts (if any)
borrowed by the Company to fund the purchases.

Where the purchase of Shares is made out of distributable profits, such purchase (including costs incidental
to the purchase) will correspondingly reduce the amount available for the distribution of cash dividends
by the Company. Where the purchase of Shares is made out of capital, the amount available for the
distribution of cash dividends by the Company will not be reduced.

Where the purchase of Shares is financed through internal resources, it will reduce the cash reserves of
the Group and the Company, and thus the current assets and shareholders’ funds of the Group and the
Company. This will result in an increase in the gearing ratios of the Group and the Company and a decline in
the current ratios of the Group and the Company. The actual impact on the gearing and current ratios will
depend on the number of Shares purchased or acquired and the prices at which the Shares are purchased
or acquired.

Where the purchase or acquisition of Shares is financed through external borrowings or financing, there
would be an increase in the gearing ratios of the Group and the Company, and a decline in the current
ratios and shareholders’ funds of the Group and the Company, with the actual impact dependent on the
number of Shares purchased or acquired and the prices at which the Shares are purchased or acquired.
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For illustrative purposes only and on the basis of the following assumptions:

(@)
(b)

()

(d)

(e)

that the purchase or acquisition by the Company of Shares was made on 1 April 2021

that (i) in the case of the purchase or acquisition of Shares made entirely out of capital, the
Company purchased or acquired 16,728,239 Shares, representing 5% of its issued Shares (excluding
treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) as at 31 March 2022, and (ii) in the case of the purchase
or acquisition of Shares made entirely out of profits, the Company purchased or acquired 1,672,823
Shares, representing 0.50% of its issued Shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings)
as at 31 March 2022;

that (i) in the case of Market Purchases, the Company purchased or acquired Shares at the Maximum
Price of S$0.3160 for each Share (being 105% of the Average Closing Price of the Shares for the five
Market Days on which transactions in the Shares were recorded immediately preceding the Latest
Practicable Date), and (ii) in the case of Off-Market Purchases, the Company purchased or acquired
Shares at the Maximum Price of S$0.3612 for each Share (being 120% of the Average Closing Price of
the Shares for the five Market Days on which transactions in the Shares were recorded immediately
preceding the Latest Practicable Date);

that the purchase or acquisition of Shares by the Company was financed entirely using its internal
sources of funds and required funds amounting to:

(i) in the case of Market Purchases made entirely out of capital, $$5,286,123.52 (equivalent to
RM16,733,224.02);

(i) in the case of Off-Market Purchases made entirely out of capital, $S$6,042,239.93 (equivalent to
RM19,126,710.49);

(iii)  in the case of Market Purchases made entirely out of profits, $$528,612.07 (equivalent to
RM1,673,321.51) and

(iv) in the case of Off-Market Purchases made entirely out of profits, S$604,223.67 (equivalent to
RM1,912,670.03); and

the transaction costs incurred for the purchase or acquisition of Shares pursuant to the Share
Purchase Mandate are insignificant and have not been taken into account in computing the financial
effects,

the financial effects of Share purchases by the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate on the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2022, are set out below.
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Scenario 1

Purchase or acquisition of 16,728,239 Shares by the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate
made entirely out of capital and held as treasury shares

Group Company
Before After Share Purchase Before After Share Purchase
Share Market Off-Market Share Market Off-Market
Purchase Purchase Purchase Purchase Purchase Purchase
As at 31 March 2022 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000
Share capital 57,165 57,165 57,165 57,165 57,165 57,165
Reserves (9,215) (9,215) (9,215) 448 448 448
Retained earnings 45,385 45,385 45,385 9,288 9,288 9,288
Treasury shares (64) (16,797) (19,191) (64) (16,797) (19,191)
Non-controlling interest (209) (209) (209) - - -
Total shareholders’ equity 93,062 76,329 73,935 66,837 50,104 47,710
Net tangible assets 92,246 75,513 73,119 66,837 50,104 47,710
Current assets 113,713 96,980 94,586 51,894 35,161 32,767
Current liabilities 47,617 47,617 47,617 715 715 715
Total borrowings 21,735 21,735 21,735 - - -
Number of Shares®™ (‘000) 334,565 317,837 317,837 334,565 317,837 317,837
Weighted average number
of Shares™ (‘000) 333,780 317,052 317,052 333,780 317,052 317,052
Financial Ratios
Net tangible assets
per Share® (sen) 27.57 23.76 23.01 19.98 15.76 15.01
Earnings per Share (sen) 3.93 414 414 3.47 3.65 3.65
Gearing ratio® (times) 0.23 0.28 0.29 - - -
Current ratio® (times) 2.39 2.04 1.99 72.58 49,18 45.83

Notes:

(1) Excluding treasury shares.

(2) Net tangible assets per Share is computed based on total net assets less deferred expenditure, other intangible
assets and non-controlling interests, divided by the number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares).

(3) Gearing ratio equals total borrowings divided by shareholders’ funds (excluding non-controlling interest).

(4)  Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities.
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Purchase or acquisition of 1,672,823 Shares by the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate
made entirely out of profits and held as treasury shares

Group Company
Before After Share Purchase Before After Share Purchase
Share Market Off-Market Share Market Off-Market
Purchase Purchase Purchase Purchase Purchase Purchase
As at 31 March 2022 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000
Share capital 57,165 57,165 57,165 57,165 57,165 57,165
Reserves (9,215) (9,215) (9,215) 448 448 448
Retained earnings 45,385 45,385 45,385 9,288 9,288 9,288
Treasury shares (64) (1,737) (1,977) (64) (1,737) (1,977)
Non-controlling interest (209) (209) (209) - - -
Total shareholders’ equity 93,062 91,389 91,149 66,837 65,164 64,924
Net tangible assets 92,246 90,573 90,333 66,837 65,164 64,924
Current assets 113,713 112,040 111,800 51,894 50,221 49,981
Current liabilities 47,617 47,617 47,617 715 715 715
Total borrowings 21,735 21,735 21,735 - - -
Number of Shares® (‘000) 334,565 332,892 332,892 334,565 332,892 332,892
Weighted average number
of Shares™ (‘000) 333,780 332,107 332,107 333,780 332,107 332,107
Financial Ratios
Net tangible assets
per Share® (sen) 27.57 27.21 2714 19.98 19.58 19.50
Earnings per Share (sen) 3.93 3.95 3.95 3.47 3.49 3.49
Gearing ratio® (times) 0.23 0.24 0.24 - - -
Current ratio® (times) 2.39 2.35 2.35 72.58 70.24 69.90

Notes:

(1) Excluding treasury shares.

(2) Net tangible assets per Share is computed based on total net assets less deferred expenditure, other intangible
assets and non-controlling interests, divided by the number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares).

(3) Gearing ratio equals total borrowings divided by shareholders’ funds (excluding non-controlling interest).

(4)  Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities.

SAMURAI 2K AEROSOL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2022

127



APPENDIX

Scenario 3

Purchase or acquisition of 16,728,239 Shares by the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate
made entirely out of capital and cancelled

Group Company
Before After Share Purchase Before After Share Purchase
Share Market Off-Market Share Market Off-Market
Purchase Purchase Purchase Purchase Purchase Purchase
As at 31 March 2022 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Share capital 57,165 40,432 38,038 57,165 40,432 38,038
Reserves (9,215) (9,215) (9,215) 448 448 448
Retained earnings 45,385 45,385 45,385 9,288 9,288 9,288
Treasury shares (64) (64) (64) (64) (64) (64)
Non-controlling interest (209) (209) (209) - - -
Total shareholders’ equity 93,062 76,329 73,935 66,837 50,104 47,710
Net tangible assets 92,246 75,513 73,119 66,837 50,104 47,710
Current assets 113,713 96,980 94,586 51,894 35,161 32,767
Current liabilities 47,617 47,617 47,617 715 715 715
Total borrowings 21,735 21,735 21,735 - - -

Number of Shares®™ (‘000) 334,565 317,837 317,837 334,565 317,837 317,837
Weighted average number

of Shares™ ("000) 333,780 317,052 317,052 333,780 317,052 317,052
Financial Ratios

Net tangible assets

per Share® (sen) 27.57 23.76 23.01 19.98 15.76 15.01
Earnings per Share (sen) 3.93 414 414 3.47 3.65 3.65
Gearing ratio® (times) 0.23 0.28 0.29 - - -
Current ratio® (times) 2.39 2.04 1.99 72.58 4918 45,83
Notes:

(1)  Excluding treasury shares.

(2) Net tangible assets per Share is computed based on total net assets less deferred expenditure, other intangible
assets and non-controlling interests, divided by the number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares).

(3) Gearing ratio equals total borrowings divided by shareholders’ funds (excluding non-controlling interest).

(4)  Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities.
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Purchase or acquisition of 1,672,823 Shares by the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate

made entirely out of profits and cancelled

Before
Share
Purchase
As at 31 March 2022 RM’'000
Share capital 57,165
Reserves (9,215)
Retained earnings 45,385
Treasury shares (64)
Non-controlling interest (209)
Total shareholders’ equity 93,062
Net tangible assets 92,246
Current assets 113,713
Current liabilities 47,617
Total borrowings 21,735
Number of Shares™ (‘000) 334,565
Weighted average number
of Shares™ (‘000) 333,780
Financial Ratios
Net tangible assets
per Share® (sen) 27.57
Earnings per Share (sen) 3.93
Gearing ratio® (times) 0.23
Current ratio® (times) 2.39

Notes:

(1) Excluding treasury shares.

Group

After Share Purchase Before

Market Off-Market Share
Purchase Purchase Purchase
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000
57,165 57,165 57,165
(9,215) (9,215) 448
43,712 43,472 9,288
(64) (64) (64)
(209) (209) -
91,389 91,149 66,837
90,573 90,333 66,837
112,040 111,800 51,894
47,617 47,617 715
21,735 21,735 -
332,892 332,892 334,565
332,107 332,107 333,780
27.21 2714 19.98
3.95 3.95 3.47
0.24 0.24 -
2.35 2.35 72.58

Company
After Share Purchase
Market Off-Market
Purchase Purchase
RM’'000 RM’'000
57,165 57,165
448 448
7,615 7,375
(64) (64)
65,164 64,924
65,164 64,924
50,221 49,981
715 715
332,892 332,892
332,107 332,107
19.58 19.50
3.49 3.49
70.24 69.90

(2) Net tangible assets per Share is computed based on total net assets less deferred expenditure, other intangible
assets and non-controlling interests, divided by the number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares).

(3) Gearing ratio equals total borrowings divided by shareholders’ funds (excluding non-controlling interest).

(4)  Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities.

Shareholders should note that the financial effects set out above are purely for illustrative
purposes only. In particular, it is important to note that the above analysis is based on historical
FY2022 audited numbers and is not necessarily reflective of the future financial performance of
the Company and the Group. Although the Share Purchase Mandate would authorise the Company
to purchase or acquire up to 10% of the issued Shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary
holdings), the Company may not purchase or acquire or be able to purchase or acquire 10% of the
issued Shares in full. In addition, the Company may cancel all or part of the Shares purchased, or
hold all or part of the Shares purchased in treasury.
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Catalist Rules

Under the Catalist Rules, a listed company may purchase shares by way of Market Purchases at a price
per share which is not more than 5% above the average of the closing market prices of the shares over
the last five Market Days, on which transactions in the shares were recorded, before the day on which the
purchases were made and deemed to be adjusted for any corporate action that occurs after the relevant
five-day period. The Maximum Price for a Share in relation to Market Purchases by the Company, referred to
in Section 4(d) of this Circular, conforms to this restriction.

The Catalist Rules specify that a listed company shall report all purchases or acquisitions of its shares to the
SGX-ST not later than 9.00 a.m. (a) in the case of a Market Purchase, on the Market Day following the day of
purchase or acquisition of any of its shares and (b) in the case of an Off-Market Purchase under an equal
access scheme, on the second Market Day after the close of acceptances of the offer. Such announcement
must include details of the date of the purchases of the shares, the total number of shares purchased, the
number of shares cancelled, the number of shares held as treasury shares, the purchase price per share
or the highest and lowest prices paid for such shares (as applicable), the total consideration (including
stamp duties and clearing charges) paid or payable for the shares, and the cumulative number of shares
purchased. Such announcement will be made in the form prescribed by the Catalist Rules.

While the Catalist Rules do not expressly prohibit any purchase of shares by a listed company during any
particular time or times, because the listed company would be regarded as an “insider” in relation to any
proposed purchase or acquisition of its issued shares, the Company will not undertake any purchase or
acquisition of Shares pursuant to the proposed Share Purchase Mandate at any time after a price sensitive
development has occurred or has been the subject of a decision until the price sensitive information has
been publicly announced. In particular, in observing the best practices recommended in the Catalist Rules
on securities dealings, the Company will not purchase or acquire any Shares through Market Purchases
during the period of one month before the announcement of the Company’s half-year and full-year financial
statements.

Listing Status on the SGX-ST

The Company is required under Rule 723 of the Catalist Rules to ensure that at least 10% of its issued
Shares (excluding preference shares, convertible equity securities and treasury shares) are in the
hands of the public. The “public”, as defined in the Catalist Rules, are persons other than the Directors,
Chief Executive Officer, substantial shareholders and controlling shareholders of the Company and its
subsidiaries, as well as the associates (as defined in the Catalist Rules) of such persons.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, there were approximately 114,964,787 issued Shares in the hands of the
public (as defined above), representing approximately 34.36% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company. Assuming that the Company purchases its Shares through Market Purchases up to the full 10%
limit pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate and holds the purchased Shares as treasury shares, the
number of issued Shares in the hands of the public would be reduced to 81,508,309 Shares, representing
approximately 27.07% of the total number of issued Shares (excluding treasury shares) of the Company. As
at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company has 55,000 treasury shares and did not have any preference
shares. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company has granted 345,000 and 2,505,000 employees share
options (“ESOS") expiring on 2 June 2029 and 30 May 2031 respectively to selected employees which will
entitle them to subscribe for a total of 2,850,000 new shares of the Company.

In view of the foregoing, the Company is of the view that there is, at present, a sufficient number of Shares
in public hands that would permit the Company to potentially undertake purchases of its Shares through
Market Purchases up to the full 10% limit pursuant to the Share Purchase Mandate without:

(a) affecting adversely the listing status of the Shares on the SGX-ST;

(b) causing market illiquidity; or

() affecting adversely the orderly trading of Shares.
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Tax Implications

When a company purchases its own shares using its distributed profits or contributed capital, it will be
regarded as any other disposal of shares by the shareholders from whom the shares are acquired.

For income tax purposes, whether or not the proceeds received by the Shareholders are taxable in the
hands of the Shareholders who sell their Shares to the Company for which the purchases were made out of
distributed profits or contributed capital will depend on whether such proceeds are receipts of an income
or capital nature.

Shareholders should note that the foregoing is not to be regarded as advice on the tax position
of any Shareholder. Shareholders who are in doubt as to their respective tax positions or the tax
implications of Share purchases by the Company, or, who may be subject to tax whether in or outside
Singapore, should consult their own professional advisers.

Implications of Take-over Code

111 Obligation to Make a Take-over Offer

If as a result of any purchase or acquisition by the Company of its Shares, a Shareholder’s
proportionate interest in the voting capital of the Company increases, such increase will be treated as
an acquisition for the purposes of the Take-over Code. If such increase results in a change in control,
or as a result of such increase a Shareholder or group of Shareholders acting in concert obtain or
consolidate control, it may in certain circumstances give rise to an obligation on the part of such
Shareholder or Shareholders to make a take-over offer under Rule 14 of the Take-over Code.

The circumstances under which Shareholders, including Directors and persons acting in concert with
them respectively will incur an obligation to make a take-over offer under Rule 14 after a purchase of
Shares by the Company are set out in Appendix 2 (“TOC Appendix 2") of the Take-over Code.

In relation to Directors and persons acting in concert with them, Rule 14 provides that unless
exempted (or if exempted, such exemption is subsequently revoked), Directors and persons acting
in concert with them will incur an obligation to make a take-over offer if, as a result of a purchase of
Shares by the Company:

(a) the percentage of voting rights held by such Directors and their concert parties in the
Company increases to 30% or more; or

(b) if they together hold between 30% and 50% of the Company'’s voting rights, their voting rights
increase by more than 1% in any period of six months.

Under TOC Appendix 2, a Shareholder not acting in concert with the Directors will not be required to
make a take-over offer under Rule 14 if, as a result of the Company purchasing its Shares, the voting
rights of such Shareholder would increase to 30% or more, or, if such Shareholder holds between
30% and 50% of the Company'’s voting rights, the voting rights of such Shareholder would increase by
more than 1% in any period of six months. Such Shareholder need not abstain from voting in respect
of the resolution authorising the Share Purchase Mandate.

11.2  Persons Acting in Concert

Under the Take-over Code, persons acting in concert comprise individuals or companies who,
pursuant to an agreement or understanding (whether formal or informal) co-operate, through the
acquisition by any of them of shares in a company to obtain or consolidate control of that company.
Unless the contrary is established, the following persons will, inter alia, be presumed to be acting
in concert: (i) a company with any of its directors, together with their close relatives, related trusts
as well as companies controlled by any of the directors, their close relatives and related trusts;
and (ii) a company, its parent company, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, and their associated
companies, and companies of which such companies are associated companies, all with each other.
For this purpose, ownership or control of at least 20% but not more than 50% of the voting rights of a
company will be regarded as the test of associated company status.
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11.3  Effect of Rule 14 and Appendix 2 of the Take-over Code

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr Ong Yoke En (Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company), Ms Lim Lay Yong (Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer of the Company, and
wife of Mr Ong Yoke En), Mr Ong How En (brother of Mr Ong Yoke En) and Ms Ong Yoke Hoi (sister of
Mr Ong Yoke En), who are deemed to be acting in concert with each other, collectively held 58.01%
of the issued Shares. They would not be obliged to make a take-over offer under Rule 14 of the Take-
over Code as a result of any purchase or acquisition of Shares by the Company pursuant to the Share
Purchase Mandate.

Shareholders who are in any doubt as to whether they would incur any obligation to make a
take-over offer as a result of any purchase of Shares by the Company pursuant to the Share
Purchase Mandate are advised to consult their professional advisers and/or the SIC and/or
other relevant authorities at the earliest opportunity before they acquire any Shares during
the period when the Share Purchase Mandate is in force.

Reporting Requirements

Within 30 days of the passing of the Shareholders’ resolution to approve the Share Purchase Mandate, the
Directors shall lodge a copy of such resolution with the Registrar.

The Directors shall lodge with the Registrar a notice of Share purchase within 30 days of a Share purchase.
Such notification shall include the date of the purchase, the number of Shares purchased by the Company,
the number of Shares cancelled, the number of Shares held as treasury shares, the Company'’s issued share
capital before and after the purchase, the amount of consideration paid by the Company for the purchase,
whether the Shares were purchased out of the profit or the capital of the Company, and such other
particulars as may be required in the prescribed form.

Within 30 days of the cancellation or disposal of treasury shares in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, the Directors shall lodge with the Registrar the notice of cancellation or disposal of treasury
shares in the prescribed form.

Directors’ and Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
The interests of the Directors and substantial Shareholders in the share capital of the Company as at the

Latest Practicable Date, as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings and Register of Substantial
Shareholders, are as follows:

Direct Interest Deemed Interest
% of % of
Number of Issued Share Number of Issued Share
Shares Capital ™ Shares Capital ™

Directors
Ong Yoke En 139,152,000 41.59 - -
Lim Lay Yong 45,000,000 13.45 - -
Dato’ Chang Chor Choong 12,750,000 3.81 - -
Dato’ Loh Shin Siong 12,750,000 3.81 - -
Lim Siang Kai - - - -

Hau Hock Khun - - - -
Lim Chong Huat - - - -

Substantial Shareholders
(other than Directors) - - - _

Note:

(1)  Based on the total number of issued Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date, comprising 334,564,787 Shares
(excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings).
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given
in this Appendix and confirm after making all reasonable enquiries that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, this Appendix constitutes full and true disclosure of all material facts about the Share Purchase
Mandate, the Company and its subsidiaries, and the Directors are not aware of any facts the omission of
which would make any statement in this Appendix misleading. Where information in this Appendix has been
extracted from published or otherwise publicly available sources or obtained from a named source, the sole
responsibility of the Directors has been to ensure that such information has been accurately and correctly
extracted from those sources and/or reproduced in this Appendix in its proper form and context.

Documents Available For Inspection

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the registered office of the Company at 133 North
Bridge Road, #08-03 Chinatown Point, Singapore 059413, during normal business hours from the date of
this Appendix up to and including the date of the AGM:

(@) the Constitution of the Company; and

(b) the Annual Report of the Company for FY2022.
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